CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
REGULAR MEETING & EXECUTIVE SESSION Clackamas River Water
Held at 16770 SE 82™ Dr. Clackamas, OR 97015
This Meeting will have both an in person and remote option for attending
November 9, 2023 at 6:00pm
AGENDA
Public Comment: If a member of the public wishes to address the Board during a meeting, they are encouraged
to inform Board staff through email to kholzgang(@crwater.com no later than 4pm the day of the meeting. If a
person will attend the meeting through Zoom and wishes to provide public comment, prior notice to
kholzgang(@crwater.com no later than 4pm on the day of the meeting is required in order to ensure access. The
notice should include the following information: (1) Full name; (2) Address/City/ZIP; (3) Email address ot
phone number to be used to access the Zoom meeting, so it can be unmuted; (4) District/ Otganization/Public;
and (5) Topic of your public comment and or specific agenda item you wish to speak on.

Members of the public are welcome to speak for a maximum of three minutes during a time designated on the
agenda for public comment. The speaker must state their name, address, and if they are a customer or not for
the record. Public comment provided at the beginning of the agenda will be reserved for comment on agenda
items, special presentations, letters, and complaints. Public comment as listed at the end of the agenda will be
for the purpose of “wrapping up” any remaining concerns.

Anyone who wishes to attend the meeting remotely by Zoom may do so by internet at
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89843175720 or by calling the following number 1 719 359 4580 and join
meeting/89843175720#. Passcode: 813522

REGULAR MEETING -@ 6:00pm

Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance and Roll Call - Sherry French, President
Approval of the Agenda

Public Comment (see blne box: at the top of the agenda)

Consent Agenda
CA-1: Gross Payroll and Accounts Paid: October 2023- Christa Wolfe, Chief Financial Officer

CA-2: Cash Position and Transfers: October 2023- Christa Wolfe, Chief Financial Officer

CA-3: Consider Acceptance of Donation of Assets for Copper Heights Subdivision Project
(5288)- Adam Bjornstedi, Chief Engineer

Action Items
1. Consider Approval of the Amended and Restated Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA)
of the Regional Water Providers Consortium- Todd Heidgerken, General Manager

Consider First Reading of Resolution 01-2024, by title only, Amending Local Contract
Review Board Rules — Todd Heidgerken, General Manager

Consider Approval of Professional Services Contract with RH2 Engineering for Water
Treatment Plant (WTP) Structural Upgrades Project (5309)-_Adam Bjornstedt, Chief Engineer

Consider Award of Bid/Contract for Systems Operations Shop Renovations (2329)- Adam
Bjornstedt, Chief Engineer

Next Page




5. Consider Approval of Temporary Construction Easement for Prologis (Robert Ave.
Development)- _Adam Bjornstedt, Chief Engineer

Informational Reports
6. Quarterly Report- Christa Wolfe, Chief Financial Officer

7. Management Report — Todd Heidgerken, General Manager
8. Public Comment (5ee blue box at the top of the agenda)

Commissioner Business
9. Commissioner Reports and Reimbutrsements

Adjourn regular meeting

EXECUTIVE SESSION- will start immediately following the regular meeting

1. Discuss information or records that are exempt by law from public inspection pursuant to ORS
192.660 (2) (f) and 192.355 (9) (a) and ORS 40.225

2. To conduct deliberations with persons designated by the governing body to negotiate real property
transactions. 192.660 (2) (e)

The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for accommodation for persons with
disabilities should be made at least 48 hours before the meeting to Adora Campbell (503) 722-9226.




Agenda Item —
CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER CA-1

REGULAR BOARD MEETING

November 09, 2023

SUBJECT Gross Payroll and Accounts Paid
DRAFF MOTION Move to approve the consent agenda itemns as presented
EFFECTIVE DATE November 09, 2023
PRINCIPAL STAFF
PERSON
BOARD ACTION Acknowledge receipt of information as part of the approval of the consent
REQUESTED agenda.
DOCUMENTS 1) FEarnings Statements for October 2023, Payrolls — 2 payrolls - $275,836
ATTACHED 2) Monthly Check History for October 2023 - §1,065,994 (net)

November 9, 2023 Agenda Irem CA-1 Page 1 of 7



Il

002279 002293 SEQ 002203

0 Overflow Statemenl 1 Total Siatement

First No, Last No, Total

ADPCHECK ADPCHECK o0o0ogco0000t
0C000400001 0000R400041 ©OOOCO000DT2

Tolal Vouchers Bypassed: 00000
Tolal Checks Bypassed; 00600

Tot CksfNchrs:00000000013  Tolal Pages:0GG00000015 - Page counl not applicable for Repotts
WEEK 40 BATCH 3549 42 PAYS
0 Employeas With Overllow Statement

Earnings Statement

10/ v] 207

SEAT 312 TOTAL DOCUMENT
CLACKAMAS RIVER WATE
LOCATION 0001

CHECK STUFFING, RECONCILIATION

135852,74 GROSS

86577.18 NET PAY (INCLUDING ALL DEPOSITS)

12443,66 FEDERAL TAX
8222.46 SOCIAL SECURITY
1923.00 MEDICARE

.00 MEDICARE SURTAX
00 SUKDYFLI/MLL TAX
0276.60 STATE TAX
.00 LOCAL TAX
-103768.47 DEDUCTIONS
1218.56 NET CHECK

SEAT COMPANY CODE 312

SEirvEg,

&

. Al Bigms

Y ar-] -
s ALF.InG,

200

1 888,

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATE

TOTAL DOCUMENT
LOCATION 0001

'NON-NEGOTIABLE - VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE - VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE - VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE - VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE - VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
- NON-NEGOTIABLE - VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE

NON-NEGOTIABLE - VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE

NON-NEGOTIABLE - VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE

Bl rHE GRIGINAL DOCUMENT HAD AN LATIFIGIAL WA TERMARY ta) THE 2251, B

FIOLO AT AN AMGILE TO VISW WHEN CHECKING T SNoopseibadn, 8



Tot Cks/Vchrs:00000000015 Total Pages:00000000018 - Page count not applicable for iReports
WEEK 42 BATCH 3823 44 PAYS

1 Employees With Overfiow Statement Earnings Statement

1 Overflow Statement 1 Total Statement

First No. Last Nao. Total
Checks: ADPCHECK ADPCHECK 00000000001
Volichers: 00000420001 00000420043 0G00GO00044

Tatal Vouchers Bypassed: 00000

Total Checks Bypassed: 00060 SEAT 312 TOTAL DOCUMENT
CLACKAMAS RIVER WATE
LLOCATION 0001

CHECK STUFFING, RECONCILIATION

139983.27 GROSS
89358.67 NET PAY (INCLUDING ALL DEPOSITS)
12978.06 FEDERAL TAX
8477.22 SOCIAL SECURITY
1982.56 MEDICARE
.06 MEDICARE SURTAX
.00 SUIDYFLIMLI TAX
8543.07 STATE TAX
.00 LOCAL TAX
106780.95 DEDUCTIONS
1211.41 NET CHECK

SEAT COMPANY CODE 312
CLACKAMAS RIVER WATE
TOTAL DOCUMENT
LOCATION 0001

NON-NEGOTIABLE -VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE -VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE - VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE -VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE -VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE -VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE -VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE - VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE



1 :abed

02921 S11diH L €8/52/60 SIATOD0LS ¢S
88781 BAYY £T/5T/60 Ly S1001 1HDIAHS HOgadvH
GO'ivl FdVAYd £2/62/60 NA H31¢M ALNNOD SYINYAHOVYID
66'651 BSHAON E2/GC/60 SLOL#E 1O43Q 30440
S9°i8l PITEVAY £2/52/160 NE 319 ALNNOD SYIWYHOY10
Q02851 N1 AN« E2/52/60 ZLOVZZP008 TYHNLYN MN
80'¥2Z BAVY £8/52/60 L1LO0V 1Od30 SO Ik L
oL +¥Z J3NavYAYd €2/52/60 NE 319 ALNNIOD SYINYHOYI0
/LGP 2SNOILYHI3Z0 £2/52/60 L10¥ LO43Q 3MOK IHL
8E'L9E Bl 1MW L £2/52/60 DNI Y 8 N 100d LHVYHD
BUECE  GIWYNNNOGOIN £2/52/60 "ONIHOZL20TVIA
BEEPE BSINNIDOW £2/52/60 1di ONV11Od NMOHD
£9°97E IAdIE L £2/52/60 9566.00.3054
00°¢68 QLLINdIEL £T/52/60 L00598014H02HIAIAAN
LE00Y e3N9VAYd £2/52/60 ANYSWNOD JOVERYD SYNYMOVYID
21 dTA S YS9 AYd £2/52/60 ALITLLM ZNYATITAL WO
G8°ZeY 3AVY £2/62/60 ‘SHIAHLOHE YAMOINZSHdL NI
00'69% JONVYOZICH £2/62/60 YdSAMIN vid3an E3am013030IHd
0008y IHDITTS £2/52/60 HILAVHD NCDIHO Ydav. DS
FAA % BTHEdNWYD £2/52/60 SHEXYL I HHAOdINE d3
56694 98ITAOA €2/62/60 0LSEE L PELO0BNODANELSEHE
00708  QLAILISNEOrg £2/42/60 ONI WY3g2n1d
G160 PONYODZICH £2/82/60 LN 219 T1vN.daN
00°052'L BLHOIIS £¢/52/60 DNIMOL S.AN8
$9°Z0g'L MFEENVYO £2/52/60 NI 'SINILSASHEOM SIHeVYH
Q0°05¢'L ISNYDZTOH £E/52/60 11N H3 LA 40 2085V NOSTHO
00002'2 ASINNIDOW £2/5Z/60 1S3MHLIHON AQY3H. - SAYM
00°i2e's £2/52/60 ONEAZAAORNNI MNYE SN BS6L0 £Z0e/eil/oL L8+9
CLBEP'9C £L'892¥'3C 2202 439N31d3S HOHIW} ONISSIDOE INTJWAYC £20Z €3NI LIS DMNISSADCHd YOIWO G8EF0D £C0C/8LI0L cav9
LG'8PS YL L5°8PS b1 £2/50/01-12/60 1608281 8861881 /8E8ZSL LA0RZOL LING SHad SH3Id NOOFMO 62000 £202/0L/0) BLY9
GO'¥eZ'T SOP6Z'T £2°90°01 Hd ~dINCD W34 NOILONGIA TTOHAYd AdYINATIOA NODZHO JO 3LVLS - 133Y1SILD SEE00 £202/0:/01 8478
Stare'e SPeVE'Z £2°90°0} Hd dINOD HE4=q :NOILDNGIa TIOHAYd AHVINNTIOA ONi §6000 SE0g/L 0L LlP9
£Y'66L E'66.L £207 1SNDNY SO €202 LSNDNV - SISATYNY 58WOLSHD MNYE SN 65610 £Z0TIP0/0L 9.3
jEejo 1 M2ayn pled Junouwry 3210AU} uonduasag 10pUsA aeqg £ X99Yn
jueqde :3pod jueg
TZ0Z/1 0L o £202/1/0b
19Jep JOATY SELWRYOED WVi:0L  £20Z/0S/0L
| :9beg Bunsin AiojsiH y2ayd AlYyjuonw Isikpode



¢ abeg

@4l BSNOLLYY3HO £2/52/60 LLFSH0D LS dIHIN NZWY
00'gL GSINNIDOW £2/52/60 01§ LAMIMIHE SILNHOSTC XAd
00'8L [FTEVAYd £2/52/60 ZL0v22F008 TYHNLYN MN
Loz WINEYAY £2/52/60 140 -ALID NOSTHO 40 ALID
$502 YAV £2/62/60 L10F# 10430 INOH FHL
65€2  JSNOILYHIJO £2/52/60 2107 10430 FWOH IHL
BO'LE BI1EvYAYd £2/62/80 ZL0¥ZZF008 TYENLYN MN
0,2 PSNOILYHIJO £2/52/60 210F# 10430 IWOH THL
20'ee DSINNIDOW £2/52/60 ZLPZ SAVAINL 1DL
66'7¢ JSTTAOA £2/62/60 ZE£992¢6.008N00ANA 1S3
25°6E F1GVAVd £2/52/60 ZL0PZZP008 TYENLYN MN
5028 [AYY £2/62/50 01 ON §331990Y XIS
$6'5¢ BONYDZI0H £2/62/50 171 SNDIS 2NIDOV. NI
¥6'0% SONVYDZIOM £2/52/60 £6£0% HAAINCIHS
Ov'ly  SINYNNNOZOIN £2/52/60 SNOQQYHIAYIE
gLy davy £2162/60 210b# 10430 INOH SHL
00'Zy oAy CZ/5Z/B0 L10¥# LOJTE INOH SHL
LZer 9STTAOA £2/52/60 NZINY ZEXZIBEELINOD NOZVINY
56°8b DAY £ZI52/60 061 V10 LNIVd ¥FTTIN
156k AONYOZIOH £2/SZ/60 aNY1 LANOd
8675  PWYNNNOEOREM £2/52/60 anoT SAILYAND,. 380aY
00°59 WAYY £2/52/60 3SNIOMYDIY.LOF 1
88°LL JAYY £2/82/60 L1L0% 10430 IWOH IHL
€07 PT139dNYD £2/52/60 XINNY T¥.LS0d
¥89L  000MLSZHd £2/52/60 ONPSOALXL.SN LI NZIWY
09'88 211 31dIML £2/52/60 0T LIS T0ELSN d LN NZWY
8006 BCOOMLSINd £2/52/60 HYYO-EILSVIOW
8626  JWYNNNOSOIN £2/52/60 LAIBIH LS d 1IN NZIWY
og'gs  BSNOILYHILO £2/52/60 £LOF LOJ3A IWOH THL
00°004 UAYH £2/52/60 s820
00’504 qTIZGANYD EZ/6ZI60 ONI ONIHLONISIH
00'S0L  POOOMLSSMJ £2/52/60 INAZZSZHLSN dLMI NZINY
0z 204 AAVY £2/5Z/60 2104 L0430 INOH THL
Co0LL PSTTAOA £2/52/60 T1EMOd 553Hd NYIWILNNIW
BS'ELL  GAOOMLSIHd £2/62i60 HEYD-HILSVINDWN
00'gLL a31avAYd €2/52/60 NOD DISHD MW,
66'9L) EWYNNNOBOIM £2/52/60 OO AQAYAOD.HNG
88511 OWVYNNNOSOIM £2/52/50 SUYTZNALZLIZ XOBdOHA

R3O0 Yo pled junowy a310AU} uonduasag Jopuaa, ajrg #¥o8yD

jueqde :3podqueg
CCOC/LEIOL o £c0e/L0)
131N JOAY SBLUBYIE[D INVOP-01 £202/0%/01
Z -ebeg Bunsi Alo)siH ¥28yo A|lyjuop IsiHyode



¢ abey

5056842 6556922 893822 ~TTLSNI NOLLYDIRMI ONZS L ONIdYOSANY SNITHO TYISAN0 95820  £202/%0/0L  69¥S6
05+zZ'e 05219’ 12086821 N3O0 WIDITY :SIOIANIS MH dINaL
0sZLYL 861098821 NZOD VIDIY SIOIARIS HH 3L
05'666'L 802048821 NICO VIO 'STOIANIS HH JINEL ONIZZVIS TVIONYNI SAILYENS 2480 £202/40/0L 99956
10'BI6'E 00'ce- 009659621108 IUVLSIN ARIAITBA HO4 LIa3H0
LOP66'S 100267661 L0S £'6 9 90022/ 40 SOd € '90-5Z22 40 S0d 9 ‘00 AlddNS QILYAMOSNOS 80000 £202/%0/0L  Z9¥S6
Le'ese 19658 0285004299862L NOILONGIQ TIONAYE ANY.INMIOA $20Z ¥3HOL00 4T VINOTOD 61600  £Z0ZW0/0L  99S6
02048 0208 AT HO HASA Y3d B34 YASA ATHLNON / £5L0-SHHO INSWAOYNYW SANODTY ANOTS 26660 S20Z/%0/0L  SOVSE
05'L5Z'VE 05°L5Z'HE 89 NOILYdIDILYYd $2-820Z Ad ¥L1D ONZ WIAAIY SYWYHOVID 22020 ©20Z/%0/0L  YObGE
00'szy 00szy ¥6801-02 TYAOWIY L1144V B MSD ‘MIHO INO ALNNCO SYAVMOYIO 00200 £202/W0/0L  E9¥SE
2068 2268 £2/9101-91/60 £20Z BIIOLO0 296 00.9-522-808 #OOV MNMAMAINGD 9100 £20Z/%0/0L 29986
o 58 205¥181628 TddNS “INIVIW ONIOTING - 0006¥9¥E6# 10DV ONI STOINYTS WNOLINA MUVINVEY 68200  SZ0Z/P0/0L  LOPSE
26'006'2 26°006'2 £2°02°0) ¥d NOILONGIT TIOHAYd ANVLNATOA ONISE000  $202/52/0L  £8¥9
LLYEHET LLYSHZ £2°02°0L ¥d -dINCD H343A NOILONATA TIOHAY ARYINMIOA NOOZHO #0 ILVLS ~ 1ITHISILIOGEE00  £202/SZI0L  28¥9
6402422 50°01- PLLFIGIL £2/52/60 SN LN NZWY
00z IBNYOZIOH £2/52/60 SIATZYANINYINEG - WOD ASLT
76' IAVY £2/52/60 LL0¥# L0430 INOH IHL
sLL BAVY E2/52/60 956/ THOLSATHD
Sv'6 PAVY £2/52/60 0861 OVID LNIVd MITTIN
196 GSNOILYH3HO0 S2/52/60 LIOMNDBELSN dIMN NZWY
00°0% UDNVOZIOH £2/52/60 HUO'S1HOSIHEINNSNOD
5805 BONVOZICH £2/52/60 £900# HIATN-OTHA
0023 AV £2/5Z/60 HLINSHOOT SWOSTIMYYY V. DS
0023 eSINNIDDIN £2/62/60 LNOYASZZNE ~LNOHdSZZNE
cozt [ONYOZIOH £2/52/60 HD0TE ANIMING
66F1 4STTAOA £2/52/60 ZIGEONEE L ININd NOZYINY
85'G1 SSINNIDOW £2/52/60 PZ2L0% STMOTT
019l 2GINNIDOW £2/52/60 dOHI
6291 [E18VAYd £2/52/60 Z10¥ZZH008 TVHNLYN MN
8659l 9SNOILYMIHO £2/5T/60 £10%# 10430 INOH THL
8241 JIEVAYd $2/52/60 ZL0¥ZZr008 TYRNLYN MN
[BI0L 429YD pied JUNoWY 2310AU| uenduasag lopusp aa  gMdBYD
jueqde :apo2 jueg
€C0g/LE/0L o E20Z/LD1
1IJBAA DALY SBWEXIR[D V00l £202/0¢/0L
¢ :obegd Bupsi A03siH %29yo AJYiuop 1sIHjode



v :abed

8L1EL 8L1EL 2eLITL IN3AZ 44v1S Tv OT1'H3LSO0H v 2 SUOIHO OMLSESYD  £202/60/0L  98¥SE
0O'043'T 000412 02062 MO ¥O4 LOLOW dH §Z1 ¥ ILYNTVAT B dIvd3y ONI ‘00 AMINIHOYIN 2 MOLOW 1ML €660 €Z0Z/P0/0L  SBYSE
00'089'% 00°0S8'% $3INA OVAS €202 $3NA JIHSHIAWAN OVAS €202 NODINO DOSSV SLOIMLSIA TYIOIdS 22500  €202/#0/0  ¥8¥S6
9v'90v's 90¥0¥'Z Z9re09z9 TIOUAYA/ONILNNODDY = NOILISOd AdYHOdINIL
0v'0£8'2 850£0929 TIOUAVA/ONILNNODDY - NOILISOd AYVHOSINAL
00°2LLE 8620929 TIOHAVH/ONIINAODIY - NOILISOd AUVHOINA L 071 47vH 143908 0LEP0  €2Z02/40/0L  £8+66
09748 99°7L8 $2696100042% S0SPO0# 180 PUNeY 8N wOT] STHLYIJOU MY ¥ESPO  €Z0ZWH0/0L  Z8V56
00°008': 00'008't L889800€E 1000-bZ Cd MSNY 3S 0¥ZEL ONI TWANSINNOMIANS ALID ¥IAIM 85680 €ZOZWO/0L  L8YE6
sy 52'6p V29289201 0/0L-01/60 61646£8-942120 1# 3SVI 810D
98'802 0S9v29.0L 0/4L-G0/0} §666¥LE-9LZ1204# ISYHT ¥AIdOD
99'802 BPOPZSL0L /OL-ZLIB0 b LLYELE-9LZLZ0 1 ISV HIIHOD "ONI'YSN HODIM 62200 £202/40/0L  08%S6
00°000°Z 00'000'Z L¥350% -£L06Z ALHZEONd 1HIF0Y ¥O< INTYA 40 ¥3LiT1 ONI dNCYHD NOILYNTYA ONYILHOG 2570 €20Z%0/0L  6.¥S6
¥5'5oy 559y $80¥L6SZ0S 10 £2/6Z/01-0£/£0 €66.620L00# L0V ISV T1OAS NI TvE0TO SIMOE ASNLId 81000  SZ0Z0/0L  8L¥56
o008t 00'081 580PL69Z0S £261 189501 #100V 3SVF1 Y3100 NOILYIWNOLNY 301440 OIHI0V 86LL0  €202/%0/0L  LL¥56
08419 0§'£19 £782¢ ONITIE ATHINOW "1d3S dNOYD TYOINVHOIN ISIMHINON Zh250  EZ0ZH00L  9I¥56
Ly pee Ly yEQ BOBODANI SUYIIY €1 # dINNd HSVHL 40 ALID IXINVAMTINGEL00  €20T/%0/0F  SI¥S6
00'€ZE'S 00022 96L¢ MEOM LOVHLNOD
052y 161E HEOM LOVHLINOD
00'0L8 G6LE MEOM LOVHLNOD
00'5%6 B8LE MHOM LOVHLINOD
05241 061E HAOM LOVEINOD
00°82€'L 8oze dIOA 8NS BONYNBLNIVIN
00°05€'L 61€ MHOM LOVHINOD  "ONI dNONO ADOTONHOZL ANOYAYIN 08470 S202/%0/0L  7.v56
08'6.6'68 09'6.6'68 $-82022W NOILOMYSINOD INIMTHILYM OO0 NOILOMHESNOD HONOH TN ELPP0  £Z0ZA0/0L  £L¥56
02'265'E 02265 16181691 CL-0ZS) SOd 09 ONIQO¥TTMOA A HYZI00  STOT/PO/OL  Z1¥56
0LSHY'T 0V'sPr'e 929992 $3ddNS ONILSTL NIXOLONVAD  SUOH SOILSONOVIQ QMYANYLS Q10D ¥#0¥0  €20Z/40/0L  LLbSE
GryL Syl 20696100042 QOEEED# 15O PUNYRY AN wINJWAOTIAIA LHBNNG 89/20  €Z0Z/H0/0L  OLPSH
{E101 Yo3Yn pled Junoury Jaloau] uondussag lopuap ayeg #3094
yueqde :opodyuey
€202/1e/0L o1 £20e/Li0)
19JBAN JOATY Sewe)orD WVOP:0L  £Z0Z/0S/0L
y :abed Buisr A103sIH 323yo Ajyuo ISIHYOde



G :abed

0v'902 0v°902 £1Z06£EZ L NZO2 VIOIY :SADIAMAS H WAL ONIH4VLS TVIONYNIA JALLYIMD 22480 €202/0L/0L 00856
Z9LL5'LE 00°052'L} 09055EL SLYVd SHOMNEIALYM
Z9'56L'2) 1915988 SLHVE SHACMEILYM
00ZLY'EL 6525971 SLHVY SHUCMEILYM JTNIVIA 5HOD 21000 £20Z0L0L 66V
00°825'LL Q0'162'G 89ZCr ASYIGMYHLIS-NOSYD % TAVHIIN AYEIL "HIHLYN
00'382'9 L992Z¥ AHIEMTELS-NOSYO B TIVHOIN AZYIL YIHLYW "ONI 'SHOAZAYNS ANV SSVAWOD $4420  €20Z/0L/0L  96V56
BECLEEL TL9P9'S £510008E01L8 ONINYID £202 HITWI LIS
19'828'L LELODOSECILS SNINVIT0 £202 3NNC SNOILNTOS ALMIOVSE 3AIM ALID 96200 €202/01/0L  £8VS6
65129 0E89L'e WO-008L0bY $3IXV.L 13N WOL LIQTuD
10'88.- WD-0Z85002 S3AXVL 13N4 W04 1IG380
£€LZ9" WO-08850Z $3XYL 13N WOd LIdFED
18028 NG-YSES0ZY 135310 40 SNOTIVD 087 LLL
80°109 NIF920Z8%0 13Nd 40 SNOTIVO 1’894
SE6EL Q4285002 TONYHLI NON €40 SNOTIVE 09°96 )
¥L'686') WG-H8.LBE9Y 13N4 40 SNO TV 00§
L#0E0'E NCrYSEELLY TANd 40 SNOTIVD #8068
£5912'2 Na-dLZs08y 73N 40 SNOTIVO 209
15'L5€'9 WC-H51L07F 138310 40 SNOTIVO 446 ONI NISNILSRIHOD LLBE0  £202/0L/0L  96%56
00°€28'8} 00'€28'8L 59.48 ILYHAAHEOTHO WNNIANTY ONI 02 1SI0 VIEWNI00 3AVOSYO 6¥5L0  £20Z/0L0L  S6¥96
L002e'e L0 0ZE'S £.088 OV.S0d % ONISSIO0Nd ¥FFOLO0 § YIEWILJTS 277 '$30INYIS ONCTIVIN ON3E LOEYD  €202/0LI0L  ¥BPS6
¥5'8 Ry 0L98LELBES 1dNS LNIYIN ONIGTING - 0006¥9E6# "LOOY ONI $TDINYIS WHOLINA MVINYYY §8200  £20Z/0L0L  £6%56
SEovL SPovh 0896%20 ST1ddNS B YAL 'WI4400  IOIAMTS VIL P 3TJ400 JNS QTHOM ELEE0  EZOZHO0L  Z6HSE
00°000°2 00°000°Z 9200000 Na300Ud ANY S310I10d TVIONYNIH 40 MIIATY MOOHALSAM LIVINGZEY0  £20T/40/0L  16¥S6
9Z'0LL'S 8z'0LL'9 L-£202+94Z1C00 AON €202 "030 JIHSHSSWIW ALITILN H3LYM NOILYAONNOS HONVISTN ¥ILVM 26500  £202/40/0F  0BYS6
BY189'T 60258 871518509276 $ # 1SND - NVONYIN-SIDIANIS TYAOWTE HSYHL
T TAN 0-FL51-L509276 - MuYd 3AISHIARISIOINYTS TYAOWIY HSVHL NODIHO 40 INSWIOYNYIN FLSYM 0EL00  £20Z/H0/0L  63¥56
00'58L'y 00581y gesee SMTHANY SIAVYL 50 SEIIANTS WHOTIOEMERYPPD  E20TP0/0L  B8YSE
5¥'90F Svor 6% LGE0Z0-AN] SINOOHLSIY T18V.LHOd
00'08¢ 8v9Z698L-7L 1 TWLINTY Mdvd 3AISHIAI ONISIDIAHIS I1IS GILINA L0LCO  €20Z/P0/0L  L8Y56
|ejo L %3349 pled junowy 3210AH] uonduasag 10pUBA aeq #3994
jueqgde :apoojuey
CcOe/LE/0L o £20e/Li0b
JOJBAN I9AIY SeWRYIR|D) INVOY:0L £202/0E/01
G rabey Bunsi AojsiH y2ayo AlyJuo IsiHyode



g :abed

08'6.5'% 00-£28002¢ SONILLIS SHIOMYILYM 'SSva ATYNOTOW SYHOM HILVM NNZISIM 98pP0  £202/0L/0L 61556
EOBLLE £2°065 00059-8800L-5 S # 1SNT - NYONVYIN-SIDIAGZS TVACWNIY HSYH.L
AN $0085-8L00G 3 Vd IAISHIAN-STDIANIS TYACWTH HSVAL NOOTHO 40 INTFWIOVNYN ILSVM 0EL00  £202/0L/0L  BLSSE
00°59. 00592 6928 SMIUANY SIAVRL 40 SIOINNIS TYIOTOEMGRYP0  EZ0Z/0MOL  LLSS6
00942 00'801 £290015¥62 SIOINYIS ONIQIHHS NINGY
00’801 £29001985¥1 SOIAY3S ONIGOTHHS SAOSAS OT1ISIMHLNON O3MHS L0ZE0  S20ZI0MOL 91596
0¥'200'9 0¥'088'T 1656929 TICUAYHONILNNODOY - NOLLISOd AUYHOJNEL
00'ZLi'E 9£98£979 TICYAYYONILNNOTOV - NOILISOd AUVHOJNEL OTT4T9H LYIBON OLEP0  £20Z/0HOL 5156
£V PGE L EHYSE'L 92022618 TAZL WINITLHOITHA OL SYIvday dNOYD ¥OMYL UBIWIMd BESH0  €202/0L/0L 156
25281 z5'z8L BYEELY SIOVII TYNOLIAOY ATHLAEVNO NOILYWOLNY 301440 OI4IOVE 86110 £202/0L/0L  £15S6
657020' 65°020') 2'90°01 ¥d £2'90°CL ¥d ¥O< SINA NOINN JNOSHY NODINO €600 $202/01/0L  218S6
£GREY'L 0519 20228 ADINMAS OVAH LSNDNY
£0°'128 0SE2E INIWIOYIIN LYISOWHEHL OV L SNOYO TWOINYHOIN LSAMHLNON 2¥2v0  £202/01/0L  LL5S6
81°080'L 81°080'L 558621 HILLFT ANODIS MOTI%OVE dHOD SSTMd NYASLNNIW GZZ00  S20Z/OL0L  OLSS6
00'Z5¢ cozee £20Z HIFOLO0  MIN MHO MO MHOM LOVHINOD NOISIC OlHd VYD "ONI SOIHAVYD MSTLLIWO  £2020L0L  BOSSE
00°06% 00088 10909 ONIMOE TYNCILOTHIA  DNRIOS TYNOILOIMIA IJvOSINIT 0T 28520 €Z0ZAOLOL 8056
68'8Ly 68'8Ly 620891128 “LNIVIN ATHELYYAD ONIINOM 22620 €202/0WO0b  10SS6
1961 18612 55799} NOLLYOIHIGOW Atid Sd NYLLVH -# 30O MSVL  ONI SINVAINSNOD SYNIMACINNIN 66260 €202/0LO0L 90566
66'E0L'Y 66'€9L'7 505103 £20Z ¥IGAZLJTS STOIAYIS TWOT ] TveaNas Od ONOT ONVHAVH O¥ZE0  £Z0Z/0LOL  G0SSE
00'Z2L'L 00198 08128 £202 L3S TOULYd ONIMOLINOW ATHLNOW
00’198 £85€5 £202 LOO TOHLYd DNINOLINOW ATHLNOW "ONI FSNOJSTY LSWI4 £2000  £202/04/0L  +0SS6
00'991'2 00'99L'Z 60L39LL SAVIH Y31SI193H INWO ONI SISRIdHILNT NOSNORTA #¥8L0  €202/0L03  £0SS6
92'621'08 00'05% ¥¥85401 ANV MVd IAISHIAN IOHVHO v1va IUEOW-L
9T'6.6'6L 8501801 S3SYHOMNG LNIWJINDS ¥O4 LISO43A % 05 JUNOISWYOI 6LYF0  €ZOZ/OMOL  Z0SS6
00°0¥5's 00'0¥5'S 564852 FONYNILNIVIN ONIdYOSANY ¥3EW3 LTS ONIJVOSANY SNIZUO VLISAND 96820  €202/0L/0L  L0SS6
1210l ¥29ys pied junowy 3010AL uondussag IOPUBA a1eq #oayn
jueqde :apod jueg
£c0c/1E/0L o £¢0e/L/0L
JIJBAN JOALY SEWEYIE|D Wvor:0F  £202/02/01
g :afeg Bupsit AlojsiH 328yo Ajyjuop ISIHDde



. abegd

86'¥5S 1ez8 SIVHIHLINEd ¥ILNANOD
0059 7528 NOILIRIOSENS FONYNILNIVIN
00°008 osze SIYHIHAINE H1NdNOD
00828 LECE NOILdIMISINS FONYNALNIVIN
00'grLL 0vze NOILAIOSENS FONYNILNIVIN
05'228'L 952e SHHOM LOVHLINOD  ONI dNO¥O ADOTONHOZL INOHAYI 08150 £202/8L/05  LEG56
00'065 00058 51609 0-412Z ‘334 THOT 'QY HITUONIAVIG S 76207 ONIMNOS TYNOILOIMIA IJVOSANM OT1 48420 £20Z/BLI0L  9ESSE
19'56E"L 10'5e5" £2°91L°0) ONNATY NL3Y S14Vd ONV ¥ILIN HO4 £2°91°0L ONNTH ONIONILYAVOXE 99 6L6L0  €20Z/8LOL 58566
58S 98's 02240 02 WHOH o 1OV 3uvD TISYQ04Y) $334 [H00d TYONNY JDIAYES INNTATY TYNHIINI SPEL0  £Z02/8L0L  YESSE
00'765°0 1 0076501 286v6 LYS MO - %6°ZL ZLINOTHIOIAH WNIGOS ONIVSVHEI¥E0  £202/8L0L  ££6G6
0LERPE 0L'sHh'E 97999z SANAdNS ONILSTL NIXOLONVAD  SHOH SOILSONOVICQ OHVONYLS 0100 #40¥0  £20Z/8L/0L 28566
00'00%'9 00°00%'9 1122 HOOQ 'YOISY4 L4408 - ONILNIVA HOINILXE ONLLNIVA ® SONYNILNIVIN TWEOTO 6850 £202/8L/0L  1£S66
1698 1658 S008E7-20%F HINYITO DAvEE 2 41Y ININNSO SLYVd OLAV VYN Va0 28880 £20Z/8L/0L  0SGSE
0062 0052 Zz158 H0 NYONYIN ISNOJSTY Wav Ty ‘ONI ISNOJSTY LSHI4 €000  £Z0Z/8LI0L 62558
p5selL'R 0000B°E GGEYL Y2 Ad - 10H1Vd ANILNOYA
05T Y gsevl IS Muivd JAISHIANHEOM LOVHLINOD ALRINDIS SIDIAYTS ALIMNOTS JALNDIXT 08870 £Z02/8LI0L 92656
LE'SL6 ITEL6 £08550 NILSTL AONZIOIH0Ud ADOTOISOHOIN AIHINDTY  DOSSY I0WNOSTY TVANIWNONIANT £8200  £20Z/84/0L 2556
0529 0529 S1LLPRYNGS FSVET HONUL 05 -4 OHOd 8107 ¥S088%: 1SNO INTNZOVYNYW 13574 SSIHUIINT 050 £202/8L0L 92556
05ZL9'L 05'ZLE'L LLZ00VEZL N30D VIOITY ‘S3IDIAEIS ¥H dWI1 ONIZHYLS TYIONYNIH SALLYINO Z4bE0  £202/8L0L 62596
00'Pi9°T 00'7L9'T 08902 830 AFINYH ONY GAddIHD 'STTEL 40 TYAONIY ONi STDIANTS ITUL IAMALID I¥L50  £202/8LOL  $2556
00'588'G 00'588's LL0B.8 HSY YOS ZSNIT ONI 09 1SI0 ViGWNTOD 3avOSYD 9v5L0  £202/8M0L  £2556
¥5'bg ¥5've 102281625 1ddNS “INIYIX ONIGTING - 0006%9¥E6# LODY ONI STOIANIS NHOAINA WuVINVHY 69200  £202/8LI0L 22556
0g'I6L'L 0gL61'L £16258 HIBOLOO LONGEA TIONAV "OA - EXNX0 100V JONVHNSSY 34T ATIAVE NVOINAWY 20000 €202/8L0L L2586
GL'86S'EL GLB85'EL GGee 1INSNOD LIGNY/AONYNIL 71 DONILTNSNOD I4T0MM ELSH0 gZ0z/o0L/0L 02858
08'852'9 0v'8z6 00-G2£0028 SONILLIH SHHOMMALYA ‘SSYHE QTYNOUDIN
09'SHZ L 00-069%0LE 20-00L2 14 081
2101 Y99Yyo pled JuUnoWwyY 2210AU] uonduosag JOPUAA, aleg #39%Un
jueqde :apo2jueg
€C0T/LE/0L o1 €20T/1L/01
JBJBAA JOAlY SEWENIR[D Wvor-oL £202/08/0L
1 abeg Bunsi A103si1H ¥29yo AjUyjuop IsiHyode



g :abed

000z L1628 SIDIAYIS ONILTIMS LOT ¥IA0L00
00082 glLigge SADIAYIS ONIJIIMS LOT HIA0L100 ONIJIAMS 1ILNVD POECO £Z02/8Z/0L  £5656
0Ly 00Lr 60201 HAN ¥ HOZHD INIWACTINS-THd ONi 832IA3S DONILLSTL Q3aW-0IF 625E0 £TOZ/ST/OL  TE5S6
578 PS5 P8 ¥iGLITELBTS TddNS NIV ONIAUNEG - 0006P8PEEHE LoDV ONI SIDIAYIS WHOHINN MHUYIWYHY 58200 £Z02/52/0L 15566
00'065'S 00°065'S 8.z¢ LINSNCD LIGNY/EDNYNIA ST ONILTNSNOD A410M €G30 £202/21/10L  0G556
0008 0008 £207 Ld3S £20Z HAGNI LdAS F34 NINAY JY3N ONIADNIOV SONVHNSNI YHAA LPZZ0 £Z02/8L/I0L  6¥SS6
z94T 292 Yr19LL5t66 SIOUVHD INOH 173D LO00G-680LEGZPI# DOV SSTTIHIM NOZIEIA ¥5820 £202/81/0L  8PSS6
096242 09'62L'2 ZEE00PLG SAVYL .& ALHOTHIOGAH WNIDTYD ONI W8N SNOILNICS JYAINN 66100 £20Z/8L/0L  L¥SS6
0¥ OveE L¥LG BBESTL SONLLLIE MO0 W)
£5'89Z L TAT AR SONILLL ONY SISOH ONI AddnS IYIH1SNANI 0L 08100 £20Z/8L/0L  9PSS6
00°96+'621 00209 £2'5'6 ZFOPS00-1L0 FDNVENSNL ALTYNSYD ALYId0ONd
00 LLE'YS  £2°L0°LL ZPOPSO0-E0 WYHO0Ud S1I43N3d HLTvaH ¥38NaA0N
00°LLG'PE ZYO¥E00-€0 WvdD0Yd SLIHaANIE HITV3IH 8390100 NOSIHO D088V S1OIMLSI TVI0ASS L2500 £ZOZ/BLI0L  G¥SE6
Q0'184°2¢ 90 LBLZS £20Z WISWI LIS €202 ¥AANHLJAS - GISYHIMUN HILYM QYUvOa Y31V MHOL HLNOS #2000 £20Z/8L/10)L  #¥SS6
00°05%'2 0005’z SB0ELOZY TIOYAVA/ONILNNOIIY ~ NOILISOd AMYHO4NIL 071 479H 14380 0LEV0 €ZOZ/ALIOL  £¥5S6
00'2ZLL'E 00gLL'E LP0EL929 TIOHAVA/ONIINNQIDY - NOILISOd AdYHOdING L 077 4797H L3804 0LEYD £Z0Z/ALI0L  ZPES6
L0'9zL'L 1062 12-L88GL0GTE 8334 AUV
00009 B6G6.90€€ 9520-¥122 1S GNY1H3A0 38 0£69
000044 8+0600L€€ 8GZ0-¥LZZ Od WIAIHOHIAVIE S L€202 ONETYLINIWNOYIANT ALID Y3AIY 8#5€0 £202/8L10F  L¥SSS
Z0'286' Z0ZR6'T €207 1d3S NilNQY £20Z 1d3S NINGY 39d L2000 £202/8Li0L  OPSES
or'EEr'as LO'GEE'9ZEZ 1d3S NOILYLS diNNd €202 1d3IS NOLLYLS dind
BE'BEY'ZY £Z0Z 1438 d1n £20Z HATWI LJBS LNV Id LINFWLYTHEL H3LYM 39d 12000 £202/8L/10L  BEGSE
6¥'€8.'6 67 'ERL'G £Z0E°60-15'80 NODIHO NI 1SN MED OL DAS HO4 SINTNAYL S0 ALID 'ALID NODIHO 8¥00C £Z0Z/8L/0L  BEGSH
95'vZL L ¥E'G6L 1¥zZe SIVHIHLIMEd ¥ LNLINOD
8519 0gge dMYOVE Y1vQ aNS IONYNILNIYA
8£298 622¢ dNXOYE Y1YA 8NS IONYNILNIYH
87798 8eee dNYOVE Y1VG 9NS SONYNILNIVA
[EjoL qI3YyD pled JuNnowy 3010841 ’ uondussag 10PUBA sjeq #Y934yD
Mueqde :[sp0d Mueg
€Z0E/LENL o £20Z/LI0)
I3IBAN JDAIY SBUWEN DB NVOr-0L £202/0c/01
g :abey Bugsir A103siH yosyo A|Yjuopw IsiHp{ode



6 :abey

66'Zp 662y 9686620 SAOAS 00L-6% ONI OWvOOUL3d 1880  €202/ST/0F  0LSS6
£1'620'L £'e20'L £20Z°01 ¥d £202°0L dd ¥O4 S3NA NOINA WSV NODIHO €800  £202/ST0L 69555
57085} SZ066'L £6828 HIVdTY OV v dNOYS IYOINVHOIN LSIMHLEON 292%0  £202/52/0L 89556
05'69Z'T 05'682°Z $Z600ANI SYIYdIY 13374 ¥SAWILJTS 40 ALID ‘IMNVANTINBELO0  £202/52/0L L9656
00's9Y'LZ 006121 21928 NOILYHOIN HIANIS
00°049°S 95z8 NOILYHOIN YIAHSS
00°085'%1 L6828 NOLLWYHOIN H3ANIS  “ONI dNOED ADOIONHOIL SNOHGYIN 081¥0  £202/S2/0) 0G5S
55'99 55'99 TNTN AUVLION AHYLON NODIHO 40 LNIWISHNGNITx IYHILLIONVHE 2b6¥0  £202/52/0L  S9556
YZopLL vz orL'L 9892¥80042C YWODYL YLOAOL 1202 HOH STul: ¥NO4 ONI SHILNTD JIL SVMHOS ST1EEL00 £202/SZ/0L  P9SS6
15198 $2°980°% 9L91ZT1IE QY WIIATIN S 58041
208524 122327118 10 ANNVQ S 68202
00°Z08'L Z,91Z11I8 LSTHOYIGTY IS LE6S
00bSEL 52417118 9520122 NTATIOH S 88£8L
00'%5€"1 gz.1z1Ig 9620-7122 OY MITHIHIAVIE S 28812
bL682Z 966121118 L00-¥Z Od HSMY IS 0FZEL ONI NODTHO 40 STDINHIS G2 M ¥8220  £20Z/ST/OL  £9GEE
00°000'2 000008 £Z60S-LOMYD SYVD HO4 INSWSZHOY SONYNILNIVA TYANNY  SHOH SOLLSONOYIA OuVANVLS 0109 ##0¥0  £20Z/SZ/0L 29556
661 6v'6L 5168P-20v S1HOMAYIH 002-G1 ININNTD S1¥VH OLNY VYN 'YEd 29960 €202/5Z/0F  19GS6
VoL L LLBLT L 6Z80ZANI 2810 NOILOZLOE/ISIA DNIANAOHSD 'OVAIONd STOMLNOS ¥ SININNYLSNI QT34 64280 £20Z/52/0% 09558
69919 69819 S#¥096505 £2/18/21-L0/L TYANTY SNVL MALYM I O 'SIADOTONHOTL ¥ALVM VNOOAT 21280 £202/52/01  BSGS6
L1166 118G 96YZLE SITMOVd OHVOS 40 AHIAMEA ONI LHOJSNYHL 1OTMIA 84280 €202/S2/0L  89GS6
02'980'C 02'880'2 ZZE0LPETL N3O YIOMY ‘SIDIANIS HH dNL ONIJ4VLS TYIONYNIS SALLYINO Z4pE0  £Z0Z/ST0L 5556
co'sey 00's2 0201-02 IWACINZIY |LIH4VHD B MSD ‘MIHD INO ALNNOD SYAVMOVIO 00200  €202/5Z/0L  9GSS6
19°209'¢ 85°566'L Ni-08006%0 ¥ZA4 S8 YYD - 138310
6'800'Z NI-LE668%0 ¥ZA4 §-8 ¥YITD - 138310 STVO 568 ONINISNILSIYHO L1880 £202/ST/0L  SS5S6
2.'66 2066 GLL0EdIN INTWITHOY IONYNIINIVIN "ONJ INTWNS3A0D MOD 23600 §202Z/SZTA0L  $SSSE
0O'Ere 00'c8l 611622 S2OIANIS ONIJIIMS LOT HIFOLO0
18101 %234y pred junowy 8010AU] uonduasag JOpUSA 31T # %9949
jyueqde :apodjueg
S0/ LEI0r o Scue/L/or
I9JBA JOATY SEWENIRID WYOP:0L  £20Z/0E/0L
6 :abeg Bunsi- AMoIsIH ¥o9yo Aly3uop IsiHpode



0l :9beyd

LZ'¥66°690°) :$q9ayD [ejol podas siuy) U Sy 871
LZ ¥66°590°L ‘lejo L yueqde
00sZe'8 00'048°€ 6G0EE SMIBANY SIAVEL 20 STEDIAGES
00'65F'¥ SLece SMIuANY SIAYHL 30 S30IAYES AYEOTDEM §8FF) £E0T/GE/0L 0BGS6
£1'686'C 2L'¢lb PLEBLGOPES SIADHYHD INOHd 713D 20000-222S L L 2L D0V
G6TL0'E £LER1G9PE6 SIDUYHD INOHA 113D LOO00-EZ25 L LELY# DOV SSITHIM NOZIH3A #6820 £20T/EE/08 61656
SOy St'ey GOL960Z0-ANI Holvd AISHIAR SWOOHLSTY 318v.LHOd ONI S3DANFS LIS O3 LINM 40120 £2028/62/01 81666
00°08g 00'09g BLBELLEL-PLL TV LINTY MelVd CISHIAR DN SADIAMES I3 d3LINM 20190 £20Z/582/0% LL5G6
00°66%' | 0G'86%'L L9¥010L1 93|3 Pedwod ‘£egMIZ TICOW X¥iN-vHOL L1SIMHLECN L4101 YLOAQOL 280%0 £20Z/52/0% 9.556
QL YLEZ 0LyLZ'e LLGOEELEE 0y NOSVYD 38 'LS D1¥3 IS 0868 ONITYINIWNOMIANT ALID W3AIY 8¥SED £20z/sz/0L GL856
SLGk SLGY 89981201 0/LL-01/0L 6LBLELE-SL2LZ0LE ISV WBIS0D ‘ONI VS HOOIY 82200 £2028/82/01 vL5%6
LLLY 98802 02880LL01 2L “PLLPELE-GLTLE0 LA TSV W30
98802 GZ690LL0L 0/21-G0/L L SB6SYLE-9LZL201L# SV Y3400 ‘ONI WS HOOIY 62200 £Z02/52/01 £L556
2L 96E cLI6E 0¥E.56100043Y ZLGLE0#1ISD punisy gn ZIHINYE YSIHAL B NINF i#6H0 £20Z/82/0L CLEGE
00°698'L 00'599')L 28021 "LddNS YAYOS MHOM LOVEINOD ONI 'ONIYIINIONT GNY1LH0d 12540 £202/52/01 1 L8556
|ejol ¥o3yn pied Junowy adi0AU| uondposeq JOpUdA ajeq #3234y
yuegde :apodueg
€Z0C/LE/0) o1 £20e/L0L
J9JeA JOATY SBWRYIR|D WVYZS:0L  £Z0Z/0E/0%
0l :abeg Bunsi Auo)siH ¥29y9 Alyjuon IsIHyode



Agenda Item —
CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER CA-2

REGULAR BOARD MEETING

October November 9, 2023

SUBJECT Cash Position and Transfers
DRAFT MOTION Move to apptove the consent agenda
EFFECTIVE DATE November 9, 2023
PRINCIPAL STAFF
PERSON
BOARD ACTION Approve the consent agenda items.
REQUESTED
DOCUMENTS None
ATTACHED
Agenda Summary
BACKGROUND Cash and Investment Position as of October 31st, 2023, is:
General
Checking LGIP Total
Balance as of 9/30/2023 § 8,455,698 $ 19,347,156 § 27,802,854
Cash receipts 962,814 98,094 1,060,908
Payroll (275,836) (275,836)
A/P checks  (1,065,994) (1,065,994)

Bond and other electronic payments - 3
Transfers between accounts  (5,000,000) 5,000,000 -

Balance as of 10/31/2023 § 3,076,682 § 24445249 $§ 27,521,932

November 9, 2023 Agenda Item CA-2 Page 1 of 1



Consent Agenda

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER Item — 3
REGULAR BOARD MEETING
November 9, 2023

SUBJECT Project Acceptance: Accept assets constructed for the “Copper Heights
Subdivision” project, 21-5288.

DRAFT MOTION I move to approve the “Notice of Acceptance” for the “Copper Heights
Subdivision” project, to establish the project completion date and
authorize the General Managet’s signature on said Notice of Acceptance.

EFFECTIVE November 9, 2023

DATE

PRINCIPAL STAFF Joseph . Eskew PE — Engineering Managet

PERSON

BOARD ACFION The Board is requested to accept the water system constructed under the

REQUESTED “Copper Heights Subdivision” project.

DOCUMENTS Exhibit A — Project Location

ATTACHED Exhibit B — Donation of Asset
Exhibit C — Notice of Acceptance

Agenda Summary
BACKGROUND This project included 1,625 lineal feet of 8-inch ductile iron water main, 3

fire hydrants, valves and appurtenances, and 36 domestic services
associated with the privately-constructed Copper Heights Subdivision.

All public water improvements are now complete.

STAFE Staff recommends the Board approve the Notice of Acceptance for the
RECOMMENDATION “Copper Heights Subdivision” project.

Novemiber 9, 2023 Consent Agenda Item 3 Page 1 of 1



_ 90IAAG 159104 "S'N 'SOSN 'VON 'd LNIWIHONI ‘Uwes ‘Iy3H ‘us3 ‘uobalQ Jo aiels ‘039 ucbali jo ale)s Juswabeuey pueT jo neaing ‘olajy ucbalQ

S1921y Joj sapiingddy gap

‘(puepeyl) us3 ‘essoy ws3 ‘(Buoy Buol) euyd us3 ‘LI 'veder us3
‘UBQYN ‘d LNIWIYONI ‘dewlalu] ‘SOSN ‘UWIED ‘S¥IH 'UST is8ainog

uy 210 60°0 ¥0°0 0
l I I I 1 I Il I ]
f T T ¥ T ' ! ' )
Lo 900 €00 0
vLL'EL €202 '0€ 4390100
T y WO
R g | =
= = 9 : E—I° L
—_— n,.._u N w m_ m u.l _ﬂ_lr - m
B A 2 )] \mm >
ﬁ -
TOoO=_BL 3 /e ey .
H b ﬁF.u 8 BG6L D8 69b) 1D BRI B UBSRL D8

W) Sspuns

i o

a7
©

COPPER HEIGHTS
SUBDIVISION

0961 12 9

NN

Ad_94

L4

1

o6l 10 9

¥961_d; P o7V yo6l a0 8l
.mm, Am_m J¥dAD 3S | |¥
N =
A\ 5
Y T ] m,._, s
EJ _.___ e
__._._..r,. ,ﬂ.,_llLlllll, b 40
\\.ﬂ.,\\ﬂ __..__.. _._lllllllll.. _ 7

sybiey Jaddon



EXHIBIT B

Clackamas River Water

Return To: Approved By Board Action
Clackamas Rivetr Water Date:
Po Box 2439

Clackamas OR 97015-2439
Clackamas River Water

Bill of Sale or Donation
(Signifying the Transfer of Title to Ownership)

Project Name: COPPER HEIGHTS
Owner: _LGIHOMES - OREGON LLC
Asset Location: Township_28 Range_2E Section_8 Tax Lot(s) _A700

The asset to which this Bill of Sale or Donation applies is described and valued below and has an estimated life of 50 years
for the District’s fixed assets records.

Type and Size of Pipe(s) 8" DUCTILE IRON

Developer Engincering Costs for water related facilides  $ 16,080

Water Mains (including fittings): 1625 fr. § 117,046
Fire hydrant(s): 3 $_19.230
Number of Services: 36 $_53,154

Total Asset Value:-$ 205,510

"This Bill of Sale or Donation includes the following watranties:

1. That Developer is the lawful owner of the transferred or donated property, and that it is free from all
encumbrances.

)

That all bills for labor and materials in connection therewith have been fully paid (i.e. no outstanding liens).

3. That Developer has the right to transfer the same and that it shall warrant and defend the same against lawful
claims and demands of all persons following the dates of acceptance of the Bill of Sale or Donation by the District

4. 'That Developer conveys and transfers the waterlines and appurtenances in the System Improvements to the
District for the consideration of incorporating them into the District’s water distribution system.

5. That for a period of two years from the date of acceptance, the System Improvements remains in good working
order and condition acceptable to the District, and that the Developer shall repair or replace at its own expense
any work or materials that may prove to be defective during said two-year period.

16770 SE 82nd Drive 503.722.9240 Providing high quality, safe drinking water for our customers
Clackamas, OR 97015-2539 www.crwater.com



Bill of Sale or Donation Page 2 of 2

The asset herein described is hereby transferred to Clackamas River Water effective at the time of signature or as specified
by action of the District’s Board of Commissioners,

Signed this é JL Aay of /ﬂ@ﬂ’/ .20__@3

M@@ : f - i 4(..5 /JémCS

Print or Type Nmﬁt Position, and/or Sigaing for

NOTARY: OFFICIAL 8TAMP

I f-' LYLIA NIKOLAEVNA KING
STATE OF OREGON ; NGTARY PUBLIG -~ OREGON

} 8.5. COMMISSION NO. 1008308
COUNTY OF CLACKAMAS } MY COMMISSION EXPIRES FEBRUARY 22, 2025

On this A day of (\///9:// . 20%_9/) .
?
7‘ 0 ?LA 74 g Ede 6 A AN personally appeared before ine, whose identity was proved to me on the

basis of S'Iﬁ{l’/'ICIOI)' evidence to be the person whose natne is subscribed to this instrument, and acknowledged that being

the person who executed it.
WITN ESWnd m/d%zual

QIgmmn.

Notary Public - State of Oregon.

LS. My commission expires: /‘ /fé// & 4/(; A ?gg()‘%

15770 SE 82nd Drive 503.722.9220 Providing high quality, safe drinking water for our customers
Clackmmas, OR 97015.2439 WIVANLCIWATErLOm



EXHIBIT C
s> CA-3

Clackamas River Water

Notice of Acceptance

Clackamas River Water hereby accepts the project constructed in connection
with the Copper Heights Subdivision, project 21-5288, on this 9th day of
November, 2023. Acceptance of this project by Clackamas River Water shall not
constitute acceptance of any work not in accordance with the Contract
Documents, nor shall it relieve the Contractor of his continuing obligation for work

guarantee for two (2) years after the above date.

Clackamas River Water

Todd Heidgerken, General Manager



Agenda Item —1

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER
REGULAR BOARD MEETING
November 9, 2023
SUBJECT Consider Approval of Amended and Restated Intergovernmental Agreement
{(IGA) of the Regional Water Providers Consortium
DRAFT MOTION Move to approve the amended and restated Intergovernmental Agreement
(IGA) of the Regional Water Providers Consortivm.
EFFECTIVE DATE November 9, 2023
PRINCIPAL STAFF
PERSON Todd Heidgerken, (General Managet
BOARD ACTION Approve the Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA).
REQUESTED
ATTACHMENTS Exhibit A: Intergovernmental Agreement
Agenda Summary
BACKGROUND
The Regional Water Providers Consortium (Consortium) Intergovernmental
Agreement (IGA) was first developed and adopted by individual members in
1996 to endorse the Regional Water Supply Plan and form the Consortium.
The IGA was last updated and adopted in 2005. Since then, the organization
has grown and evolved requiring a need to update the IGA. The Consortium
and its members have conducted a thorough review and update of the
Consortium IGA language. At its meeting on October 4, 2023, the
Consortium Board unanimously approved the IGA with a recommendation
that Consortium members’ individual board, council, or commission approve
the amended and restated Intergovernmental Agreement of the Regional
Water Providers Consortium (2023). Currently, each voting member of the
Consortium is a signatory to the IGA. The updated IGA will require all
voting and non-voting member (Participant) approval.
The IGA has been reviewed by CRW legal Counsel
STAFF Approve the Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA)
RECOMMENDATION

Noverber 9, 2023

Apgenda lten 1 Page 7 of 1




Exhibit A

AMENDED AND RESTATED
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT OF

REGIONAL WATER PROVIDERS CONSORTIUM
(2023)



Recitals

Section 1.
Section 2.
Section 3.
Section 4.
Section 5.
Section 6.
Section 7.
Section 8.

Section 9.

Section 10.
Section 11.
Section 12.
Section 13.
Section 14.
Section 15.
Section 16.
Section 17.
Section 18.
Section 19.
Section 20.
Section 21.

Section 22.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Definitions
Purposes

Strategic Plan

Cooperation and Participants' Retained Powers

Consortium Authority
Participants

Dues

Work Plan and Budgeting
Consortium Board

Executive Committee

Consortium Technical Committee

Dispute Resolution
Duration and Dissolution
Legal Liability

Oregon Law and Forum
Public Notification
Agreement Amendment
Indemnification
Severabhility

No Third-party Beneficiaries
Merger Clause

Counterparts

|

|p-\ IH Ir-x |l—‘ |H |H Il—‘ |H o 1o oo jeo N o v B W Jw W N
= = = o o o o o

||—\
[



REGIONAL WATER PRCVIDERS CONSORTIUM

This Amended and Restated Intergovernmental Agreement of the Regional Water Providers
Consortium (2023} is entered into by and among the undersigned municipalities and districts,
hereinafter called "Participants,” to participate in the Regional Water Providers Consortium for the
Portland Metropolitan Region {“the Consortium”}).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, in 1989 water providers of the Portland metropolitan area began meeting in an
informal group called the “Regional Providers Advisory Group” to coordinate water supply
planning efforts; and

WHEREAS, in 1996 a Regional Water Supply Plan was completed; and

WHEREAS, the Regional Water Supply Plan, which contains specific recommendations for
cooperation and coordination between the water providers in this region through the formation of
the Regional Water Providers Consortium, was adopted by signatory water providers in their inter-
Governmental Agreement of Regional Water Providers Consortium; and

WHEREAS, as the regional land use agency under state law and regional charter, the Metropolitan
Service District ("Metro") adopted the Regional Water Supply Plan as part of the Metro Regional
Framework Plan; and

WHEREAS, in 1997 the Consortium was formed when 15 Participants entered into an
intergovernmental agreement to endorse the Regional Water Supply Plan and coordinate and
cooperate in its implementation, and amended that intergovernmental agreement in 2004-05
(2004-05 IGA); and

WHEREAS, the Participants desire to amend and restate the 2004-05 iGA to make certain updates
to the Participants and their obligations, and to streamline certain procedures, while continuing to
endorse the Regional Water Supply Plan; and

WHEREAS, ORS Chapter 190 authorizes units of local government to enter into written
agreements with any other unit or units of local government for the performance of any or all
functions and activities that any of them has authority to provide; and

WHEREAS, all the Participants of this Agreement are thus authorized to enter into an

intergovernmental agreement;

NOW, THEREFORE, the Participants agree as follows:



Section 1. Definitions
For purposes of this Agreement, the following terms shail be defined as foliows:
"Agreement" — Shall mean this document and any authorized amendments thereto.

"Associate Member" — Shall mean a Participant that does not have an appointed representative to
the Board and that pays reduced dues as determined by the Board.

"Board" — Shall mean the Board of Directors established by Section 9 of this Agreement, consisting
of one member from the governing body of each Full Member Participant.

"Bylaws" — Shall mean the regulations of the Consortium adopted by the Board pursuant to
Section 9.B. of this Agreement.

"Consortium" — Shall collectively mean all Participants to this Agreement acting pursuant to and
under the terms of the Agreement,

"Consortium Funds" — Shall mean Consortium funds consisting of all dues, voluntary contributions,
grant monies, and funding from any other source provided to the Consortium to conduct the
activities and business of the Consortium.

"Executive Committee" — Shall mean the committee established by Section 10 of this Agreement.

"Full Member" — Shall mean a Participant that has an appointed representative to the Board and
Technical Committee and that pays full dues as outlined in Section 7.

"Participant" — Shall mean any signatory to the Agreement.

"Plan" — Shall mean the 1996 “Regional Water Supply Plan” for the Portland Metropolitan Area,
and all subsequent amendments thereto.

"Region" — Shall mean the area within which Participants provide services to Retail Customer
Accounts.

"Retail Customer Accounts” — Shall mean all retail accounts that are billed by a Participant
{including residential single family, residential multifamily, commercial, industrial, and wholesale
accounts).

"Technical Committee” — Shall mean the committee established by Section 11 of this Agreement.

"Total average daily water use"” — Shall mean all billed water usage for Retail Customer Accounts.



Section 2. Purposes
The general purposes of the Consortium are as follows:

A, To provide leadership in the planning, management, stewardship, and resiliency of drinking
water in the Region;

B, To foster coordination in the Region by sharing knowledge, technical expertise, and
resources between Participants;

C. To serve as the central custodian for Consortium documents, data, and studies;
D. To review and recommend revisions to the Plan, as appropriate;
E. To provide a forum for the study and discussion of water supply issues of mutual interest

to Participants;

F. To promote fiscal responsibility by pooling resources to achieve economies of scale;
G. To allow for public participation in Consortium activities;
H. To promote stewardship, emergency preparedness, and water conservation in the Region

through outreach and education;

To strengthen emergency preparedness and resiliency among water providers in the

Region;
J. To ensure safe and reliable drinking water is accessible to all.
Section 3. Strategic Plan
A, The Consortium will maintain a strategic plan to guide its work, establish priorities, and set

goals for the strategic planning timeline,

B, The strategic plan will be updated at an interval set by the Board.

Section 4. Cooperation and Participants’ Retained Powers

The Participants intend that the Consortium shall act through the processes laid out herein in the
spirit of cooperation. Unless specifically provided for herein, by entering into this Agreement, no
Participant has assigned or granted to any other or to the Consortium its water rights or the power
to plan, construct, and operate its water system or perform any other obligation or duty assigned
to it under law.



Section 5. Consortium Authority

In accomplishing its purposes, and utilizing the organizational structure and decision-making
processes contained herein, the Consortium is authorized to:

A.

Adopt or revise Bylaws and other operating procedures consistent with the terms of this
Agreement to govern Consortium operation and administration, including such things as
meeting arrangements, voting procedures, election of officers of Consortium boards and
committees, notice procedures, procedures for execution of binding legal documents,
budgeting, and financial operations.

Adopt or revise, and implement an annual work plan and budget and issue annual reports and
such supplementary reports as the Consortium may determine appropriate;

Update and adopt its strategic plan as set forth in Section 3.

Collect regular dues from Participants to support the routine business of the Consortium in
amounts established as established in Section 7;

Accept voluntary contributions from Participants in amounts higher than the regular dues for
the purpose of conducting studies or engaging in other activities consistent with Consortium
purposes;

Apply for and receive grants and accept other funds from any person or entity to carry on
Consortium activities;

Expend Consortium funds, however obtained, and establish accounts and accounting processes
to manage Consortium funds, which may include utilizing the accounts and processes of

Participants for such purposes under appropriate agreements;

Execute public procurement contracts and enter into arrangements whereby Participants may
enter into a public procurement contract on behalf of the Consortium;

Execute intergovernmental agreements;

Establish procedures or recommendations for the hiring, dismissal, and review of Managing
Director, and to delegate such activities to a Participant;

Accept assignment of staff from individual Participants to conduct Consortium work and to
reimburse the Participants for the salary and other costs associated with the assigned staff;

Establish procedures and criteria whereby other governmental entities may become a
Participant in this Agreement;



M. Establish a process to coordinate Participant response to water policy issues of mutual interest
or concern;

N. Establish procedures to solicit the views of the public on water supply and water resource
issues within the purview of the Consortium;

0. Establish a process whereby water policy and water supply disputes or disagreements among
Participants may be resolved;

P. Protect Consortium rights and enforce obligations owed to the Consortium by third parties to
the extent permitted by law;

Q. Take other action within the powers specifically granted to the Consortium herein by the
Participants to exercise the authority granted in this Section 5 and to carry out the purposes
stated in Section 2.

Section 6, Participants

A, Participant Memberships: A Participant may join as a Full Members or Associate Member in
accordance with the definitions set forth in Section 1 and as further provided in the Bylaws.

B. Any Participant which, having once joined, withdraws or is expeiled from the Consortium
for non-payment of dues, may only re-join as provided in Section 7.F.

C. Additional Participants: The Board may accept additional governmental entities as
Participants into the Consortium under terms and financial arrangements that the Board
determines just and appropriate. The Board may establish standards for membership in the
Bylaws or may allow Participants to join on a case-by-case basis. Provided, however, that in
all cases, no new Participant may join the Consortium without the affirmative vote of a
majority of the Board.

D. Withdrawal: Any Participant may withdraw from the Consortium at any time by giving

written notice to the Chair of the Consortium Board. Consortium dues already paid shall
not be refunded to the withdrawing Participant. Unless otherwise approved by the Board, a
withdrawing Participant shalfl have no ownership or interest in a Consortium asset after the
date of withdrawal. Any Participant intending to withdraw from the Consortium shall make
its best efforts to advise the Board Chair of that fact prior to February 1 and the approval of
the Consortium budget for next fiscal year. Participants acknowledge that failure to notify
the Consortium in accordance with these procedures may cause financial harm to the
Consortium.



Section 7. Dues

A.

Each Participant shall pay annual dues no later than September 1 of each year sufficient to
fund the approved annual budget of the Consortium, as established by the Board,
provided, however, that the Board may establish a different payment amount and/or
schedule for a Participant upon request from that Participant or upon the Board's own
motion.

The dues of each Participant shall be determined annually as follows:

1. Total annual dues for all Participants shall be set to equal the annual budget for the
Consortium, not counting budget items to be funded by fewer than all the
Participants as provided in Section 8.C.

2 Any grants or non-dues monies obtained by the Consortium may be applied
towards the annual budget, thereby reducing the annual dues assessments
commensurately.

3. The Board shall establish the dues obligation of Associate Members at the time it
approves an entity's membership and which amount is subject to any changes set
forth in the Bylaws.

4. The total annual dues of an Associate Member shall be subtracted from the total
annual dues-based budget, described in subsection 7.B.1. [eaving a budget number
to be funded by Full Member dues. Dues shall be set so that the dues of each Full
Member reflect its proportional share of that sum based on the following formula:

(a) 50% of the dues shall be allocated proportionally based on the Participant’s
proportional share of the total number of all Participants' Retail Customer
Accounts for the prior year;

{b) 50% of the dues shall be allocated proportionally based on the Participant’s
proportional share of total average daily retail water use (in million gallons
per day} in the prior year of all Participants.

Minimum dues may be set by the Board to cover costs of adding a new Participant as
outlined in the Bylaws.

In-kind contributions may be made in lieu of dues if approved by the Board. In-kind
contributions must be tracked and guantified.

A Participant that fails to pay its assigned dues by September 1, or a time otherwise
established by the Board pursuant to Section 7.A., may be removed by the Board as a
Participant after two reminders are sent.



A

Upon a majority vote of the Board, a removed Participant (or a Participant that has
previously withdrawn from membership) may be reinstated in the Consortium upon its
agreement to pay its full dues for the year during which it wishes to rejoin (calculated as if
the entity had been a Participant at the time the budget was approved). Upon receipt of
such dues by a rejoining Participant, the Board shall add the dues payment to the existing
budget for expenditure or carry over to the following year's budget.

If a new Participant joins the Consortium during an annual dues cycle, its dues and those of
the existing Participants shall be caiculated as follows:

1. if a new Participant is a Full Member, its dues requirement will be calculated
pursuant to Section 7.B.4.

2. If a new Participant is an Associate Member, its dues will be determined as provided
in Section 7.B.3.

3. The initial year dues for a new Participant joining partway through a fiscal year will
be pro-rated to reflect partial year membership if more than halfway through the
fiscal year.

4, New Participants joining at any time after September 1 shall pay their initial year’s

dues within 90 days of signing this Agreement.

Section 8. Work Plan and Budgeting

Each year, at the first Board meeting of the calendar year, the Board shall adopt an annual
work plan of Consortium activities for the upcoming fiscal year beginning on July 1.

At the same time, the Board shall adopt a budget sufficient to conduct the Consortium's
annual work plan. The budget shall also include a calculation of the dues owed by each
Participant to fund the budget as provided in Section 7 and a table apportioning the dues
to each Participant.

The budget may include special projects that will be funded by fewer than ali of the
Participants on a voluntary basis as outfined in Section 5.E.

The Board may amend the budget and the work plan at any time as it deems appropriate
except that dues may only be increased annually as provided for in Section 7. Additional
expenditures may be permitted so long as there are identified sources of revenue, other
than increased dues, for such expenditures.

Participants shall provide to Consortium staff the data necessary to calculate the annual
dues for budgeting and planning in a timely manner.



Section 9. Consortium Board

A.

The Board shall be made up of one member from the governing body of each Full Member.
Each Participant shall also name an alternate Board representative from its governing body
to serve in case the primary representative cannot. Provided, however, that if the Board
Chair does not attend a meeting, the Vice Chair shall assume the Chair's duties rather than
the Chair's alternate.

Annually, the Board shall elect a Board Chair and a Vice Chair and appoint the Executive
Committee members in accordance with the provisions in the Consortium Bylaws.

The Board is authorized to: (1) approve the Consortium’s annual work plan and budget; (2)
approve the Consortium’s strategic plan; (3) set Consortium policy; {4) approve new
Participants; (5) initiate updates to the Plan as needed; (6} approve minor amendments to
the Plan; (7} recommend to Participants’ governing bodies major amendments to the Plan;
(8) recommend to Participants’ governing bodies amendments to this Agreement; (9)
adopt and update the Bylaws; (10) exercise any other powers and authority granted to the
Consortium by this Agreement necessary to accomplish the Consortium’s purposes.

The Board shall have the authority to designate which amendments to the Plan are major
and which are minor for purposes of determining the process for amendment
consideration. Generally, major amendment to the Plan should include revisions to the
Plan’s policy objectives, resource strategies, or implementation actions which significantly
alter Plan direction or would significantly change the implementation strategies. Minor
amendments are all other changes to the Plan.

The Board may assign such duties or delegate such Board authority as the Board deems
advisable to any Participant, Board committee, the Executive Committee, or to the
Technical Committee, except that the Board may not delegate the authority (1) to execute
intergovernmental agreements, (2) to designate Plan amendments as minor or major, (3)
to recommend major Plan Amendments or amendments to this Agreement, (4) to approve
the annual work plan and the budget, (5) to approve minor Plan amendments, (6) to
approve the admission of Participants to the Consortium, or {7) to dissolve the Consortium.

To be effective, Board actions must be approved by a vote of a majority of the Board at a
meeting at which a simple majority of the Board is present.

Section 10. Executive Committee

A

The Consortium shall have an Executive Committee, which shall be appointed by the Board
and consist of seven Board members, one of which shall be the Board Chair. The Board
shall endeavor to appoint Executive Committee members in a manner that achieves
geographic representation and representation from municipalities, special districts, and
other types of entities that form the Consortium.



B. The Board Chair shall be the Chair of the Executive Committee.

C. The Executive Committee shall serve to assist the Board in more timely and meaningful
policy action as outlined in the Bylaws,

D. The Executive Committee shall at no time act on behalf of the Board unless specifically
authorized by the Board to do so as provided in Section 9.E.

E. Except for the Board Chair, the term for each Executive Committee member shall be two
years, and individuals may serve consecutive terms if re-appointed.

F. To be effective, Executive Committee actions must be approved by a vote of a majority of
the Executive Committee at a meeting at which a simple majority of the Executive
Committee is present.

Section 11. Technical Committee

A, The Consortium shall have a Technical Committee, which shall be made up of one staff
representative appointed by each Full Member, Each Full Member shall also appoint an
alternate Technical Committee representative to serve when the primary representative
cannot. Provided, however, that if the Technical Committee Chair does not attend a
meeting, the Vice Chair shall assume the Chair's duties rather than the Chair's alternate.

B. On an annual basis, the Technical Committee shall elect a Chair and Vice Chair.

C. The Technical Committee shall advise and provide assistance to the Board on any matters
falling within the Consortium's purview under this Agreement, and may act upon Board
delegation of authority as provided in Section 9.E.

D. The Technical Committee under the provisions of any agreement or contract to provide
staff shall advise Consortium staff and assume the responsibility to draft proposed work
plans, budgets, annual and other reports, plan amendments, and implementation
proposals for submission to the Board or Executive Committee as appropriate.

E. To be effective, Technical Committee actions must be approved by a vote of a majority of
the Technical Committee at a meeting at which a simple majority of the Technica!
Committee is present.

Section 12,  Dispute Resolution
it is the intention of the Participants to limit the issues available for dispute resolution. The issues

raised must be related to interpretation of the express terms of this Agreement. No issues related
to water supply development or program development by individual Participants may be raised.



Any such dispute shall, if possible, be resolved through the use of a mandatory, but non-binding
dispute resolution mechanism established by the Board through the Bylaws.

Section 13. Duration and Dissolution

This Agreement shall remain in effect, subject to the following: (1) any Participant may withdraw
at any time as provided in Section 6.D. of this Agreement; (2) should all but one Participant
withdraw, the Agreement shall end and the Consortium shall be dissolved; (3) the Agreement may
be ended and the Consortium dissolved by a vote of the Board; (4} remaining funds shall be
distributed in accordance with the Bylaws.

Section 14.  Legal Liability

Participants agree to share any costs or damages, including reasonable attorney's fees, from third
party actions against the Consortium. The obligation shall apply to any entity that was a Participant
in the Consortium at the time the liability arose or the cause of action accrued. Payment
obligations shall be proportional to the dues of each entity. Participants agree to assist and
cooperate in the defense of such an action. Settlement of any action that would impose an
obligation to pay upon the Participants under this provision must be approved by a majority of the
Board. The ohligations of a Participant under this Section 13 shall survive that Participant’s
withdrawal from the Consortium, termination of this Agreement, or dissolution of the Consortium.

Section 15.  Oregon Law and Forum

A This Agreement shall be construed according to the law of the State of Oregon.

B. Any litigation between the Participants under this Agreement or arising out of work
performed under this Agreement shall occur, if in the state courts, in the Multnomah
County Court having jurisdiction thereof, and if in the federal courts, in the United States
District Court for the District of Oregon.

Section 16.  Public Notification

The Board, the Executive Committee, and the Technical Commiitee shall be deemed public bodies
for purposes of Oregon’s public meeting laws as provided by ORS Chapter 192. Other committees
or sub-committees are subject to ORS Chapter 192 only as applicable.

Section 17. Agreement Amendment

Amendments to this Agreement shall be recommended by the Board and shall be effective when
authorized by the governing body of every Participant.

10



Section 18. Indemnification

Subject to the conditions and limitations of the Oregon Constitution, Article Xl, Section 7, and
Oregon Tort Claims Act, ORS 30.260 through 30.300, each Participant shall indemnify, defend,
and hold harmless the Consortium and other Participants from and against all liahitity, loss, and
costs arising out of or resulting from the negligent or intentionally wrongful acts of the
indemnifying Participant, their governing bodies, officers, employees, and agents in the
performance of this Agreement.

Section 19.  Severability

If any term or provision of this Agreement is declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
illegal or in conflict with any law, the validity of the remaining terms and provisions shall not be
affected, and the rights and obligations of the parties shall be construed and enforced as if the
Agreement did not contain the particular term or provision held to be invalid.

Section 20.  No Third-party Beneficiaries

The Participants are the only parties to this Agreement and as such are the only parties entitled to
enforce its terms. Nothing contained in this Agreement gives or shall be construed to give or
provide any benefit, direct, indirect, or otherwise to third parties unless third persons are
expressly described as intended to be heneficiaries of its terms.

Section21. Merger Clause

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Participants. No waiver, consent,
modification or change of terms of this Agreement shall bind a Participant unless in writing and
signed by the affected Participants. Such waiver, consent modjification or change, if made, shall
be effective only in the specific instance and for the specific purpose given. There are no
understandings, agreements, or representations, oral or written, not specified herein regarding
this Agreement.

Section 22.  Counterparts

This Agreement may be signed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, and
which, when taken together, shall constitute one and the same Agreement.

The Participants agree that any Participant may execute this Agreement, including any Agreement
amendments, by electronic means, including the use of electronic signatures.

11



AMENDED AND RESTATED REGIONAL WATER PROVIDERS CONSORTIUM
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the signatory hereby causes this agreement to be executed.

(Signatory page can be changed to fit specific adoption process)

SIGNATORY PARTY

Clackamas River Water
Jurisdiction or Entity Name

By:

Title:  Board President

Print Name: _Sherry French

Contact Person: __Todd Heidgerken, GM____

Dated:

Address: 16770 SE 82nd Dr.,

Clackamas, Oregon 97015

Send signed agreement to Patty Burk patty.burk@portlandoregon.gov or mail to:

Portland Water Bureau
Attn: Patty Burk

1120 SW 5% Ave. Suite 405
Portland, OR 97204

12



13



CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

Agenda Item — 2

REGULAR BOARD MEETING

November 9, 2023

SUBJECT

Consider First Reading of Resolution 01-2024, by title only — Amending Local
Contract Review Board Rules

DRAFT MOTION Move the Board to Conduct the First Reading, by title only, of Resolution
(1-2024 Amending Local Contract Review Board Rules
EFFECTIVE DATE Decembey 14, 2023

PRINCIPAL STAFF Todd Heidgetken, General Manager

PERSON

BOARD ACTION The Boatd will be asked to conduct a first reading of the above Resolution by

REQUESTED title only.

DOCUMENTS Resolution 01-2024

ATTACHED Local Contract Review Board Rules -redline

Agenda Summary

BACKGROUND CRW Local Contract Review Board Rules (LCRB) were last fully updated in
2013. Since that adoption thete have been updates to sections of the rules,
but a full review and update has not occurred since 2013. Legal Counsel
reviewed and updated the LCRDB’s to ensute compliance with Oregon
contracting laws and any recent changes and provided a draft to staff for
review. Staff have reviewed and provided any additional comments to legal
counsel and those comments have been incorporated in the proposed
updated rules.
T'wo teadings of the Resolution to adopt the LCRB’s is required. The
second reading will occur at the December Board meeting. The updated
LCRB’s will go into effect January 1, 2024,

ANALYSIS

OPTIONS

STAFF

RECOMMENDATION Conduct the first reading of the LCRDB rules by title only

Novermber 9, 2023

Agenda liem 2 Page 1 of 1




Local Contract Review Board Rules

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER
RESOLUTION 01-2024
A RESOLUTION AMENDING LOCAL CONTRACT REVIEW BOARD RULES

WHEREAS, a Regular Meeting was called by the Board of Commissioners of Clackamas
River Water (District) on December 14, 2023; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of ORS 192.640, notice of said regular meeting
and the purpose thereof was given in accordance with the requirements of said statute;
and

WHEREAS, after consideration the Board of Commissioners finds that:

1. Clackamas River Water Local Contract Review Board Rules should be revised.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
OF CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER THAT:

1. Clackamas River Water Local Contract Review Board Rules, is amended to read:

Rule 100 — Introduction and Definitions
100-010 Purpose and Statutory Authority

These contracting rules prescribe public contract procedures for Clackamas
River Water (“District”) pursuant to the authority granted to the District by
ORS Chapter 264.210, ORS 279A.060, ORS 279A.065(5), and other applicable
statutes. These contracting rules may be cited as the “Clackamas River
Water Local Contract Review Board Rules” or the “District LCRBs”. The
District acknowledges and hereby intends that the model rules adopted by
the Oregon Attorney General pursuant to ORS 279A.065(1) do not apply to
procurement actions of the District. However, the District may use the
model rules as guidance, for clarification, for interpretation, or for
implementation of these rules. The Public Contracting Code and the
Attorney General Model rules will apply to the extent an issue or matter is
not addressed in these Rules.

100-011  Application of Federal Law

Notwithstanding any provision of Oregon law and these rules, applicable
federal laws and regulations shall govern in any case in which federal funds
are involved. In the event such federal laws and regulations require
additional conditions in public contracts, such additional provisions shall be



Local Contract Review Board Rules

100-012

100-013

100-014

inserted into the contract documents by the District’s procurement officer,
or their designee.

Procurement Justification

The District procurement officer shall document, or shall cause to be
documented in the procurement file for each procurement, the basis for any
procurement decisions made under these rules as soon as practical, but not
later than the completion of the procurement or project.

Non-Discrimination Policy

With respect to any procurement activity under these Rules, the District shall
not discriminate on the basis of age, disahility, national origin, race, marital
status, religion, or gender. Furthermore, the District shall not knowingly
contract with or procure goods and services from an entity that discriminates
on the basis of age, disability, national origin, race, marital status, religion, or
gender. Bidders or proposers responding to solicitations from the District
and contractors entering into contracts with the District shall not
discriminate on the basis of age, disahility, national origin, race, marital
status, religion, or gender, and further shall not discriminate against any
subcontractor in the awarding of a subcontract because the subcontractor is
a minority-owned, woman-owned, or emerging small business enterprise
certified under ORS 200.055, or a business enterprise that is owned or
controlled by or that employs a disabled veteran, as defined in ORS
408.225(1){c). In the event the District determines that any bidder,
proposer, or contractor has engaged in discrimination prohibited by these
rules, the District shall have the right to exercise any remedies authorized by
law, including those remedies specified in ORS chapter 279.

Definitions

a. The following definitions apply to these rules, unless the context requires
otherwise:

1. Addenda to the Solicitation Documents: Any additions,
deletions, or changes to the District's applicable solicitation
document for any procurement.

2. Annually: within each fiscal year. Clackamas River Water (CRW)’s
fiscal yearis July 1 —June 30.

3.  Bid: Awritten offer of a person or business entity submitted in
response to the District’s invitation to bid (ITB) or other
solicitation inviting bids.



Local Contract Review Board Rules

10.

11.

12.

13.

Bidder: An individual or business entity submitting a bid in
response to the District's ITB or other solicitation.

Bidding Period: The span of time between the date of
advertisement or issuance of the solicitation document and
closing of the procurement.

Board: The Board of Commissioners of Clackamas River Water
acting as the Local Contract Review Board for the District.

Closing: The date and time announced in the District's solicitation
document (e.g., Invitation to Bid or Request for Proposals) as the
deadline for submitting bids or proposais.

Communication Services: Those services that include, but are not
limited to, services related to information technology dealing with
audio, visual, or data storage or transmissions.

Communication Systems: Any equipment associated with or a
part of audio, visual, or data storage or transmissions.

Competitive Bidding: A price-based selection process that
complies with formal bidding requirements of ORS 279B or 279C,
as applicable.

Competitive Quotes: The written or verbal response to an
informal solicitation given by prospective vendors to the District.

Construction Manager/General Contractor: An individual or
business entity selected by the District through a competitive
proposal process to perform pre-construction services, including
coordination with the District’s design team, for an identified
public improvement project. Such individual or firm may also he
selected to perform construction services through the negotiation
process identified in the solicitation document.

Contract: The written agreement between the District and the
Contractor describing the work to be done and the rights and
obligations of the parties. “Contract” includes purchase orders or
any other writing reflecting the agreement of the District and
selected vendor or Contractor with respect to a specific public
procurement.



Local Contract Review Board Rules

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

Contractor: The individual or business entity awarded the public
contract to furnish the District the goods, services, or work
procured through the District's solicitation document.

Contract Price: The total of the awarded bid or proposal amount
as stated in the Contract, including any approved alternates,
adjusted as applicable for any fully executed change orders,
modifications, or amendments.

Days: Calendar days, including weekdays, weekends, and
holidays, unless otherwise specified. When a time period ends on
a weekend or National or State recognized holiday, the time
period shall be extended to the next business day.

Design/Build: A method of public contracting where the selected
Contractor has the responsibility for performing both the design
and construction of the specific project as described in the
District’s solicitation document. This type of procurement is
sometimes also referenced as “turn-key.”

District: Clackamas River Water, a domestic water district
organized under ORS chapter 264.

Electronic: The transmission of information and/or data by
electronic means in the format specified by the District in its
solicitation document. Electronic includes but is not limited to
email and facsimile.

Energy Savings Performance Contract: A public contract between
a contracting agency and a qualified energy service company for
the identification, evaluation, recommendation, design, and
construction of energy conservation measures, including a design-
build contract, that guarantee energy savings or performance.

General Manager: The District’s chief administrative executive
who shall carry out the procurement functions in accordance with
Oregon law and the policies adopted by the Board (See CRW
Board Policy 5.1) to the extent such policies are not inconsistent
with such law.

Foreign Contractor: A Bidder or Proposer who is not domiciled in
or registered to do business in the State of Oregon and considered
a non-resident bidder in accordance with ORS 279A.120.



Local Contract Review Board Rules

23.

24.

25,

26.

27.

28.

29,

30.

31.

32.

33.

34,

Formal Procurement: The process used by the District to procure
goods or services where the procurement is anticipated to be
more than $250,000 and the bid or proposal is required to be in
writing, signed and sealed and advertised as required by ORS
chapter 279B or 279C, as applicable.

Informal Procurement: The process used by the District to
procure goods or services when the price of the procurement is
estimated to be $250,000 or less.

Invitation to Bid {ITB): The solicitation document used by the
District to solicit competitive, written, signed and sealed bids
which includes appropriate specifications, a solicitation for price
and other applicable requirements of the District.

Opening: The date, time, and place announced in the District's
solicitation document for the opening of written, sealed bids, or
proposals. The Opening shall be public when required by law.

Personal Property: Property that is not real property as
understood under Oregon common law.

Personal Services: Those services described or defined by these
rules as such. “Personal Services” shall include professional
services.

Proposal: A competitive offer submitted in response to a Request
for Proposals, where proposal evaluation and contract award is
based on selection criteria other than price alone.

Proposer: An individual or business entity that submits a proposal
in response to the District's Request for Proposals.

Public Contracting Code: ORS Chapters 2794, 279B, and 279C, as
may be amended from time to time.

Public Contracting Officer ("PCO”): The General Manager of the
District or their designee, or any individual designated by the
Board to serve in this capacity.

Public improvement: Public improvement as defined in the
Public Contracting Code, ORS 279A.010(1})(cc).

Request for Proposal {RFP); The solicitation document used by
the District to solicit written, competitive Proposals from qualified
individuals or business entities for a particular good or service. An



Local Contract Review Board Rules

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

RFP will typically be used for solicitations involving competitive
negotiations and where price may not be the predominant award
criteria.

Requirements Contract: A contract in which the vendor agrees to
supply all of the specific goods or services required by the District
for a stated period of time.

Resident Bidder: A bidder that qualifies as a “resident bidder”
under ORS 279A.120(1}(b). “Resident Proposer” shall have the
same meaning as “Resident Bidder” when applied to the proposal
process.

Rules: These Local Contract Review Board Rules as adopted by
Clackamas River Water, including any amendments as may be
made from time to time.,

Solicitation Document: The written document issued by the
District requesting a response from prospective Bidders,
Proposers or other vendors desiring to enter into a contract with
the District to provide goods, services or Personal Services.
Solicitation documents include, but are not limited to, an
Invitation To Bid (ITB), Request for Quotes, Request for
Information (RFI), Request for Qualifications {(RFQ), or Request for
Proposals (RFP), which includes all documents, whether attached
or incorporated by reference, utilized by the District in procuring
goods or services.

Specification: The description of the physical or functional
characteristics, or of the nature of a good or service as stated by
the District in the applicable solicitation document, Specifications
may include a description of any requirement for inspecting,
testing, or preparing a supply, service, or construction item for
delivery and the quantities or qualities of materials to be
furnished under the contract. Specifications may include
performance specifications. Specifications may be incorporated
by reference and/or through attachment to the solicitation
document or contract.



Rule 110 - Procurement Policy
110-010 Procurement Policy

It is the policy of the District that the underlying assumption for all contracts is
competition, provided, however, that an alternative selection and award process
may be used where it is authorized by the Public Contracting Code, by these
Rules, or by specific approval of the Board.

It is the policy of the District to give procurement preference to resident bidders
as provided by the Public Contracting Code.

It is the policy of the District to give procurement preference to recycled goods
as provided by the Public Contracting Code.

It is the policy of the District to give procurement preference to agricultural
products or services produced and transported within the State of Oregon as
provided by the Public Contracting Code.

110-011 Rule Waiver

The Board may waive any of these Rules unless such waiver is prohibited under
the Public Contracting Code. In the event of waiver, the General Manager shall
provide the Local Contract Review Board with written justification which
addresses the following criteria:

a. The nature of the solicitation;
b. The estimated cost;

¢. A narrative description of the basis for the waiver and the reasons the
procedures described under these Rules would be inappropriate; and

d. A statement of the alternative selection process that will be used, if any.
110-012 Public Contract Exceptions and Exemptions

Unless exempted by the Public Contracting Code, these Rules, or by the Board,
all public contracts issued by the District shall be based upon a competitive
solicitation process. The following public contracts are exempt from the
competitive solicitation process:

a. Contracts made with other public agencies or the federal government,
including but not limited to cooperative procurements.

b. Contracts made with qualified non-profit agencies providing employment
opportunities for disabled individuals.
Page 7 of 31

Y MAD-AdministratiodAD-03 Board of Commissioners\AD-03-02 Board Minutes Agendas - Permanent\Board
Packet\2023 Board Meeting Summaries\Reg Brd Mtng 11-09-23\AG 2 Res 01-2024 Amending LCRBs.doc



c. Emergency Procurements.

d. Sole-Source Procurements.

e. Small Procurements {under $25,000 annually).

f. Special Procurements - Special procurements may be Class Special
Procurements or contract-specific special procurements. For contract-
specific procurements, the District shall follow the exemption procedures
authorized by the Public Contracting Code. Below is a list of Class Special
Procurements that are exempt from competitive bidding under these Rules:

1.

10.

11.

12,

13

Personal services contracts as described and defined in these Rules,
including professional service contracts. Professional service contracts
shalf include but not be limited to attorneys, accountants, auditors,
engineers, land surveyors, field specific experts, appraisers, and rate
consultants (See additional provisions relating to professional service
contract contained in Rule 130).

Distribution and Treatment system related Equipment, Repailr,
Maintenance and Overhaul.

Contracts for Price Regulated Items - Contracts for which rates are
regulated or otherwise set by governmental agencies or through a public
hearing process pursuant to law {e.g., utilities).

Laboratory Services & Equipment.
Copyrighted Materials and Periodicals.
Purchases of Used Personal Property.
Advertising Contracts.

Investment Contracts - The District invests public funds pursuant to
the District’s Investment Policy.

Communication or Information systems and service contracts - These
types of contracts include without limitation information technology
services, telecommunications, security, and other integrated systems.

Insurance and Related Insurance Service Contracts.
Grants.
Lease, acquisition, or disposal of real property.

Energy Savings Performance Contracts.

Page 8 of 31

YAAD-Administration\AD-03 Board of Commissioners\AD-03-02 Board Minutes Agendas - Permanent\Board
Packef\2023 Board Meeting Summaries\Reg Brd Ming 11-09-23\AG 2 Res 01-2024 Amending LCRBs.doc



14.  Services performed by a contractor engaged by a third party to
perform services on behalf of the third party at a location where
services on behalf of the District are necessary or desirable, and
where the PCO finds that coordination of services for CRW by the
third-party contractor with services by the contractor for the third
party would (i) result in substantial cost savings for the District or for
the public, or {ii} otherwise substantially promote the public interest
in a manner that could not practicably be realized by complying with
the requirements of a competitive solicitation process.

15.  Contracts with contractors for projects that are entered into pursuant
to and subject to the terms of a master agreement with the
contractor that was procured through competitive bidding, including
contracts established through cooperative procurement.

16.  Goods and services for which the expense will be reimbursed by an
insurer.

17.  Goods and services for which a contractual warranty imposes source
requirements, including requirements to use authorized dealers in
order to maintain the warranty in effect, when fewer than three
sources within a reasonable geographic area are availabie.

For each of the above Class Special Procurements, the Board finds that the
awarding of these contracts without competitive solicitation processes is unlikely
to encourage favoritism or to substantially diminish competition in the awarding
of public contracts and further is reasonably expected to result in substantial
cost savings to the District and the public or otherwise substantially promote the
public interest in a manner that could not practicably be realized through the
procedures described in the Public Contracting Code.

g. Contracts entered into, issued, or established in connection with:

1. The incurring of debt by the District, including but not limited to the
issuance of bonds, certificates of participation, and other debt repayment
obligations, and any associated contracts, agreements, or other
documents, regardless of whether the obligations that the contracts,
agreements, or other documents establish are general, special or limited.

2. The making of program loans and similar extensions or advances of
funds, aid or assistance by the District to a public body for the purpose of
carrying out, promoting or sustaining activities of programs authorized by
law; or

3. The investment of funds by a public body as authorized by law, and other
financial transactions of the District.
Page 9of 31

YAAD-AdministratiomAD-03 Board of Conunissioners\AD-03-02 Board Minutes Agendas - Permanent\Board
Packet\2023 Board Meeting Summaries\Reg Brd Ming 11-09-23\AG 2 Res 41-2024 Amending LCRBs.doc



h.  Contracts for employee benefit plans described in ORS chapter 243 or other
provisions of law.

i Any other public contracting of the District specifically exempted from
competitive bidding by another provision of law.

J Affirmative Action Contracts — Subject to any constitutional or statutory
limits, public contracts may be let without competitive bidding to
disadvantaged business enterprises {(DBEs) which are defined under federal
law and other regulations, or to individuals or firms certified as minority,
women, or emerging small business enterprises (as those terms are defined
by Oregon law), where the District has determined that a set-aside contract
is justified under the circumstances. The District’s PCO shall follow the
procedures as specified in these Rules for such contracts.

k.  Contracts for the procurement of chemicals relating to water treatment.

l. Contract Amendments provided that the monetary amount of the
amendment is within the amounts authorized by these Rules.

110-013 Contract Authority

The CRW Board of Commissioners delegates contracting authority to the
General Manager as it deems to be in the best interests of the District.
Except as otherwise provided in these Rules, the Board must approve any
contract in excess of General Manager’s contract authority. The General
Manager or their designee will execute all contracts within the General
Manager’s authority, unless otherwise directed by the Board.

Rule 120 — Procurement Classifications
120-010 Small Procurements

When the amount of the contract is estimated not to exceed $25,000, the
District may use any procedure designed to achieve the best prices for the
District, including but not limited to obtaining written, electronic, or oral
competitive quotes. Any amendments over the $25,000 amount shall not
exceed an additional 52,500 or a contract total of $27,500 annually including
all amendments. Oral quotations shali be documented in the procurement
file for each applicable procurement.

120-011 Intermediate Procurements

When the amount of the contract is estimated to be more than $25,000
annually, but less than $250,000 for goods and services or $100,000 for

Page 10 of 31

Y AAD-Administration\AD-03 Board of Commissioners\AD-03-02 Board Minutes Agendas - Permanent\Board
Packet\2023 Board Meeting Summaries\Reg Brd Mtng 11-09-23\AG 2 Res 01-2024 Amending 1.CRBs.doc



public improvements, the District will use good faith efforts to obtain three
informally solicited, competitive guotes. Any informal procedures used by
the District shall include the following conditions and procedures:

a.

A solicitation from a list of potentially interested vendors inviting
bids or proposals or a solicitation achieved through an abbreviated
advertised process as may be deemed to be appropriate by the
procurement officer.

The District shall keep a written record of the product or service
specifications, the evaluation criteria used for the solicitation, and
the source and amount of the quotes received.

If three quotes are not available, a lesser number will suffice
provided that a written record is made of the effort to obtain the
guotes,

Cumulative amendments for intermediate procurements shall not
exceed annually 15% of the original contract price.

Minimum contractual requirements are stated clearly in the written
materials describing the solicitation and, if advertised, in the
solicitation document.

Evaluation criteria to be applied in awarding are stated clearly in the
written materials describing the solicitation and, if advertised, in the
solicitation document.

In the event an advertised solicitation is used, the solicitation
document shall clearly state the applicable protest procedure for
bidders or proposers having standing to protest.

Addenda shall be labeled as such and distributed to all persons
expressing an interest in the subject procurement in accordance with
these rules.

If a negotiated procurement is used, the criteria used to identify the proposal
that best meets the District's needs may include but are not limited to cost,
quality, service, compatibility, product reliability, operating efficiency
expansion potential, and proposer capability.

120-012 Emergency Procurements

The General Manager may make or authorize others to make emergency
procurements for goods and/or services in an emergency. An
emergency occurs in any situation that was unexpected; affects
preservation of property, life, health or safety; and sufficient time is not

Page 11 of 31

Y AAD-Administration\AD-03 Board of Commissioners\AD-03-02 Board Minutes Agendas - Permanent\Board
Packet\2023 Board Meeting Summaries\Reg Brd Ming 11-09-23\AG 2 Res 01-2024 Amending LCRBs.doc



available for the required procurement process. For emergency items,
the General Manager shail exercise reasonable efforts to obtain
competitive quotes with due consideration given to the nature of and
time allowed by the emergency. The General Manager, or designee, shall
document the nature of the emergency and describe the method used
for the selection of the particular contractor.

The General Manager may enter into any emergency contract without
competitive solicitation, regardless of contract costs, provided that the
General Manager shall provide the Board with written confirmation of an
emergency contract award at the next meeting of the Board after the
award.

120-0132 Sole Source Procurements

The District may award a contract for goods and/or services without
competition where the General Manager determines that the goods or
services, or class of goods or services, are available from only one source.

a. The sole source determination must be based on written findings of
the General Manager, or their designee, that may include:

1. That the efficient utilization of existing goods requires the
acquisition of compatible goods;

2. That the goods or services required for the exchange of
software or data with other public or private agencies are
available from only one source.

3. That the goods or services are for use in a pilot or experimental
project; or

4, Other findings that support the conclusion that the goods or
services are reasonably available from only one source.

Where practicable, the District shall negotiate with the sole source
provider to obtain contract terms advantageous to the District. For each
sole source procurement, the District shall document the basis for the
selection of the sole source procurement method and the vendor or
contractor selection in the procurement file.

120-014 Competitive Sealed Bidding (ORS 279B.055) or Competitive Sealed
Proposals (ORS 279B.060) - Unless a procurement is exempted by the Board
as allowed by law, competitive sealed bidding or competitive negotiations
are required for purchases or goods or services estimated to be or to exceed
$250,000 annually. See Rule 120-015 for specific provisions relating to

Page 12 of 31

Y AAD-Administration\AD-03 Board of Commissioncrs\AD-03-02 Board Minutes Agendas - Permanent\Board
Packet\2023 Board Meeting Summaries\Reg Brd Ming 11-09-231\AG 2 Res 01-2024 Amending LCRBs.doc



procurement of public improvement (construction) and related service
contracts.

a. All competitive bidding and negotiation processes used by the District
shall comply with the Public Contracting Code and these Rules.

b. The District may require bid security as allowed or required by ORS 279B,
or as otherwise necessary or prudent. The District may hold the bid
security as provided by law.

¢. The invitation to bid or the request for proposals, as applicable, shall, at a
minimum, set forth all matters required to be included in the
solicitation document as specified in ORS 279B.055 and ORS
279B.060, including the evaluation criteria to be used along with any
characteristics from a qualified products list, where applicable.
Criteria not listed in the invitation to bid, the request for proposals
or a qualified products list shall not be applied during bid evaluation.

d. No bids or proposals received after the time and date indicated on the
invitation to bid or the request for proposals shall be considered.
However, the District may retain bids or copies of bids received after
the bid time and date indicated on the invitation to bid, provided
that any bid security submitted with the bid shall be returned to the
bidder or proposer.

e. In addition to other bases for rejecting bids as provided by law, the
District has the right to reject based on unreasonably low bids,
clearly unbalanced bids, or where reasonable evidence exists of price
fixing.

f. If a contract is awarded to a single bidder, the District shall award the
contract to the lowest responsible bidder whose bid substantiaily
complies with the requirements and criteria set forth in the
invitation to bid and with all prescribed public procurement
procedures and requirements. When the invitation to bid specifies
or authorizes the award of multiple contracts to responsible bidders,
those bids must substantially comply with the requirements and
criteria set forth in the invitation to bid and with all prescribed public
procurement procedures and requirements and who qualify for
award under the terms of the invitation to bid. For competitive
negotiation solicitations, if a contract is awarded the District shall
award a contract to the responsible proposer that the District
determines submitted a proposal that is the most advantageous to
the District.

Page 13 of 31

Y AAD-Administration\AD-03 Board of Commissioners\A1D-03-02 Board Minutes Agendas - Permanent\Board
Packet\2023 Board Mecting Summaries\Reg Brd Ming 11-09-23\AG 2 Res 01-2024 Amending LCRBs.doc



g. The District shall have the right, for the purpose of evaluating bids or
proposals, to apply any applicable statutory preferences described in
ORS 279A.120, 279A.125 or 282.210.

1. 279A.120 covers preference for Oregon goods and services
and non-resident bidders or proposers.

2. 279A.125 covers preference for goods manufactured with
recycled products.

3. 282.210 covers preference for printing services, binding and
stationery work being performed in the State of Oregon.

h. The District shall have all the rights and remedies for enforcement of
these rules and the procurement and contracting process as
provided in the Public Contracting Code, including the right of
debarment.

120-015 Public Improvement (Construction) Contracts —Above $100,000

a. It is the policy of the District that every effort shall be made to construct
public improvements with the least cost to the agency taking into
consideration, as appropriate, all relevant criteria such as life cycle
costing, storage capability for spare parts, market supply, compatibility
with existing equipment, or other relevant criteria developed by the
General Manager.

b. Unless modified by these Rules, the District shall have the right to
procure services for public improvement in any innovative method or
manner which serves the interest of the District and the public, subject
to the requirements relating to public improvements in accordance
with the Public Contracting Code, ORS chapter 279C. Any necessary
exemptions to the process will be on a contract specific basis.

c.  Contracts for construction services that do not meet the definition of
“public improvement” shall be procured under the applicable
provisions of these Rules and the Public Contracting Code, ORS
chapter 2798B.

d.  The PCO shall have the authority to determine the appropriate
procurement process for services relating to public improvements
whether that be through competitive bidding or through competitive
negotiation; provided, however, the justification for the selection of
process shall be documented in the procurement file for the subject
contract or project.

Page 14 of 31

YAADR-Administratiom\AD-03 Board of Commissioners\AD-03-02 Board Minutes Agendas - Permanent\Board
Packet\2023 Board Mecling Summaries\Reg Brd Ming 11-09-23\AG 2 Res 01-2024 Amending 1L.CRBs.doc



e. Advertisements for public improvement projects shall be published at
feast once in a minimum of one newspaper of general circulation in
the Clackamas County area. The General Manager may publish more
advertisements as deemed appropriate under the circumstances. For
public improvement projects in excess of $100,000, the General
Manager shall publish an advertisement in at least one trade
newspaper of general statewide circulation,

f. Solicitation documents issued by the District for public improvements shall
comply with the requirements of the Public Contracting Code.

g.The Board hereby adopts the first-fier subcontractor disclosure form
specified in ORS 279C.370, which form shall be used in the public
improvement solicitations as required by ORS 279C.370.

h.  The PCO, from time to time, may waive any bonds required by the
Public Contracting Code, ORS chapter 279C, as it deems in the
District’s best interest.

i. In addition to any reasons allowed by law for rejection of bids, the District
may reject bids that are unreasonably low, unbalanced, or where
there is evidence of price fixing.

j. The PCO shall have the authority to establish a prequalification process for
contracts or for classes of contracts. If such process is established, the
procedures, including the procedures applicable to appeal of decisions
relating to prequalification, set forth in the Public Contracting Code;
ORS chapter 279C shall apply to such prequalification.

k.Any adversely affected bidder or proposer shall have the rights and
remedies specified in the Public Contracting Code, ORS chapter 279C
after following the administrative protest procedures specified in
these Rules.

I. The District shall have the right to issue multiple contracts for any
procurement if such right is stated in the solicitation document. The
District shalf have the right to issue multi-tiered solicitations as
provided by the Public Contracting Code.

m. The District shall have all the rights and remedies contained in the
Public Contracting Code and these Rules for enforcement of these
Rules and the bidding, proposal, and contracting processes.

n. If the District intends to perform work through CRW employees and/or
use CRW materials valued in excess of $125,000 then the District must
provide justification for not contracting out those costs.

Page 15 of 31

Y AAD-Administratiom\AD-03 Board of Commissioners\AD-03-02 Board Minutes Agendas - Permanentf\Board
Packe\2023 Board Mecting Summaries\Reg Brd Mtag 11-09-23\AG 2 Res 01-2024 Amending LCRBs.doc



Rule 130 - Personal and Professional Service Contracts and Insurance
Agent of Record Contracts

130-010 Personal and Professional Services Contracts

Personal and professional service contracts, including professional service
contracts, are exempt from competitive bidding.

a. The following are Personal Service Contracts:

1. Any contract for services, other than professional services, that
requires the contractor to exercise judgment on behalf of the District
or a service that has been designated by the Board as a personal
services contract pursuant to ORS 279A.055.

2. For Personal Service contracts that do not qualify as professional
service contracts, the District shall use a documented and structured
procurement process for which price may not be the primary
consideration. The District will consider these rules when procuring
personal services.

h. The following are Professional Service Contracts:

1. Any professional service that requires a professional or state
certification or license, or which requires field-specific expertise such
as water resources planning.

2. Any contract with an agency physician or dentist, educator,
broadcaster or artist (including a photographer, filmmaker, artistic
painter, weaver, or sculptor).

3. A contract with legal counsel for legal services. For legal services
contracts, the District’s General Counsel shall, as provided by
Clackamas River Water Board of Commissioner’s policy, be selected
by the Clackamas River Water Board under any process that the
Board determines to be appropriate under the circumstances,
including a process with or without competition that such Board
determines is in the best interest of the District.

4. For professional services relating to engineering, architecture,
photogrammetric mapping, land surveying, transportation planning
and related services, the district shall use a procurement process
that complies with ORS 279C.110. Pricing information may only be
solicited or used as a criterion for the award of a contract after a
consultant offering these professional services has been selected

Page 16 of 31

Y AAD-Administratiom\AD-03 Board of Commissioners\AD-03-(32 Board Minutes Agendas - Permanent\Board
Packet\2023 Board Meeting Summarics\Reg Brd Mtng 11-09-23\AG 2 Res 01-2024 Amending LCRBs.doc



using the selection criteria specified under the Public Contracting
Code.

130-011 Insurance Agent of Record and Insurance Contracts

Contracts for insurance agent of record and insurance contracts are personal
service contracts and exempt from competitive bidding. The PCO is
authorized to execute the agent of record contract without specific Board
authority or competitive process, provided the agent of record is found to be
most likely to perform the most cost effective services at a level of
competence acceptable to the District and meets the qualifications identified
in these Rules:

a. The District shall appoint an insurance agent(s) that is (are) licensed
in Oregon to seil and provide advice on the types of insurance
provided to the District. Upon such appointment, the insurance
agent(s) shall become the District’s agent(s) of record. The District
shall have only one agent of record at one time unless the insurance
market and the Districts insurance needs require different agents for
differing lines on insurance coverage.

b. Among the services to be provided by the agent of record is the
securing of competitive proposals from insurance carriers for all
coverages for which the District has identified an interest or need
and for which the agent of record is given responsibility.

ol If the General Manager proceeds with a market search for available
agents of records, prior to the selection of an agent of record, the
District shall make reasonable efforts to inform known insurance
agents in the competitive market area that the District is considering
such selection. These efforts shall include a public advertisement
calculated to provide a broad notice to possible agents of record in
at least one newspaper of general circulation in the area where the
contract is to be performed.

d. An agent’s appointment shall not exceed a period of five years, but
the PCO may continue with an agent of record for consecutive terms
of service provided the PCO conducts a review of the services
performed by the agent of record and determines that continuation
of service is justified. Agents must qualify for appointment prior to
each period as if each appointment period were the first.

Page 17 of 31

Y AAD-AdministratioMAD-03 Board of Commissioners\AD-03-02 Board Minutes Agendas - Permanent\Board
Packe(12023 Board Meeting Summaries\Reg Brd Ming 11-09-231\AG 2 Res 01-2024 Amending LCRBs.doc



e.

All insurance contracts with a premium in excess of $5,000, not
including insurance agent of record contracts as covered above,
must be approved by the Board.

Rule 140 — Contract Amendments — Including Change Orders and Extra Work

140-010 Contract Amendments

Amendments, modifications, and change orders, within the monetary limits set
forth in this rule, may be made without competitive bidding subject to the
following conditions: {Unless the context requires otherwise, the use of the term
“amendments” includes any form of contract change, including modifications
and change orders);

1.

The original contract was procured by (i) competitive bidding or
alternative procurement process authorized by these Rules or by the
Board or unit prices or additive alternates were provided in the
contract which established the cost for additional work; and {ii) the
amendment is within the scope of the services contemplated under
the contract; or

For small procurements up to 525,000, the new total contract price,
including all amendments, shall be no more than $27,500 annually;
or

For intermediate procurements more than $25,000 and up to
$250,000, the amount of the aggregate costs from all amendments
shall not without Board approval exceed the greater of (a) 15% of
the original contract value or (b) when combined with the original
contract value, the General Manager’s delegated contract authority.
The new total contract price, including all amendments, shall be no
more than $287,500 annually; or

For public improvement contracts or other procurements in excess
of $100,000, the costs from all amendments shall not exceed 15% of
the original contract value without Board approval; or

For all contracts, to settle and compromise potential or actual
claims, demands or litigation arising out of the contract as deemed in
the best interest of the District.

a. Renegotiated Contracts. The District may renegotiate the terms and
conditions, including the Contract Price, of a Contract without additional
competition and amend a Contract if the amended Contract is within the

Page 18 of 31

Y AAD-Administration\AD-03 Board of Commissioners\AD-03-02 Board Minutes Agendas - Permanent\Board
Packet\2023 Board Meeting Sununaries\Reg Brd Ming 11-09-23\AG 2 Res §1-2024 Amending LCRBs.doc



Scope of the original solicitation document, and a determination by the
District that the renegotiated Contract is at least as favorable as the original
Contract,

b. If the amendment is the result of a Cooperative Procurement, the amended
contract may not materially change the terms, conditions, or pricing of the
original contract.

c. Emergency contracts may be amended through the emergency process if the
emergency justification still exists.

Rule 150 — Requirements Contracts and Indefinite Quantity Contracts
150-010 Requirements Contracts

The District may enter into requirements contracts whereby it is agreed that
the District will purchase all its requirements for an anticipated need at a
predetermined and documented contract price. The District will follow these
rules, as made applicable by the annual cost of each contract, in selecting the
vendor or contractor for requirement contracts.

150-011 Indefinite Quantity Contracts

The District may enter into indefinite quantity contracts with multiple
vendors or suppliers when a number of suppliers are available, but the
availability of supply varies between the vendors.

Rule 160 — Brand Name Specifications and Qualified Products Lists

160-010 Brand Name or Equal Specification; Brand Name Specification (ORS
279B.215)

a. For procurement of goods or goods and services under the Public
Contracting Code, ORS chapter 2798, and for the procurement of public
improvement services, Public Contracting Code, ORS chapter 279C, the
use of a brand name specification is allowed under circumstances
provided under those chapters. Brand name specifications may he used
if the terms “or equal” are included in the specification. The District shall
determine what products are equivalent when such specification is used.
See ORS 279B.215 and ORS 279C.345.

b. Use of a brand name specification for public improvement contracts may
be subject to review as provided in the applicable sections of the Public

Page 19 of 31

YAAD-Administratiom\AD-03 Board of Commissioners\AD-03-02 Board Minutes Agendas - Permmancnt\Board
Packe(\2023 Board Mceting Summaries\Reg Brd Mtng 11-09-23\AG 2 Res 01-2024 Amending LCRBs.doc



Contracting Code covering protests. See ORS 2798.405 and ORS
279C.460.

¢. Whenever practical the District will reference known industry standards
or performance specifications in selection of goods and services.

160-011 CQualified Products Lists (ORS 279B.115)

The District may develop and maintain a qualified products list as provided in
ORS 279B.115.

Rule 170 - Bidder Responsibility, Prequalification, Disqualification
170-010 Responsibility of Bidders and Proposers (Qualifications) - {ORS 279B.110)

a. The District shall prepare a written determination of non-responsibility of
a bidder or proposer if the bidder or proposer does not meet the
standards of responsibility as required by the Public Contracting Code.

h. Indetermining whether a bidder or proposer has met the standards of
responsibility, the District shall make the determination using criteria
identified in ORS 279B.110 and ORS 279C.375, as applicable.

170-011 Prequalification of Prospective Bidders and Proposers - {ORS 279B.120 and
ORS 279C.430)

a. The District may prequalify prospective bidders or proposers to submit
bids or proposals for goods and services in accordance with ORS 2798.120
and ORS 279C.430 et seq.

170-012 Debarment or Disqualification of Prospective Bidders and Proposers - {ORS
279B.130 and ORS 279C.440)

a. The District may debar or disqualify a prospective bidder or proposer from
consideration for award of a contract in accordance with ORS 279B.130
and ORS 279C.440.

b. The District shall issue a written decision to debar a prospective bidder or
proposer under this section. The decision must:

1. State the reasons for the action taken;

2. Inform the debarred prospective bidder or prosper of the appeal
rights of the prospective bidder or proposer under the applicable
provisions of the Public Contracting Code; and

Page 20 0f 31

YAD-Administrationf\AD-03 Board of Commissioners\AD-03-02 Board Minutes Agendas - Permanenl\Board
Packet\2023 Board Meeting Summaries\Reg Brd Ming 11-09-23\AG 2 Res 01-2024 Amending LCRBs.doc



3. Otherwise be allowable under ORS 279B.130 and ORS 279B.440.

¢. A copy of the decision issued under subsection {b) of this section must be
mailed or otherwise furnished immediately to the debarred prospective
bidder or proposer.

d. A prospective bidder or proposer that wishes to appeal debarment shall,
within three business days after receipt of notice of debarment, notify the
District that the prospective bidder or proposer appeals the debarment as
provided in ORS 279B.425 and ORS 279C.445, as applicable.

Rule 180 — Personal Property Acquisition and Disposition

180-010

180-011

180-012

Acquisition of Used Personal Property

The District may purchase used personal property for an amount not to
exceed the General Manager’s contract authority without competitive
bidding or quote if the District has determined that the direct purchase
without competitive bidding will result in cost savings and will not diminish
competition or encourage favoritism or the item is not readily available and
time is of the essence. if the purchase is in excess of the General Manager’s
contract authority, the District will seek three competitive quotes unless the
District determines either (1) that three quotes cannot be obtained; (2) the
District's purchase without quotes will resuit in cost savings and will not
diminish competition or encourage favoritism; or (3} the item is not readily
available and time is of the essence.

Sale of Surplus Personal Property

Upon declaration of surplus personal property by the Board, the District may
dispose of such property, which may include but not be limited to oral
auctions, sealed bid proposals or negotiated price sales. The PCO may declare
an item as surplus if the current estimated value is under $25,000 and may
dispose of the item in the most economical manner advantageous to the
District. If accomplished through a competitive bidding process, such sales of
personal property shall be to the highest bidder.

Auction Sales of Personal Property

Personal property may be sold at auction if the PCO determines that the
auction contemplated will probably result in a higher net return than if the
property were sold by competitive bid. The District may sell personal
property through a commercially recognized third party liquidator or any
other public process the PCO has determined results in or will result in

Page 21 of 31

YAAD-Administration\AD-03 Board of Commissioners\AD-03-02 Board Minutes Agendas - Permanent\Board
Packet\2023 Board Meeting Summaries\Reg Brd Mitng 11-09-23\AG 2 Res 01-2024 Amending LCRBs.doc



180-013

180-014

180-015

180-016

increased net revenue and the selection of the liquidator was conducted by a
competitive selection process. Alternatively, the PCO may use the State of
Oregon surplus property disposal process.

Sealed Bid Proposals

Personal property may be sold by written, sealed competitive bid. If the
current estimated value of an item exceeds $15,000, it may be sold by
competitive bid or auction unless the PCO otherwise determines.
Alternatively, the General Manager may use the State of Oregon surplus
property disposal process. if no bids are received or if a determination is
made that the market value of the item exceeds the offer of the highest
responsible bidder, all bids may be rejected, and the General Manager may
negotiate a sale subject to:

a. Appraisal or other reliable evidence of market value is obtained, and
the negotiated price exceeds the market value; or

b. General Manager’s determination that the estimated value of an item
exceeds the highest bid received through the bidding or auction
process.

Negotiated Sales of Personal Property

The District may negotiate the sale, exchange, or redemption of personat
property, including recyclable or reclaimed materials if the District has
determined that the transaction will result in increased net financial benefit to
the District and the following conditions are complied with:

a. The sale is documented by the District to be clearly in the public
interest;

b. The District determines that this is the most efficient and cost-
effective method for disposing of the property; and

¢. The sale includes the value of the property to be sold.
Documentation

The District shall maintain a record of all sales of District property for a period
of ten {10) years.

Donations of Personal Property

a. If the General Manager determines that personal property is not

needed for District purposes, then the General Manager may transfer
Page 22 of 31

Y AAD-Administration\AI2-03 Board of Commniissioners\AD-03-02 Board Minutes Agendas - Permanenl\Board
Packe(12023 Board Meeting Summaries\Reg Brd Ming 11-09-23\AG 2 Res 01-2024 Amending LCRBs.doc



such personal property, including recyclable or reclaimed materials,
without remuneration or for only nominal remuneration without
competitive bids to the following agencies or corporations:

1. Another public agency; or
2. Any recognized nonprofit entity.
180-017 Disposal of Surplus Personal Property

If the General Manager has made reasonable efforts in accordance with these
rules and no viable bids or proposals are received, the personal property may
be disposed of in any economical manner.

180-018 Sale of Real Property

The lease, purchase, or sale of real property is not within the scope of these
Rules and is covered by separate policy of CRW Board of Commissioners.

Rule 190 — Public Improvement and Construction Contracts
190-010 Bidder or Proposer Prequalification for Public Improvement Contracts

The PCO may require mandatory prequalification of bidders, proposers,
or equipment suppliers on forms prescribed by the District. When
prequalification is required by the solicitation documents, the PCO shall
not consider the bid or proposal of any prospective bidder, proposer, or
equipment supplier who is not prequalified in accordance with the law or
these Rules. A bidder, proposer, or equipment supplier who is denied
prequalification may appeal within three business days to the General
Manager who shall make a decision within ten days. The General
Manager’s decision may be appealed to the circuit court in accord with
ORS 279C.450 (5) or as specified by the solicitation documents.

190-011 Eligibility to Bid or Propose on Construction Contracts

An individual or business entity shall not submit a bid or proposal to do
work as a construction contractor, as defined in ORS 701.005{2)
(definition of “commercial contractor”), or as a landscape contractor, as
defined in ORS 671.560, unless that person is first registered with the
Construction Contractors Board or licensed by the State Landscape
Contractors Board, as applicable, and registration is required for that
type of work. Bids or proposals received from persons who fail to comply
with this requirement shall be deemed non-responsible and be rejected,
unless such determination is prohibited by federal law.

Page 23 of 31

Y AAD-Administratiol\AD-03 Board of Commissioners\AD-03-02 Board Minutes Agendas - Permanent\Board
Packet\2023 Board Meeting Summaries\Reg Brd Ming 11-09-21AG 2 Res 01-2024 Amending LCRBs.doc



190-012 Preparation of Solicitation Documents

a. Unless these Rules provide otherwise, the solicitation documents shali
contain all items required by ORS chapter 279.

190-013 Bids or Proposals Are Offers

a. The bid or proposal is the bidder’s or proposer’s offer to enter into a
contract which, if the bid or proposal is determined to be the lowest
responsive bid or the proposal is deemed to be the most
advantageous for the District, the bidder or proposer is bound to the
proposed terms and conditions communicated in the solicitation
unless the bid or proposal is withdrawn in accordance with these rules
prior to the time of bid or proposal closing.

b. The bid or proposal shall be a complete offer and fully responsive to
the solicitation document unless bidders or proposers are specifically
authorized by the solicitation document to take exceptions or to leave
terms open to negotiation.

c. Unless expressly authorized by the solicitation documents, bidders or
proposers shall not make their bids or proposals contingent upon the
District's acceptance of specifications or contract terms that conftict
with or are in addition to those advertised in the solicitation
documents.

190-014 Electronically Submitted Bids and Proposals

a. The District may authorize the submission of bids or proposals by
facsimile, electronic, or other appropriate methods.

b. If electronically submitted bids or proposals are authorized, the
District will include the following items as necessary in the solicitation
document:

1. Bidders or proposers may submit facsimile or electronically
submitted bids or proposals in response to this solicitation.

2. The entire electronic response must arrive at the place and by the
time specified in the solicitation document.

3. Bids or proposals that fail to furnish required representations or
information, or that reject or take exception to any of the terms,
conditions, and provisions of the solicitation, may be rejected and
excluded from consideration.

Page 24 of 31

YAAD-Administration\AD-03 Board of Commissioners\AD-03-02 Board Minutes Agendas - Permanent\Board
Packet\2023 Board Mecting Summaries\Reg Brd Ming 11-09-23\AG 2 Res (1-2024 Amending LCRBs.doc



4. |If requested to do so by the District, the apparently successfui
bidder or propaoser agrees to promptly submit the complete
original signed bid or proposal.

¢. Ifthe bidder or proposer chooses to submit a facsimile or electronic
bid or proposal, the District will not be responsible for any failure
attributable to the transmission or receipt of the facsimile or
electronic bid or proposal including, but not limited to, the following:

1. Receipt of garbled or incomplete bid or proposal documents;

2. Incompatibility, availability or condition between the sending and
receiving equipment or software;

3. Delay in transmission or receipt of bid or proposal documents;

4. Failure of the bidder or proposer to properly identify the bid or
proposal documents;

5. lilegibility of bid or proposal documents; and/or
6. Security and confidentiality of bid or proposal data.
190-015 Addenda to Solicitation Documents

a. Changes to solicitation documents shall be accomplished by written
addenda. The bidder or proposer shall acknowledge receipt of ali
addenda issued, as specified in the solicitation documents, either with
the bid or separately prior to bid or propaosal closing.

b. Addenda shall be sent to all prospective bidders or proposers known to
have obtained the solicitation documents. Addenda may be sent
electronically.

¢. Addenda shall be issued within a reasonable time to allow prospective
bidders or proposers to consider the addenda in preparing their bids or
proposals, but in no case less than 48 hours before the bid or proposal
closing time.

d. The District may extend the bid or proposal closing date and time to
allow prospective bidders or proposers to analyze and adjust to
changes made by addenda or for any reason deemed by the District to
be in the best interest of the District. The District shall notify
prospective bidders or proposers of the new closing date and time
either in the addendum or in writing accompanying the addendum.

Page 25 of 31

Y\AD-Administration\AD-03 Beard of Commissioners\AD-03-02 Board Minutes Agendas - Permanent\Board
Packet\2023 Board Meeting Summaries\Reg Brd Ming 11-09-23\AG 2 Res 01-2024 Amending LCRBs.doc



190-016 Pre-Opening Modification or Withdrawal of Bids or Proposals

a. Modifications: Once submitted, bids or proposals may be modified in
writing prior to the time and date set for bid or proposal closing. Any
modifications shall be prepared on the bidder's or proposer’s
letterhead, signed by an authorized representative of the bidder or
proposer, state that the new document supersedes or modifies the
prior bid or proposal, and be submitted in a sealed envelope,
appropriately marked and delivered to the District at or before Closing.
The District may accept telephone facsimile, electronically submitted,
or similar modifications if it has authorized the submittal of documents
by one or more of these means in the solicitation documents. To
ensure the integrity of the bidding process, the envelope or
electronically transmitted document containing any modifications to a
bid or proposal shall be marked as specified in the solicitation
documents.

b. Withdrawals:

1. Bids or proposals may be withdrawn by written notification on the
bidder's or proposer’s letterhead, signed by an authorized
representative of the bidder or proposer, and received by the
District prior to the time and date set for bid or proposal closing.
Bids or proposals also may be withdrawn in person, prior to the
scheduled bid or proposal closing, upon presentation of
appropriate identification;

2. Unopened bids or proposals withdrawn under subsection (1) of
this section, may be released to the bidder or proposer after
voiding any date and time stamp used.

190-017 Mistakes in Bids or Proposals

a. General: Clarification of a bid or proposal after submittal of the same
to the District because of an inadvertent mistake {e.g., mathematical
error) in the bid or proposal requires careful consideration to protect
the integrity of the competitive bidding system and to assure fairness.
Except as provided in this Rule, if the mistake is attributable to an error
in judgment, the bid or proposal may not be corrected. Bid or proposal
correction or withdrawal by reason other than an error in judgment is
permissible when allowed by law but only to the extent it is not
contrary to the interest of the District or the fair treatment of other
bidders or proposers.

Page 26 of 31

YAAD-AdministratiomAD-03 Board of Commissioners\AD-03-02 Board Minutes Agendas - Permauent\Board
Packet\2023 Board Meeting Summarics\Reg Brd Ming 11-09-23\AG 2 Res 01-2024 Amending L.CRBs.doc



b. Mistakes discovered after bid or proposal closing but before award:
This subsection prescribes procedures to be applied in situations where
mistakes in bids or proposals due to other than errors in judgment are
discovered after the time and date set for bid or proposa! closing but
before award:

1. Minor informalities. Minor informalities are matters of form rather
than substance that are evident from the bid or proposal
documents, or are insignificant mistakes that can be waived or
corrected promptly without prejudice to other bidders, proposers
or the District; that is, the informality does not affect price,
quantity, quality, delivery, or contractual conditions except in the
case of informalities involving unit price.

2. Mistakes where intended correct bid or proposal is evident: If the
mistake and the intended correct bid or proposal item are clearly
evident on the face of the bid form or proposal document, or can
be substantiated from accompanying documents, the District may
accept the bid or proposal. Examples of mistakes that may be
clearly evident on the bid or proposal document are typographical
errors, errors in extending unit prices, transposition errors, and
mathematical errors. Mistakes that are clearly evident on the face
of the bid form or proposal document also may include instances
in which the intended correct bid or proposal item is made clearly
evident by simple arithmetic calculations.

3. Mistakes where intended correct bid or proposal is not evident:
The District shall not accept a bid or proposal in which a mistake is
clearly evident on the face of the bid form or proposal document
but the intended correct bid or proposal is not clearly evident or
cannot be substantiated from accompanying documents.

190-018 Availability of Award Decision

a. Signed contract document(s), as applicable, shall be sent to the
successful bidder or proposer for competitive sealed proposals or bids.

b. The District will notify unsuccessful bidders or proposers of the
District’s intent to award a contract.

c. Completed bid and proposal files shall be available for public review at
the District following completion of the evaluation process by the
District, provided that information contained in the bid or proposal that
is exempt under the public records law, ORS chapter 192, and is clearly
marked “confidential” shall not be released to the public. Vendors or

Page 27 of 31

Y AAD-Administrationd\AD-03 Board of Commissioners\AD-03-02 Board Minutes Agendas - Permanent\Board
Packe\2023 Board Meeting Suminaries\Reg Brd Mtng 11-09-23\AG 2 Res 01-2024 Amending LCRBs.doc



providers shall not have the right to mark their entire bid or proposal as
confidential. In any case, the District shall have the right to determine
what information is subject to public disclosure and what information is
exempt from public disclosure.

190-019 Protest of Contractor Selection or Contract Award

a. Purpose: The purpose of this rule is to require adversely affected or
aggrieved bidders or proposers on the District solicitation to exhaust all
avenues of administrative review and relief before seeking judicial
review of the District's contractor selection or contract award decision.

b. Notice of award: The District's written notice of contract award {or
other contract initiating document, e.g., a notice of intent to award a
contract or purchase order, hereinafter referred to collectively as the
“award documents”), shall constitute a final decision of the District to
award the contract or proceed with the purchase if no written protest
of the contractor selection or contract award is filed with the District
within seven calendar days following issuance of the Notice of Intent to
Award as provided in the District’s solicitation. Prior to issuance of the
solicitation documents, the District may justify a shorter protest period
if it is in the public interest to do so and such justification shall be listed
in the solicitation documents. f a protest of contractor selection or
contract award is timely filed by an actual aggrieved bidder or
proposer, the award documents shall constitute a final decision of the
District only upon issuance to the protesting bidder or proposer of a
written decision denying the protest and affirming the selection or the
award. The Notice of Award does not apply to contracts awarded as
Small Procurements, intermediate procurements less than $25,000,
sole source procurements, emergency procurements, or special
procurements.

c. Right to Protest. Any actual bidder or proposer who is adversely
affected or aggrieved by the District's award of the contract shall have
seven calendar days for formal bids and three business days for
informal bids after issuance of the award documents to submit to the
District a written protest of the award. The written protest shall specify
the grounds upon which the protest is based. The period of seven
calendar days in which to submit a written protest may be shortened or
lengthened by the District, as provided in the District's solicitation
documents. In order to be an adversely affected or aggrieved bidder or
proposer with a right to submit a written protest, a bidder or proposer
must itself claim to be eligible for award of the contract as the l[owest
responsive, responsible bidder or proposer submitting the most

Page 28 of 31

Y AAD-Administratiol\AD-03 Board of Commisstoners\AD-03-02 Board Minutes Agendas - Permanenf\Board
Packe\2023 Board Meeting Summaries\Reg Brd Mtng 11-09-21\AG 2 Res 01-2024 Amending LCRBs.doc



advantageous proposal to the District and must be next in line for
award, i.e., the protester must claim that all lower bidders or higher-
scored proposers are ineligible for award (i} because their bids or
proposals were nonresponsible or {ii) as a result of the District
committing a material violation of a solicitation provision or of an
applicable procurement statute or administrative rule, the protester
was unfairly evaluated and would have, but for such material violation,
been the lowest bidder or the highest-ranked proposer. The District
shall not entertain a protest submitted after the time period
established in the rule or such different period as may be provided in
the District's solicitation documents.

Authority to resolve protests. The General Manager or their designee
shall have the authority to settle or resolve a written protest submitted
in accordance with the requirements of section (c) of this rule. The
General Manager shall have the authority to settle or resolve a written
protest for solicitations.

Decision. If the protest is not settled or resolved by mutual agreement,
the General Manager, or their designee, shall promptly issue a written
decision on the protest. For solicitations in excess of $25,000, an
aggrieved bidder may file a written appeal to the Board of
Commissioners within seven calendar days of the General Manager's
decision. The Board may choose to hold a hearing, appoint a hearings
officer, or let the General Manager's decision stand. The written
determination under any of the foregoing will be the District's final
action. Judicial review of this decision will be available where provided
for in statute.

190-020 Cash Retainage

d.

Unless required otherwise by law, the normal form of holding retainage
shall be by co-mingling the retainage with District investments of cash.
The dollar averaged monthly earnings rate that the District earns on its
investments will accrue to the interest of the beneficiary of the
retainage based upon the monthly average balance in the retainage
account. When retainage is released prior to the end of a calendar
month, the previous month’s dollar averaged monthly earning rate will
be pro-rated by day to the daily average balance of the retainage
account for the partial month.

Page 29 of 31

Y AAD-AdministratiomAD-03 Board of Conmissioners\AD-03-02 Board Minutes Agendas - Permanent\Board
Packet\2023 Board Meeiing Summaries\Reg Brd Ming 11-09-23\AG 2 Res 01-2024 Amending LCRBs.doc



b. If a contractor selects an alternative option to cash retainage, the
District will impose a charge to recover all of its direct and indirect costs
including the set-up fees.

c. The District shall hold and pay retainage as allowed or required by the
Public Contracting Code, ORS chapter 279C.

Rule 200 — Waiver of Security Bid and Performance Bond

200-010 Bid Security Regquirements

The District may, in its discretion, waive the bid security requirements of ORS
chapter 279B for contracts other than those for public improvements.

200-011 Public Improvement Contracts Under $35,000

The District may, in its discretion, waive the bid security requirements and
performance bond requirements for public improvement contracts as
outlined in ORS 279C.390 if the amount of the contract for the public
improvement is estimated not to exceed $35,000.

Page 30 of 31

YAAD-Administration\AD-03 Board of Commissioners\AD-03-02 Board Minutes Agendas - Permanent\Board
Packet\2023 Board Mecting Summaries\Reg Bird Ming 11-09-231\AG 2 Res 01-2024 Amending LCRBs.doc



INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED THIS DAY OF ,2023 BY THE BOARD
OF COMMISSIONERS OF CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER.

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

BY:

Sherry French, Board President

BY:

Tessah Danel, Board Secretary

11/14/2013
Page3iof 31

Y AAD-AdministratiomAD-03 Board of Commissioners\Al3-03-02 Board Minutes Agendas - Permanent\Board Packet\2023
Board Meeting Sunumnaries\Reg Brd Ming 11-09-23\AG 2 Res 01-2024 Amending LCRBs.doc



CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

LOCAL CONTRACT REVIEW
BOARD RULES

{04162891-6} Final Approved Eff. 01.01.2024
Page 1 of 33
¥:\AD-Administration\AD-22 Policy Statements - 20 yrs after superseded\AD-22 Board Policies\Local Contract Review Board Rules



Table of Contents

Rule 100 — introduction and Definitions .........ccooeoiiiriniiiii e e 3
Rule 110 — Procurement POLICY ... e e et e a et eaa et eas 9
Rule 120 — Procurement Classifications ........ccoviiiiiiiiiiie et a e 12
Frule 130 — Professional and Personal Service Contracts and Insurance Agent of Record Contracts.....18
Ruie 140 — Contract Amendments — Inciuding Change Orders and Extra Work ........c.cooooiiiiiniincns 20
Rule 150 — Requirements Contracts and Indefinite Quantity Contracts...............ooiiiiin 22
Rule 160 — Brand Name Specifications and Qualified Products ListS ........covviirinviiciiien 22
Rule 170 ~ Bidder Responsibility, Prequalification, Disqualification ..............cooeeiiiiiiiiii i 23
Rule 180 — Personal Property Acquisition and Disposition .......cc.ooove i, 24

Rule 200 — Waiver of Security Bid and Performance Bond ... 32



Local Contract Review Board Rules

Rule 100 — Introduction and Definitions
100-010 Purpose and Statutory Authority

These contracting rules prescribe public contract procedures for Clackamas
River Water (“District”) pursuant to the authority granted to the District by
ORS Chapter 264.;210, ORS 279A.060, ORS 279A.065(5), and other applicable
statutes. These contracting rules may be cited as the “Clackamas River
Water Local Contract Review Board Rules” or the “District LCRBs”. The
District acknowledges and hereby intends that the model rules adopted by
the Oregon Attorney General pursuant to ORS 279A.065-(1) do not apply to
procurement actions of the District. However, the District may use the
model rules as guidance, for clarification, for interpretation, or for
implementation of these rules. The Public Contracting Code and the
Attorney General Model rules will apply to the extent an issue or matter is
not addressed in these Rules.

100-011 Application of Federal Law

Notwithstanding any provision of Oregon law and these rules, applicable
federal laws and regulations shall govern in any case in which federal funds
are involved. In the event such federal laws and regulations require
additional conditions in public contracts, such additional provisions shall be
inserted into the contract documents by the District’s procurement officer,
or his-er-hertheir designee.

100-012 Procurement Justification

The District procurement officer shall document, or shall cause to be
documented in the procurement file for each procurement, the basis for any
procurement decisions made under these rules as soon as practical, but not
later than the completion of the procurement or project.

100-013 Non-Discrimination Policy

With respect to any procurement activity under these Rules, the District shall
not discriminate on the basis of age, disability, national origin, race, marital
status, religion, or gender. Furthermore, the District shall not knowingly
contract with or procure goods and services from an entity that discriminates
on the basis of age, disability, national origin, race, marital status, religion, or
gender. Bidders or proposers responding to solicitations from the District
and contractors entering into contracts with the District shall not
discriminate on the basis of age, disability, national origin, race, marital
status, religion, or gender, and further shall not discriminate against any
subcontractor in the awarding of a subcontract because the subcontractor is
{04162891-6 ) Final Approved Eff. 01.01.2024

Page 3 of 33
Y \AD-Administration\AD-22 Policy Statements - 20 yrs after superseded\AD-22 Board Policies\Local Contract Review Board Rules



Local Contract Review Board Rules

a minority-owned, wemenwoman-owned, or emerging small business
enterprise certified under ORS 200.055, or a business enterprise that is
owned or controlled by or that employs a disabled veteran, as defined in ORS
408.225(1)(c). In the event the District determines that any bidder,
proposer, or contractor has engaged in discrimination prohibited by these
rules, the District shall have the right to exercise any remedies authorized by
law, including those remedies specified in ORS Chapterchapter 279.

100-014 Definitions

a. The following definitions apply to these rules, unless the context requires
otherwise:

1.

{04162891-6 }

Addenda to the Solicitation Documents: Any additions, deletions
te, or changes in-to the District's applicable solicitation document
for any procurement.

Annually: within each fiscal year. Clackamas River Water (CRW)’s
fiscal year is July 1 —June 30.

Bid: A written offer of a person or business entity submitted in
response to the District’s invitation to bid (ITB) or other
solicitation inviting bids.

Bidder: An individual or business entity submitting a bid in
response to the District's ITB or other solicitation.

Bidding Period: The span of time between the date of
advertisement or issuance of the solicitation document and
closing of the procurement.

Board: As-used-in-theserules-meanstThe Board of
Commissioners of Clackamas River Water acting as the Local
Contract Review Board for the District.

Closing: The date and time announced in the District's solicitation
document (e.g., Invitation to Bid or Request for Proposals) as the
deadline for submitting bids or proposals.

Communication Services: shallmean-tThose services that
includes, but is-are not limited to, services related to information
technology dealing with audio, visual, or data storage or
transmissions.

Communication Systems: Any equipment associated with or a
part of audio, visual, or data storage or transmissions.

Final Approved Eff. 01.01.2024
Page 4 of 33

Y:\AD-Administration\AD-22 Policy Statements - 20 yrs after superseded\AD-22 Board Policies\Local Contract Review Board Rules



Local Contract Review Board Rules

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

{04162891-6}

Competitive Bidding: A price-based selection process that
complies with formal bidding requirements of ORS 279B or 279C,
as applicable.

Competitive Quotes: The written or verbal response to an
informal solicitation given by prospective vendors to the District.

Construction Manager/General Contractor: Shallmean-aAn
individual or business entity selected by the District through a
competitive proposal process to perform pre-construction
services, including coordination with the District’s design team,
for an identified public improvement project. Such individual or
firm may also be selected to perform construction services
through the negotiation process identified in the solicitation
document.

Contract: ShallmeantThe written agreement between the
District and the Contractor describing the work to be done and
the rights and obligations of the parties. “Contract” includes
purchase orders or any other writing reflecting the agreement of
the District and selected vendor or Contractor with respect to a
specific public procurement.

Contractor: Shallmean-tThe individual or business entity
awarded the public contract to furnish the District the goods,
services, or work procured through the District's solicitation
document.

Contract Price: Shallmean-tThe total of the awarded bid or
proposal amount as stated in the Contract, including any
approved alternates, adjusted as applicable for any fully executed
change orders, modifications, or amendments.

Days: Shallmean-eCalendar days, including weekdays, weekends,
and holidays, unless otherwise specified. When a time period
ends on a weekend or National or State recognized holiday, the
time period shall be extended to the next business day.

Design/Build: Shallmean-aA method of public contracting where
the selected Contractor has the responsibility for performing both
the design and construction of the specific project as described in
the District’s solicitation document. This type of procurement is
sometimes also referenced as “turn-key.”-

Final Approved Eff. 01.01.2024
Page 5 of 33

Y:\AD-Administration\AD-22 Policy Statements - 20 yrs after superseded\AD-22 Board Policies\Local Contract Review Board Rules



Local Contract Review Board Rules

18.

19,

20.

21.

22.

23

24,

25,

26.

{04162891-6 }

District: Shal-mean-Clackamas River Water, a domestic water
district organized under ORS Chapter-chapter 264.

Electronic: Shallmean-tThe transmission of information and/or
data by electronic means in the format specified by the District in
its solicitation document. Electronic includes but is not limited to
email and facsimile.

Energy Savings Performance Contract: Shall-mean-aA public
contract between a contracting agency and a qualified energy
service company for the identification, evaluation,
recommendation, design, and construction of energy
conservation measures, including a design-build contract, that
guarantee energy savings or performance.

General Manager: Shall-mean-tThe District’s chief administrative
executive who shall carry out the procurement functions in
accordance with Oregon law and the policies adopted by the
Board (See CRW Board Policy 5.1) to the extent such policies are
not inconsistent with such law.

Foreign Contractor: Shallmean-aA Bidder or Proposer who is not
domiciled in or registered to do business in the State of Oregon
and considered a non-resident bidder in accordance with ORS
279A.120.

Formal Procurement: Shallmean-tThe process used by the
District to procure goods or services where the procurement is
anticipated to be more than $1250,000 and the bid or proposal is
required to be in writing, signed and sealed and advertised as
required by ORS chapter 279B or 279C, as applicable.

Informal Procurement: ShallmeantThe process used by the
District to procure goods or services when the price of the
procurement is estimated to be $350250,000 or less.

Invitation to Bid (ITB): Shall-meantThe solicitation document
used by the District to solicit competitive, written, signed and
sealed bids which includes appropriate specifications, a
solicitation for price and other applicable requirements of the
District.

Opening: The date, time, and place announced in the District's
solicitation document for the opening of written, sealed bids, or
proposals. The Opening shall be public when required by law.

Final Approved Eff. 01.01.2024
Page 6 of 33

Y:\AD-Administration\AD-22 Policy Statements - 20 yrs after superseded\AD-22 Board Policies\Local Contract Review Board Rules



Local Contract Review Board Rules

27,

28.

29.

30.

31.

32

Personal Property: TangiblepProperty that is not real property as
understood under Oregon common law.Shall-have-the-meaning-as
provided-by-laws

Personal Services: Shallmean-tThose services described or
defined by these rules as such. “Personal Services” shall include
professional services.

Proposal: Shallmean-aA competitive offer submitted in response
to a Request for Proposals, where proposal evaluation and
contract award is based on selection criteria other than price
alone.

Proposer: Shallmean-aAn individual or business entity that
submits a proposal in response to the District's Request for
Proposals.

Public Contracting Code: Shallmean-ORS Chapters 279A, 2798B,
and 279C, as may be amended from time to time.

Public Contracting Officer (“PCO”): Shall-meantThe General
Manager of the District or his-their designee, or any individual
designated by the Board to serve in this capacity.

33—Public Improvement: shall-havethe-meaningPublic improvement

as defined in the Public Contracting Code, ORS 279A.010(1)(cc).

33,

34,

35,

36.

{04162891-6 }

Request for Proposal (RFP): Shallmean-tThe solicitation
document used by the District to solicit written, competitive
Proposals from qualified individuals or business entities for a
particular good or service. An RFP will typically be used for
solicitations involving competitive negotiations and where price
may not be the predominant award criteria.

Requirements Contract: A contract in which the vendor agrees to
supply all of the specific goods or services required by the District
for a stated period of time.

Resident Bidder: Shal-havethe-meaningaA bidder that qualifies
as a “resident bidder” under -as-stated-in-ORS 279A.120(1)(b).

“Resident Proposer” shall have the same meaning as “Resident
Bidder” when applied to the proposal process.

Final Approved Eff. 01.01.2024
Page 7 of 33

Y:\AD-Administration\AD-22 Policy Statements - 20 yrs after superseded\AD-22 Board Policies\Local Contract Review Board Rules



Local Contract Review Board Rules

{04162891-6}

37.

38.

39.

Rules: ShallmeantThese Local Contract Review Board Rules as
adopted by Clackamas River Water, including any amendments as
may be made from time to time.

Solicitation Document: ShallmeantThe written document issued
by the District requesting a response from prospective Bidders,
Proposers or other vendors desiring to enter into a contract with
the District to provide goods, services or Personal Services.
Solicitation documents include, but are not limited to, an
Invitation To Bid (ITB)-, Request for Quotes, Request for
Information (RFI), Request for Qualifications (RFQ), or Request for
Proposals (RFP), which includes all documents, whether attached
or incorporated by reference, utilized by the District in procuring
goods or services.

Specification: Shallmean-tThe description of the physical or
functional characteristics, or of the nature of a good or service as
stated by the District in the applicable solicitation document.
Specifications may include a description of any requirement for
inspecting, testing, or preparing a supply, service, or construction
item for delivery and the quantities or qualities of materials to be
furnished under the contract. Specifications may include
performance specifications. Specifications may be incorporated
by reference and/or through attachment to the solicitation
document or contract.

Final Approved Eff. 01.01.2024
Page 8 of 33

Y:\AD-Administration\AD-22 Policy Statements - 20 yrs after superseded\AD-22 Board Policies\Local Contract Review Board Rules



Local Contract Review Board Rules

Rule 110 — Procurement Policy
110-010 Procurement Policy

It is the policy of the District that the underlying assumption for all contracts is
competition, provided, however, that an alternative selection and award process
may be used where it is authorized by the Public Contracting Code, by these Rules,
or by specific approval of the Board.

It is the policy of the District to give procurement preference to resident bidders as
provided by the Public Contracting Code.

It is the policy of the District to give procurement preference to recycled goods as
provided by the Public Contracting Code.

It is the policy of the District to give procurement preference to agricultural
products or services produced and transported within the state-State of Oregon as
provided by the Public Contracting Code.

110-011 Rule Waiver

The Board may waive any of these Rules; unless such waiver is prohibited under
the Public Contracting Code. In the event of waiver, the General Manager shall
provide the Local Contract Review Board with written justification which addresses
the following criteria:

a. The nature of the solicitation;
b. The estimated cost;

c. A narrative description of the basis for the waiver and the reasons the
procedures described under these Rules would be inappropriate; and

d. A statement of the alternative selection process that will be used, if any.

110-012 Public Contract Exceptions and Exemptions {Rev-—perRes-03-2020-2/13/2020}

Unless exempted by the Public Contracting Code, these Rules, or by the Board, all
public contracts issued by the District shall be based upon a competitive
solicitation process. The following public contracts are exempt from the
competitive solicitation process:

a. Contracts made with other public agencies or the federal government,
including but not limited to cooperative procurementss;.

b. Contracts made with qualified non-profit agencies providing employment
opportunities for disabled individuals;.

(041628916} Final Approved Eff. 01.01.2024
Page 9 of 33
¥Y:\AD-Administration\AD-22 Policy Statements - 20 yrs after superseded\AD-22 Board Policies\Local Contract Review Board Rules



Local Contract Review Board Rules

c. Emergency Procurements.

d. Sole-Source Procurements.

e. Small Procurements (under $1025,000 annually).

f. Special Procurements - Special procurements may be elass-Class speeial-Special
pProcurements or contract-specific special procurements. For contract-
specific procurements, the District shall follow the exemption procedures
authorized by the Public Contracting Code. Below is a list of Class Special
Procurements that are exempt from competitive bidding under these Rules:

1.

10.

L.

{04162891-6)

Personal services contracts as described and defined in these Rules,
including professional service contracts. Professional service contracts
shall include but not be limited to attorneys, accountants, auditors,
engineers:, land surveyors, field specific experts, appraisers, and rate
consultants (See additional provisions relating to professional service
contract contained in Rule 130:).

Distribution and Treatment system related Equipment, Repair,

Maintenance and Overhaul. {Rew-—perRes—01-2016-9/13/2015}

Contracts for Price Regulated Items - Contracts where-for which rates are
regulated or otherwise set by governmental agencies or through a public

hearing process pursuant to law (ferinstancee.q., electricity-natural-gas;
and-title-insuraneeutilities).

Laboratory Services & Equipment. {Rew—perRes-01-2016-9/13/2015)
Copyrighted Materials and Periodicals.

Purchases of Used Personal Property.

Advertising Contracts.

Investment Contracts - The District invests public funds pursuant to the
District’s Investment Policy.

Communication or Information systems and service contracts- - These

types of contracts include m#e%mafaen—systems—sewees—aﬁd—%wameﬂ{
including;without limitation informational technology services,

telecommunications, security, and other integrated systems.

Insurance and Related Insurance Service Contracts.

Grants.

Final Approved Eff. 01.01.2024
Page 10 of 33

Y:\AD-Administration\AD-22 Policy Statements - 20 yrs after superseded\AD-22 Board Policies\Local Contract Review Board Rules



Local Contract Review Board Rules

12.  Lease, acquisition, or disposal of real property.
13.  Energy Savings Performance Contracts.

14.  Services performed by a contractor engaged by a third party to perform
services on behalf of the third party at a location where services on
behalf of the District are necessary or desirable, and where the PCO
finds that coordination of services for CRW by the third-party
contractor with services by the contractor for the third party would (i)
result in substantial cost savings for the District or for the public, or (ii)
otherwise substantially promote the public interest in a manner that
could not practicably be realized by complying with the requirements of
a competitive solicitation process.-

15.  Contracts with contractors for projects that are entered into pursuant to
and subject to the terms of a master agreement with the contractor
that was procured through competitive bidding, including contracts
established through cooperative procurement. {Added perRes—10-2023
4/13/23)

16. Goods and services for which the expense will be reimbursed by an
insurer.

15.17. Goods and services for which a contractual warranty imposes source
requirements, including requirements to use authorized dealers in
order to maintain the warranty in effect, when fewer than three
sources within a reasonable geographic area are available.

For each of the above elassClass -speeial-Special precurementsProcurements,
based-upen-findingssubmitted-by-the PCO;the Board finds that the awarding of

these contracts without competitive solicitation processes is unlikely to encourage
favoritism or to substantially diminish competition in the awarding of public
contracts and further is reasonably expected to result in substantial cost savings to
the District and the public or otherwise substantially promotes the public interest
in a manner that could not practicably be realized through the procedures
described in the Public Contracting Code.

g. Contracts entered into, issued, or established in connection with:

1. The incurring of debt by the District, including but not limited to the
issuance of bonds, certificates of participation, and other debt repayment
obligations, and any associated contracts, agreements, or other
documents, regardless of whether the obligations that the contracts,
agreements, or other documents establish are general, special or limited;.

{04162891-6) Final Approved Eff. 01.01.2024
Page 11 of 33
Y:\AD-Administration\AD-22 Policy Statements - 20 yrs after superseded\AD-22 Board Policies\Local Contract Review Board Rules



Local Contract Review Board Rules

13.0-012

2. The making of program loans and similar extensions or advances of funds,
aid or assistance by the District to a public body for the purpose of carrying
out, promoting or sustaining activities of programs authorized by law; or-

3. The investment of funds by a public body as authorized by law, and other
financial transactions of the District.

Contracts for employee benefit plans described in ORS chapter 243 or other
provisions of law.

Any other public contracting of the District specifically exempted from
competitive bidding by another provision of law.

Affirmative Action Contracts -— Subject to any constitutional or statutory
limits, pPublic contracts may be let without competitive bidding to
disadvantaged business enterprises (DBEs) which are defined under Federal
federal law and other regulations, or to individuals or firms certified as
minority, women, or emerging small business enterprises (as those terms are
defined by Oregon Lawlaw), where the District has determined that a set-
aside contract is justified under the circumstances. The District’s PCO shall
follow the procedures as specified in these Rules for such contracts.

Contracts for the procurement of chemicals relating to water treatment.

Contract Amendments provided that the monetary amount of the
amendment is within the amounts authorized by these Rules.

110-013 Contract Authority

The CRW Board of Commissioners delegates contracting authority to the
General Manager as it deems to be in the best interests of the District. Except
as otherwise provided in these Rules, the Board must approve any contract in
excess of General Manager’s contract authority. The General Manager or his
or-hertheir designee will execute all contracts within the General Manager’s

authority, unless otherwise directed by the Board. Fhe-General-Managers
contractauthorityamountislimited-by-the District's fiscal-yearunless-the
Board-has-autherized-a-contractthatspecifies-otherwise:

Rule 120 - Procurement Classifications

120-010 Small Procurements

{04162891-6)

When the amount of the contract is estimated not to exceed $1025,000, the
District may use any procedure designed to achieve the best prices for the
District, including but not limited to obtaining written, electronic, or oral

Final Approved Eff. 01.01.2024
Page 12 of 33

Y:\AD-Administration\AD-22 Palicy Statements - 20 yrs after superseded\AD-22 Board Policies\Local Contract Review Board Rules



Local Contract Review Board Rules

competitive quotes. Any amendments over the $1025,000 amount shall not
exceed an additional $12,000-500 or a contract total of $3126;00027,500
annually including all amendments. Oral quotations shall be documented in
the procurement file for each applicable procurement.

120-011 Intermediate Procurements

When the amount of the contract is estimated to be more than $1625,000
annually, but less than $150250,000 for goods and services;-and or $100,000
for public improvements, the District will use good faith efforts to obtain three
informally solicited, competitive quotes. Any informal procedures used by the
District shall include the following conditions and procedures:

a.

{04162891-6 }

A solicitation from a list of potentially interested vendors inviting bids
or proposals or a solicitation achieved through an abbreviated
advertised process as may be deemed to be appropriate by the
procurement officer.

The District shall keep a written record of the product or service
specifications, the evaluation criteria used for the solicitation, and the
source and amount of the quotes received.

If three quotes are not available, a lesser number will suffice provided
that a written record is made of the effort to obtain the quotes.

Cumulative amendments for intermediate procurements shall not
exceed annually 15% of the original contract price.

Minimum contractual requirements are stated clearly in the written
materials describing the solicitation and, if advertised, in the
solicitation document.

Evaluation criteria to be applied in awarding are stated clearly in the
written materials describing the solicitation and, if advertised, in the
solicitation document.

In the event an advertised solicitation is used, the solicitation
document shall clearly state the applicable protest procedure for
bidders or proposers having standing to protest.

Addenda shall be labeled as such and distributed to all persons
expressing an interest in the subject procurement in accordance with
these rules.

Final Approved Eff. 01.01.2024
Page 13 of 33

Y:\AD-Administration\AD-22 Policy Statements - 20 yrs after superseded\AD-22 Board Palicies\Local Contract Review Board Rules



Local Contract Review Board Rules

If a negotiated procurement is used, the criteria used to identify the proposal
that best meets the District's needs may include but are not limited to cost,
quality, service, compatibility, product reliability, operating efficiency
expansion potential, and proposer capability.

120-012 Emergency Procurements

The General Manager may make or authorize others to make emergency
procurements for goods and/or services in an emergency. An emergency
occurs in any situation that was unexpected;; and-eaffects preservation of
property, life, health or safety; and sufficient time is not available for the
required procurement process. For emergency items, the General
Manager shall exercise reasonable efforts to obtain competitive quotes
with due consideration given to the nature of and time allowed by the
emergency. The General Manager, or designee, shall document the nature
of the emergency and describe the method used for the selection of the
particular contractor.

The General Manager may enter into any emergency contract without
competitive solicitation, regardless of contract costs, provided that the
General Manager shall provide the Board with written confirmation of an
emergency contract award at the next meeting of the Board after the
award.

120-013 Sole Source Procurements

The District may award a contract for goods and/or services without
competition where the General Manager determines that the goods or
services, or class of goods or services, are available from only one source.

a. The sole source determination must be based on written findings of
the General Manager, or his-their designee, that may include:

1. That the efficient utilization of existing goods requires the
acquisition of compatible goods;

2. That the goods or services required for the exchange of software
or data with other public or private agencies are available from
only one source.

3 That the goods or services are for use in a pilot or experimental
project; or

4, Other findings that support the conclusion that the goods or
services are reasonably available from only one source.

{04162891-6 ) Final Approved Eff. 01.01.2024

Page 14 of 33
Y:\AD-Administration\AD-22 Policy Statements - 20 yrs after superseded\AD-22 Board Policies\Local Contract Review Board Rules



Local Contract Review Board Rules

Where practicable, the District shall negotiate with the sole source
provider to obtain contract terms advantageous to the District. For each
sole source procurement, the District shall document the basis for the
selection of the sole source procurement method and the vendor or
contractor selection in the procurement file.

120-014 Competitive Sealed Bidding (ORS 279B.055) or Competitive Sealed Proposals

{04162891-6 }

(ORS 279B.060) - Unless a procurement is exempted by the Board as allowed
by law, competitive sealed bidding or competitive negotiations are required for
purchases or goods or services estimated to be or to exceed $150250,000
annually. See Division-Rule 120-015 for specific provisions relating to
procurement of public improvement (construction) and related service
contracts.

All competitive bidding and negotiation processes used hy the District
shall comply with the Public Contracting Code and these Rules.

The District may require bid security as allowed or required by ORS
279B, or as otherwise necessary or prudent. The District may hold the
bid security as provided by law.

The invitation to bid or the request for proposals, as applicable, shall,
at a minimum, set forth all matters required to be included in the
solicitation document as specified in ORS 279B.055 and ORS 279B.060,
including the evaluation criteria to be used along with any
characteristics from a qualified products list, where applicable. Criteria
not listed in the invitation to bid, the request for proposals or a
qualified products list shall not be applied during bid evaluation.

No bids or proposals received after the time and date indicated on the
invitation to bid or the request for proposals shall be considered.
However, the District may retain bids or copies of bids received after
the bid time and date indicated on the invitation to bid, provided that
any bid security submitted with the bid shall be returned to the bidder
or proposer.

In addition to other bases for rejecting bids as provided by law, the
District has the right to reject based on unreasonably low bids, clearly
unbalanced bids, or where reasonable evidence exists of price fixing.

If a contract is awarded to a single bidder, the District shall award the
contract to the lowest responsible bidder whose bid substantially
complies with the requirements and criteria set forth in the invitation
to bid and with all prescribed public procurement procedures and
requirements. ;e~w\When the invitation to bid specifies or authorizes

Final Approved Eff. 01.01.2024
Page 15 of 33

Y:\AD-Administration\AD-22 Policy Statements - 20 yrs after superseded\AD-22 Board Policies\Local Contract Review Board Rules



Local Contract Review Board Rules

the award of multiple contracts to responsible bidders,; those bids
must substantially comply with the requirements and criteria set forth
in the invitation to bid and with all prescribed public procurement
procedures and requirements and who qualify for award under the
terms of the invitation to bid. For competitive negotiation
solicitations, if a contract is awarded the District shall award a contract
to the responsible proposer that the District determines submitted a
proposal that is the most advantageous to the District.

The District shall have the right, for the purpose of evaluating bids or
proposals, to apply any applicable statutory preferences described in
ORS 279A.120, 279A.125 or 282.210.

1. 279A.120 covers preference for Oregon goods and services and
non-resident bidders or proposers.

2. 279A.125 covers preference for goods manufactured with
recycled products.

3. 282.210 covers preference for printing services, binding and
stationery work being performed in the State of Oregon.

The District shall have all the rights and remedies for enforcement of
these rules and the procurement and contracting process as provided
in the Public Contracting Code, including the right of debarment.

120-015 Public Improvement (Construction) Contracts —Above $100,000

{04162891-6 )

a.

It is the policy of the District that every effort shall be made to construct
public improvements with the least cost to the agency taking into
consideration, as appropriate, all relevant criteria such as life cycle
costing, storage capability for spare parts, market supply, compatibility
with existing equipment, or other relevant criteria developed by the
General Manager.

Unless modified by these Rules, the District shall have the right to
procure services for public improvement in any innovative method or
manner which serves the interest of the District and the public, subject
to the requirements relating to public improvements in accordance with
the Public Contracting Code, ORS Chapter-chapter 279C. Any necessary
exemptions to the process will be on a contract specific basis.

Contracts for construction services that do not meet the definition of
“public improvement” shall be procured under the applicable provisions
of these Rules and the Public Contracting Code, ORS cC€hapter 279B.

Final Approved Eff. 01.01.2024
Page 16 of 33

Y:\AD-Administration\AD-22 Policy Statements - 20 yrs after superseded\AD-22 Board Policies\Local Contract Review Board Rules



Local Contract Review Board Rules

{04162891-6}

The PCO shall have the authority to determine the appropriate
procurement process for services relating to public improvements
whether that be through competitive bidding or through competitive
negotiation;; provided, however, the justification for the selection of
process shall be documented in the procurement file for the subject
contract or project.

Advertisements for public improvement projects shall be published at
least once in a minimum of one newspaper of general circulation in the
Clackamas County area. The General Manager may publish more
advertisements as deemed appropriate under the circumstances. For
public improvement projects in excess of $100,000, the General
Manager shall publish an advertisement in at least one trade newspaper
of general statewide circulation.

Solicitation documents issued by the District for public improvements
shall comply with the requirements of the Public Contracting Code.

The Board hereby adopts the first-tier subcontractor disclosure form
specified in ORS 279C.370, which form shall be used in the public
improvement solicitations as required by ORS 279C.370.

The PCO, from time to time, may waive any bonds required by the Public
Contracting Code, ChapterORS chapter 279C, as it deems in the
District’s best interest.

In addition to any reasons allowed by law for rejection of bids, the
District may reject bids that are unreasonably low, unbalanced, or where
there is evidence of price fixing.

The PCO shall have the authority to establish a prequalification process
for contracts or for classes of contracts. If such process is established,
the procedures, including the procedures applicable to appeal of
decisions relating to prequalification, set forth in the Public Contracting
Code; ORS cChapter 279C shall apply to such prequalification.

Any adversely affected bidder or proposer shall have the rights and
remedies specified in the Public Contracting Code, ORS cEhapter 279C
after following the administrative protest procedures specified in these
Rules.

The District shall have the right to issue multiple contracts for any
procurement if such right is stated in the solicitation document. The
District shall have the right to issue multi-tiered solicitations as provided
by the Public Contracting Code.

Final Approved Eff. 01.01.2024
Page 17 of 33

Y:\AD-Administration\AD-22 Policy Statements - 20 yrs after superseded\AD-22 Board Policies\Local Contract Review Board Rules



Local Contract Review Board Rules

m. The District shall have all the rights and remedies contained in the Public
Contracting Code and these Rules for enforcement of these Rules and
the bidding, proposal, and contracting processes.

n.  If the District intends to perform work through CRW employees and/or
use CRW materials valued in excess of $125,000 then the District must
provide justification for not contracting out those costs.

Rule 130 - Professional-and-Personal and Professional Service Contracts and
Insurance Agent of Record Contracts

130-010 Professienal-and-Personal and Professional Services Contracts

Personal and professional service contracts, including professional service;
contracts, are exempt from competitive bidding.

a. The following are Personal Service Contracts:

1. Any contract for services, other than professional services, that
requires the contractor to exercise judgment on behalf of the District
or a service that has been designated by the Board as a personal
services contract pursuant to ORS 279A.055.

2. For Personal Service contracts that do not qualify as professional
service contracts, the District shall use a documented and structured
procurement process for which price may not be the primary
consideration. The District will consider these rules when procuring
personal services.

a-b. The following are Professional Service Contracts:

1. Any professional service that requires a professional or state
certification or license, or which requires field-specific expertise such
as water resources planning.:

2. Any contract with an agency physician or dentist, educator,
broadcaster or artist (including a photographer, filmmaker, artistic
painter, weaver, or sculptor).

3. A contract with legal counsel for legal services. For legal services
contracts, the District’s General Counsel shall, as provided by
Clackamas River Water Board of Commissioner’s policy, be selected by
{04162891-6} Final Approved Eff. 01.01.2024

Page 18 of 33
Y:\AD-Administration\AD-22 Policy Statements - 20 yrs after superseded\AD-22 Board Policies\Local Contract Review Board Rules



Local Contract Review Board Rules

130-011

{04162891-6 }

the Clackamas River Water Board under any process that the Board
determines to be appropriate under the circumstances, including a
process with or without competition that such Board determines is in
the best interest of the District.

4. For professional services relating to engineering, architecture,
photogrammetric mapping, land surveying, transportation planning
and related services, the district shall use a procurement process that
listed-incomplies with ORS 279C.110. Priceing information may only
be solicited or used as a eriteria-criterion used-ferfor the award of a

contract after a consultant offering these professional services has
been selected using the selection criteria specified under the Public
Contracting Code.

Insurance Agent of Record and Insurance Contracts

Contracts for insurance agent of record and insurance contracts are personal
service contracts and exempt from competitive bidding. Periedicallythe

General-Managershallsolicitletters-of-qualifications-and-interestattempting

a¥a an '
2

tThe General-ManagerPCO is authorized to execute the agent of record
contract without specific Board authority or competitive process, provided the
agent of record is found to be most likely to perform the most cost effective
services at a level of competence acceptable to the District and meets the
qualifications identified in these Rules:

a. The District shall appoint an insurance agent(s) that is (are) licensed in
Oregon to sell and provide advice on the types of insurance provided
to the District. Upon such appointment, the insurance agent(s) shall
become the District’s agent(s) of record. The District shall have only

Final Approved Eff. 01.01.2024
Page 19 of 33

Y:\AD-Administration\AD-22 Policy Statements - 20 yrs after superseded\AD-22 Board Policies\Local Contract Review Board Rules



Local Contract Review Board Rules

one agent of record at one time unless the insurance market and the
Districts insurance needs require different agents for differing lines on
insurance coverage.

b. Among the services to be provided by the agent of record is the
securing of competitive proposals from insurance carriers for all
coverages for which the District has identified an interest or need and
for which the agent of record is given responsibility.

o If the General Manager proceeds with a market search for available
agents of records, prior to the selection of an agent of record, the
District shall make reasonable efforts to inform known insurance
agents in the competitive market area that the District is considering
such selection. These efforts shall include a public advertisement
calculated to provide a broad notice to possible agents of record in at
least one newspaper of general circulation in the area where the
contract is to be performed.

d. An agent’s appointment shall not exceed a period of five years, but #+is

not-exceedthreeyears—Hsufficientjustification-exists;-the PCO may

continue with an agent of record for consecutive terms of service;
provided the PCO conducts a review of the services performed by the
agent of record and determines that continuation of service is
justified. Agents-may-serveformore-than-one-appeintmentperiod:
Agents must qualify for appointment prior to each period as if each
appointment period were the first.

d_.—T

e. All insurance contracts with a premium in excess of 55,000, not
including insurance agent of record contracts as covered above, must
be approved by the Board.

Rule 140 - Contract Amendments — Including Change Orders and Extra Work
140-010 Contract Amendments

Amendments, modifications, and change orders, within the monetary limits set
forth in this rule, may be made without competitive bidding subject to the
following conditions: (Unless the context requires otherwise, the use of the term
“amendments” includes any form of contract change, including modifications and
change orders):

{04162891-6) Final Approved Eff. 01.01.2024

Page 20 of 33
Y:\AD-Administration\AD-22 Policy Statements - 20 yrs after superseded\AD-22 Board Policies\Local Contract Review Board Rules



Local Contract Review Board Rules

1. The original contract was let-procured by (i) competitive bidding or
alternative procurement process authorized by these Rules or by the
Board or unit prices or additive alternates were provided in the
contract which established the cost for additional work; and (ii)- the
amendment is within the scope of the services contemplated under
the contract; or

2. For small procurements under-up to $1025,000,; the-amoeunt-ofthe

aggregate-costsresulting from-allamendmentsshall-not-exceed
$1.000-annually—Tthe new total contract price, including all

amendments, shall be no more than $1127,0500 annually; or

3. Forintermediate procurements from-more than $1025,000 and up to
$150250,000, the amount of the aggregate costs from all amendments
shall not without Board approval exceed the greater of (a) 15% of the
original contract value or (b) when combined with the original contract
value, -the totaleontractvalue-ineludingall-amendments-may not
exceed-the General Manager’s delegated contract authority. The new
total contract price, including all amendments, shall be no more than

$275,000287,500 annually-witheut-Beard-appreval; or

4, For publicimprovement contracts or other procurements in excess of
$100,000, the costs from all amendments shall not exceed 15% of the
original contract value without Board approval; or

5. For all contracts, Tto settle and compromise potential or actual claims,
demands or litigation arising out of the contract as deemed in the best
interest of the District.

a. Renegotiated Contracts. The District may renegotiate the terms and
conditions, including the Contract Price, of a Contract without additional
competition and amend a Contract if the amended Contract is within the Scope
of the original solicitation document, and a determination by the District that
the renegotiated Contract is at least as favorable as the original Contractitis

l e ot tollow v T—

b. Ifthe amendment is the result of a Cooperative Procurement, the amended
contract may not materially change the terms, conditions, or pricing of the
original contract.

(041628916} Final Approved Eff. 01.01.2024

Page 21 of 33
Y:\AD-Administration\AD-22 Policy Statements - 20 yrs after superseded\AD-22 Board Policies\Local Contract Review Board Rules



Local Contract Review Board Rules

c. Emergency contracts may be amended through the emergency process if the
emergency justification still exists.

Rule 150 — Requirements Contracts and Indefinite Quantity Contracts
150-010 Requirements Contracts

The District may enter into requirements contracts whereby it is agreed that
the District will purchase all its requirements for an anticipated need at a
predetermined and documented contract price. The District will follow these
rules, as made applicable by the annual cost of each contract, in selecting the
vendor or contractor for requirement contracts.

150-011 Indefinite Quantity Contracts

The District may enter into indefinite quantity contracts with multiple vendors
or suppliers when a number of suppliers are available, but the availability of
supply varies between the vendors.

Rule 160 — Brand Name Specifications and Qualified Products Lists
160-010 Brand Name or Equal Specification; Brand Name Specification (ORS 279B.215)

a. For procurement of goods or goods and services under the Public
Contracting Code, ORS cEhapter 279B, and for the procurement of public
improvement services, Public Contracting Code, ORS cEhapter 279C, the
use of a brand name specification is allowed under circumstances provided
under those Chapterschapters. Brand name specifications may be used if
the terms “or equal” are included in the specification. The District shall
determine what products are equivalent when such specification is used.
See ORS 279B.215 and ORS 279C.345.

b. Use of a brand name specification for public improvement contracts may
be subject to review as provided in the applicable sections of the Public
Contracting Code covering protests. See ORS 279B.405 and ORS 279C.460.

c. Whenever practical the distriet-District will reference known industry
standards or performance specifications in selection of goods and services.

160-011 Qualified Products Lists (ORS 279B.115)

{04162891-6 ) Final Approved Eff. 01.01.2024
Page 22 of 33
Y:\AD-Administration\AD-22 Policy Statements - 20 yrs after superseded\AD-22 Board Policies\Local Contract Review Board Rules



Local Contract Review Board Rules

The District may develop and maintain a qualified products list as provided in
ORS 279B.115.

Rule 170 - Bidder Responsibility, Prequalification, Disqualification
170-010 Responsibility of Bidders and Proposers (Qualifications) - (ORS 279B.110)

a. The District shall prepare a written determination of non-responsibility of a
bidder or proposer if the bidder or proposer does not meet the standards of
responsibility as required by the Public Contracting Code.

b. In determining whether a bidder or proposer has met the standards of
responsibility, the District shall make the determination using criteria
identified in ORS 279B.110 and ORS 279C.375, as applicable.

170-011 Prequalification of Prospective Bidders and Proposers; - (ORS 279B.120 and
ORS 279C.430)

a. The District may prequalify prospective bidders or proposers to submit bids
or proposals for goods and services in accordance with ORS 279B.120 and
ORS 279C.430 et seq.

170-012 Debarment or Disqualification of Prospective Bidders and Proposers - (ORS
279B.130 and ORS 279C.440)

a. The District may debar or disqualify a prospective bidder or proposer from
consideration for award of a contract in accordance with ORS 279B.130 and
ORS 279C.440.

b. The District shall issue a written decision to debar a prospective bidder or
proposer under this section. The decision must:

1. State the reasons for the action taken; and

2 Inform the debarred prospective bidder or prosper of the appeal
rights of the prospective bidder or proposer under the applicable
provisions of the Public Contracting Code; and-

3. Otherwise be allowable under ORS 279B.130 and ORS 279B.440.

4-c.A copy of the decision issued under subsection (3b) of this section must be
mailed or otherwise furnished immediately to the debarred prospective
bidder or proposer.

{04162891-6 ) Final Approved Eff. 01.01.2024

Page 23 of 33
Y:\AD-Administration\AD-22 Policy Statements - 20 yrs after superseded\AD-22 Board Policies\Local Contract Review Board Rules



Local Contract Review Board Rules

5.d. A prospective bidder or proposer that wishes to appeal debarment shall,
within three business days after receipt of notice of debarment, notify the
District that the prospective bidder or proposer appeals the debarment as
provided in ORS 279B.425 and ORS 279C.445, as applicable.

Rule 180 — Personal Property Acquisition and Disposition

180-010

180-011

180-012

{04162891-6 }

Acquisition of Used Personal Property

Forpurposes-ofthese Rules,propertyshall-be-deemed-to-be“personal
propertyif-itis-elassified-assueh-vnderOregentaw—The District may

purchase used personal property for an amount not to exceed the General
Manager’s contract authority without competitive bidding or quote if the
District has determined that the direct purchase without competitive bidding
will result in cost savings and will not diminish competition or encourage
favoritism or the item is not readily available and time is of the essence. If the
purchase is in excess of the General Manager’s contract authority, the District
will seek three competitive quotes unless the District determines either (1)
that three quotes cannot be obtained; (2) -erthe District's purchase without
quotes will result in cost savings and will not diminish competition or
encourage favoritism; or (3) the item is not readily available and time is of the
essence.

Sale of Surplus Personal Property

Upon declaration of surplus personal property by the Board, the District may
dispose of such property, which may include but not be limited to oral auctions,
sealed bid proposals or negotiated price sales. The PCO may declare an item as
surplus if the current estimated value is under $1025,000 and may dispose of
the item in the most economical manner advantageous to the District. If
accomplished through a competitive bidding process, such sales of personal
property shall be to the highest bidder.

Auction Sales of Personal Property

Personal property may be sold at auction if the PCO determines that the
auction contemplated will probably result in a higher net return than if the
property were sold by competitive bid. The District may sell personal property
through a commercially recognized third party liquidator or any other public
process the PCO has determined results in_or will result in increased net
revenue and the selection of the liquidator was conducted by a competitive
selection process. Alternatively, the PCO may use the State of Oregon surplus
property disposal process.

Final Approved Eff. 01.01.2024

Page 24 of 33

¥:\AD-Administration\AD-22 Policy Statements - 20 yrs after superseded\AD-22 Board Policies\Local Contract Review Board Rules



Local Contract Review Board Rules

180-013

180-014

180-015

180-016

{04162891-6}

Sealed Bid Proposals

Personal property may be sold by written, sealed competitive bid. If the current
estimated value of an item exceeds $105,000, it may be sold by competitive bid
or auction unless the PCO otherwise determines. Alternatively, the General
Manager may use the State of Oregon surplus property disposal process. If no
bids are received or if a determination is made that the market value of the
item exceeds the offer of the highest responsible bidder, all bids may be
rejected, and the General Manager may negotiate a sale subject to:

a. Appraisal or other reliable evidence of market value is obtained, and the
negotiated price exceeds the market value; or

b. General Manager’s determination that the estimated value of an item
exceeds the highest bid received through the bidding or auction process.

Negotiated Sales of Personal Property

The District may negotiate the sale, exchange, or redemption of personal
property, including recyclable or reclaimed materials if the District has
determined that a-negetiatedsalethe transaction will result in increased net
financial revenue-benefit to the District and the following conditions are
complied with:

a. The sale is documented by the District to be clearly in the public
interest;

b. The District determines that this is the most efficient and cost-effective
method for disposing of the property; and-

c. The sale includes the value of the property to be sold.
Documentation

The District shall maintain a record of all sales of District property for a period of

ten (10) years.

Donations of Personal Property

a. If the General Manager determines that the-personal property is not
needed for District purposes;, then the General Manager may transfer
such personal property, including recyclable or reclaimed materials,
without remuneration or for only nominal remuneration without
competitive bids to the following agencies or corporations:

Final Approved Eff. 01.01.2024
Page 25 of 33

Y:\AD-Administration\AD-22 Policy Statements - 20 yrs after superseded\AD-22 Board Policies\Local Contract Review Board Rules



Local Contract Review Board Rules

1. Another public agency; or
2. Any recognized nonprofit ageneyentity.
180-017 Disposal of Surplus Personal Property

Onece-lf the General Manager has made reasonable efforts in accordance with
these rules and no viable bids or proposals are received, the personal property
may be disposed of in any economical manner.

180-018 Sale of Real Property

The lease, purchase, or sale of real property is not within the scope of these
Rules and is covered by separate policy of CRW Board of Commissioners.

Rule 190 - Public Improvement and Construction Contracts
190-010 Bidder or Proposer Prequalification for Public Improvement Contracts

The PCO may require mandatory prequalification of bidders, proposers, or
equipment suppliers on forms prescribed by the District. When
prequalification is required by the solicitation documents, the PCO shall not
consider the bid or proposal of any prospective bidder, proposer, or
equipment supplier who is not prequalified in accordance with the law or
these Rules. A bidder, proposer, or equipment supplier who is denied
prequalification may appeal within three business days to the General
Manager who shall make a decision within ten days. The General
Manager’s decision may be appealed to the cEircuit court in accord with
ORS 279C.450 (5) or as specified by the solicitation documents.

190-011 Eligibility to Bid or Propose on Construction Contracts

An individual or business entity shall not submit a bid or proposal to do
work as a construction “contractor,” as defined in ORS 701.005(2)
(definition of “commercial contractor”), or as a landscape contractor, as
defined in ORS 671.560, unless that person is first registered with the
Construction Contractors Board or licensed by the State Landscape
Contractors Board, as applicable, and registration is required for that type
of work. Bids or proposals received from persons who fail to comply with
this requirement shall be deemed non-responsible and be rejected, unless
such determination is prohibited by federal law.

190-012 Preparation of Solicitation Documents

{04162891-6 } Final Approved Eff. 01.01.2024
Page 26 of 33
Y:\AD-Administration\AD-22 Policy Statements - 20 yrs after superseded\AD-22 Board Policies\Local Contract Review Board Rules



Local Contract Review Board Rules

a.

Unless these Rules provide otherwise, the solicitation documents shall
contain all items required by ORS chapter 279.

190-013 Bids or Proposals Are Offers

a. The bid or proposal is the bidder’s or proposer’s offer to enter into a

contract which, if the bid or proposal is determined to be the lowest
responsive bid or the proposal is deemed to be the most advantageous
for the District, the bidder or proposer is bound to the proposed terms
and conditions communicated in the solicitation unless the bid or
proposal is withdrawn in accordance with these rules prior to the time
of bid or proposal closing.

The bid or proposal shall be a complete offer and fully responsive to the
solicitation document unless bidders or proposers are specifically
authorized by the solicitation document to take exceptions or to leave
terms open to negotiation.

Unless expressly authorized by the solicitation documents, bidders or
proposers shall not make their bids or proposals contingent upon the
District's acceptance of specifications or contract terms that conflict with
or are in addition to those advertised in the solicitation documents.

190-014 Facsimile-and-Electronically Submitted Bids and Proposals

{04162891-6 )

d.

The District may authorize the submission of bids or proposals by
facsimile, electronic, or other appropriate methods.

If electronically submitted bids or proposals are authorized, the District
will include the following items as necessary in the solicitation
document:

1. Bidders or proposers may submit facsimile or electronically
submitted bids or proposals in response to this solicitation.

2. The entire electronic response must arrive at the place and by the
time specified in the solicitation document.

3. Bids or proposals that fail to furnish required representations or
information, or that reject or take exception to any of the terms,
conditions, and provisions of the solicitation, may be rejected and
excluded from consideration.

4, If requested to do so by the District, the apparently successful bidder
or proposer agrees to promptly submit the complete original signed
bid or proposal.

Final Approved Eff. 01.01.2024
Page 27 of 33

Y:\AD-Administration\AD-22 Policy Statements - 20 yrs after superseded\AD-22 Board Policies\Local Contract Review Board Rules



Local Contract Review Board Rules

c. Ifthe bidder or proposer chooses to submit a facsimile or electronic bid
or proposal, the District will not be responsible for any failure
attributable to the transmission or receipt of the facsimile or electronic
bid or proposal including, but not limited to, the following:

=

Receipt of garbled or incomplete bid or proposal documents;-

2. Incompatibility, availability or condition between the sending and
receiving equipment or software;:

3. Delay in transmission or receipt of bid or proposal documents;-

4. Failure of the bidder or proposer to properly identify the bid or
proposal documents;-

5. lllegibility of bid or proposal documents; and/or-
6. Security and confidentiality of bid or proposal data.
190-015 Addenda to Solicitation Documents

a. Changes to solicitation documents shall be accomplished by written
addenda. The bidder or proposer shall acknowledge receipt of all
addenda issued, as specified in the solicitation documents, either with
the bid or separately prior to bid or proposal closing.

b. Addenda shall be sent to all prospective bidders or proposers known to
have obtained the solicitation documents. Addenda may be sent
electronically.

c. Addenda shall be issued within a reasonable time to allow prospective
bidders or proposers to consider the addenda in preparing their bids or
proposals, but in no case less than 48 hours before the bid or proposal
closing time.

d. The District may extend the bid or proposal closing date and time to
allow prospective bidders or proposers to analyze and adjust to changes
made by addenda or for any reason deemed by the District to be in the
best interest of the District. The District shall notify prospective bidders
or proposers of the new closing date and time either in the addendum or
in writing accompanying the addendum.

190-016 Pre-Opening Modification or Withdrawal of Bids or Proposals

a. Modifications: Once submitted, bids or proposals may be modified in
writing prior to the time and date set for bid or proposal closing. Any

{04162891-6 ) Final Approved Eff. 01.01.2024
Page 28 of 33
Y:\AD-Administration\AD-22 Policy Statements - 20 yrs after superseded\AD-22 Board Policies\Local Contract Review Board Rules



Local Contract Review Board Rules

b.

modifications shall be prepared on the bidder's or proposer’s letterhead,
signed by an authorized representative of the bidder or proposer, state
that the new document supersedes or modifies the prior bid or proposal,
and be submitted in a sealed envelope, appropriately marked and
delivered to the District at or before Closing. The District may accept
telephone facsimile, electronically submitted, or similar modifications; if
it has authorized the submittal of documents by one or more of these
means in the solicitation documents. To ensure the integrity of the
bidding process, the envelope or electronically transmitted document
containing any modifications to a bid or proposal shall be marked as
specified in the solicitation documents.

Withdrawals:

1. Bids or proposals may be withdrawn by written notification on the
bidder's or proposer’s letterhead, signed by an authorized
representative of the bidder or proposer, and received by the District
prior to the time and date set for bid or proposai closing. Bids or
proposals also may be withdrawn in persan, prior to the scheduled
bid or proposal closing, upon presentation of appropriate
identification;

2. Unopened bids or proposals withdrawn under subsection (1) of this
section, may be released to the bidder or proposer after voiding any
date and time stamp used.

190-017 Mistakes in Bids or Proposals

a.

{04162891-5)

General: Clarification of a bid or proposal after submittal of the same to
the District because of an inadvertent mistake (e.g., mathematical error)
in the bid or proposal requires careful consideration to protect the
integrity of the competitive bidding system; and to assure fairness.
Except as provided in this Rule, if the mistake is attributable to an errorin
judgment, the bid or proposal may not be corrected. Bid or proposal
correction or withdrawal by reason other than an error in judgment is
permissible when allowed by law but only to the extent it is not contrary
to the interest of the District or the fair treatment of other bidders or
proposers.

Mistakes discovered after bid or proposal closing but before award: This
subsection prescribes procedures to be applied in situations where
mistakes in bids or proposals due to other than errors in judgment are
discovered after the time and date set for bid or proposal closing but
before award:

Final Approved Eff, 01.01,2024
Page 29 of 33

Y\AD-Administration\AD-22 Policy Statements - 20 yrs after superseded\AD-22 Board Policles\Loca! Contract Review Board Rules



Local Contract Review Board Rules

1. Minor informalities. Minor informalities are matters of form rather
than substance that are evident from the bid or proposal
documents, or are insignificant mistakes that can be waived or
corrected promptly without prejudice to other bidders, proposers or
the District; that is, the informality does not affect price, quantity,
quality, delivery, or contractual conditions except in the case of
informalities involving unit price.

2. Mistakes where intended correct bid or proposal is evident: If the
mistake and the intended correct bid or proposal item are clearly
evident on the face of the bid form or proposal document, or can be
substantiated from accompanying documents, the District may
accept the bid or proposal. Examples of mistakes that may be clearly
evident on the bid or proposal document are typographical errors,
errors in extending unit prices, transposition errors, and
mathematical errors. Mistakes that are clearly evident on the face of
the bid form or proposal document also may include instances in
which the intended correct bid or proposal item is made clearly
evident by simple arithmetic calculations.

3. Mistakes where intended correct bid or proposal is not evident: The
District shall not accept a bid or proposal in which a mistake is clearly
evident on the face of the bid form or proposal document but the
intended correct bid or proposal is not clearly evident or cannot be
substantiated from accompanying documents.

190-018 Availability of Award Decision

a.

Signed contract document(s), as applicable, shall be sent to the
successful bidder or proposer for competitive sealed proposals or bids.

The District will notify unsuccessful bidders or proposers of the District’s
intent to award a contract.

Completed bid and proposal files shall be available for public review at
the District following completion of the evaluation process by the District,
provided that information contained in the bid or proposal that is exempt
under the public records law, ORS chapter 192, and is clearly marked
“confidential” shall not be released to the public. Vendors or providers
shall not have the right to mark their entire bid or proposal as
confidential. In any case, the District shall have the right to determine
what information is subject to public disclosure and what information is
exempt from public disclosure.

190-019 Protest of Contractor Selection or Contract Award

{04162891-6 }

Final Approved Eff. 01.01.2024
Page 30 of 33

Y:\AD-Administration\AD-22 Policy Statements - 20 yrs after superseded\AD-22 Board Policies\Local Contract Review Board Rules



Local Contract Review Board Rules

{04162891-6 }

a.

Purpose: The purpose of this rule is to require adversely affected or
aggrieved bidders or proposers on the District solicitation to exhaust all
avenues of administrative review and relief before seeking judicial review
of the District's contractor selection or contract award decision.

Notice of award: The District's written notice of contract award (or other
contract initiating document, e.g., a notice of intent to award a contract
or purchase order, hereinafter referred to collectively as the “award
documents”), shall constitute a final decision of the District to award the
contract or proceed with the purchase if no written protest of the
contractor selection or contract award is filed with the District within
seven calendar days following issuance of the Notice of Intent to Award
as provided in the District's solicitation. Prior to issuance of the
solicitation documents, the District may justify a shorter protest period if
it is in the public interest to do so and such justification shall be listed in
the solicitation documents. If a protest of contractor selection or
contract award is timely filed by an actual aggrieved bidder or proposer,
the award documents shall constitute a final decision of the District only
upon issuance to the protesting bidder or proposer of a written decision
denying the protest and affirming the selection or the award. The Notice
of Award does not apply to contracts awarded as Small Procurements,
intermediate procurements less than $25,000, sole source procurements,
emergency procurements, or special procurements.

Right to Protest. Any actual bidder or proposer who is adversely affected
or aggrieved by the District's award of the contract shall have seven
calendar days in-for formal bids and three business days in-for informal
bids after issuance of the award documents to submit to the District a
written protest of the award. The written protest shall specify the
grounds upon which the protest is based. The period of seven calendar
days in which to submit a written protest may be shortened or
lengthened by the District, as provided in the District's solicitation
documents. In order to be an adversely affected or aggrieved bidder or
proposer with a right to submit a written protest, a bidder or proposer
must itself claim to be eligible for award of the contract as the lowest
responsive, responsible bidder or proposer submitting the most
advantageous proposal to the District and must be next in line for award,
i.e., the protester must claim that all lower bidders or higher-scored
proposers are ineligible for award (i) because their bids or proposals were
nonresponsible or (ii) as a result of the District committing a material
violation of a solicitation provision or of an applicable procurement
statute or administrative rule, the protester was unfairly evaluated and
would have, but for such material violation, been the lowest bidder or

Final Approved Eff. 01.01.2024
Page 31 of 33

Y:\AD-Administration\AD-22 Policy Statements - 20 yrs after superseded\AD-22 Board Policies\Local Contract Review Board Rules



Local Contract Review Board Rules

the highest-ranked proposer. The District shall not entertain a protest
submitted after the time period established in the rule or such different
period as may be provided in the District's solicitation documents.

d. Authority to resolve protests. The General Manager or sueh
persen'stheir designee shall have the authority to settle or resolve a
written protest submitted in accordance with the requirements of section
(c3) of this rule. The General Manager shall have the authority to settle
or resolve a written protest for solicitations.

e. Decision. If the protest is not settled or resolved by mutual agreement,
the General Manager, or such-persen‘stheir designee, shall promptly
issue a written decision on the protest. For solicitations in excess of
$25,000, an aggrieved bidder may file a written appeal to the Board of
Commissioners within seven calendar days of the General Manager's
decision. The Board may choose to hold a hearing,-er appoint a hearings
officer, or let the General Manager's decision stand. The written
determination under any of the foregoing will be the District's final
action. Judicial review of this decision will be available where provided
for in statute.

190-020 Cash Retainage

a. Unless required otherwise by law, the normal form of holding retainage
shall be by co-mingling the retainage with District investments of cash.
The dollar averaged monthly earnings rate that the District earns on its
investments will accrue to the interest of the beneficiary of the retainage
based upon the monthly average balance in the retainage account.
When retainage is released prior to the end of a calendar month, the
previous month’s dollar averaged monthly earning rate will be pro-rated
by day to the daily average balance of the retainage account for the
partial month.

b. If a contractor selects an alternative option to cash retainage, the District
will impose a charge to recover all of its direct and indirect costs including
the set-up fees.

c. The District shall hold and pay retainage as allowed or required by the
Public Contracting Code, ChapterORS chapter 279C.

Rule 200 — Waiver of Security Bid and Performance Bond

200-010 Bid Security Requirements

{04162891-6} Final Approved Eff. 01.01.2024
Page 32 of 33
Y:\AD-Administration\AD-22 Policy Statements - 20 yrs after superseded\AD-22 Board Policies\Local Contract Review Board Rules



Local Contract Review Board Rules

The District may, in its discretion, waive the bid security requirements of ORS
chapter 279B for contracts other than those for public improvements.

200-011 Public Improvement Contracts Under $2535,000

The District may, in its discretion, waive the bid security requirements and
performance bond requirements for public improvement contracts as outlined
in ORS 279C.390 if the amount of the contract for the public improvement is

estimated not to exceed $2535,000.

Final Approved Eff. 01.01.2024
Page 33 of 33

{04162891-6 )

Y:\AD-Administration\AD-22 Policy Statements - 20 yrs after superseded\AD-22 Board Policies\Local Contract Review Board Rules



CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

Agenda Item — 3

REGULAR BOARD MEETING

November 9, 2023

SUBJECT

Consider Approval of Professional Services Contract with RH2
Engineering for the Water Treatment Plant Improvements Project, 23-
5309

DRAFT MOTION

Move to approve the professional setvices contract with RIH2 Engineeting,
Inc. for design and construction setvices, for the Not-to-Exceed amount of
$125,000, associated with the WTP Structural Improvements Project, 23-5309,
and authorize the General Manager to sign the completed agreement.

EFFECTIVE DATLE November 9, 2023

PRINCIPAL STAFF Adam Bjomstedt, PE — Chief Engineer

PERSON

BOARD ACTION The Board is requested to approve the professional services contract with RH2

REQUESTED Engineering.

DOCUMENTS Exhibit A — RH2 Scope of Services

ATTACHED

Agenda Summary

BACKGROUND Within the 23-25 Capital Improvement budget, the W1'P Structural
Improvements project targets some key repairs and renovations to critical
building envelope and structural elements. As dentified in the 2021 Facility Plan,
areas of degrading conctete, reinforcement, anchoring, and bracing should be
addressed in the short term. Doing so will ensure the plant will continue to
function efficiently from an operational and life /health/safety standpoint, and
allow for other future improvetents.

ANALYSIS As a continuation of the Facility Plan, RH2 Engineering completed a

Noweriber 9, 2023

seismic/structural assessment under their on-call contract in Match of this year.
Their findings and recommendations included areas of concrete repait,
equipment bracing and anchoring, and confirmed the need for siding, window,
and other building “shell” repairs identified separately in the Building Envelope
Condition Assessment. Within these recommendations, RH2 categorizes “short”
and “mid” tern improvements, with an emphasis on short term work to include
conctete repaits, anchorage/latetal bracing, and seismic safety. Please note, mid-
term work focused more on the building envelope findings will likely be proposed
for the following budget period, and effotts are underway to identify a possible
grant funding opportunity for that future project.

Apgendea Irer 3 Page 7 of 2



STAFF
RECOMMENDATION

WNoveriber 9, 2023

In order to adequately scope, design, and ensure accurate construction of these
items, Staff recommends engaging RH2 in an engineering setvices contract to
assist in completing this project. Due to the size and timing of the proposal, it
was determined to negotiate a separate contract from the existing on-call
agreement. Staff has reviewed the proposed scope of work and fee, including
design and construction phase services, and finds it acceptable. RH2 is an
established engineering firm with in-house structural design expettise for both
new building construction and renovation work, CRW has utilized RH2 on
nummetrous occasions on their separate on-call engineering contract, and finds
them a competent and professional engineering firm.

Staff recommends approval of the professional services agreement with RH2
Engineering.

Agenda Iiem 3 Page 2 of 2



EXHIBIT A
Scope of Work
Clackamas River Water

WTP Concrete Repair and Seismic Improvements
October 2023

Background

RH2 Engineering, Inc., (RH2} recently completed services for Clackamas River Water (CRW) to assess
the physical condition and seismic resilience of several concrete structures at its Water Treatment
Plant (WTP). The findings of this assessment are summarized in the RH2 report titled Water
Treatment Plant Structural and Seismic Assessment {(March 2023). As noted in the report, deficiencies
were found that indicate structural repairs and seismic improvements are needed to extend and
maintain the plant’s life and to provide greater life safety at the facility. The purpose of this Scope of
Work is to prepare design plans and specifications for the recommended short-term improvements
and to provide services during bidding and construction to CRW.

Assumptions
The following assumptions were made in the preparation of this Scope of Work.

e To reduce the fevel of effort needed, RH2 will rely upon the accuracy and completeness of
materials, data, and information provided by CRW or others in relation to this Scope of Work.
RH2 assumes that the entity providing such information to RH2 is either the owner of such
information or has obtained written authorization from the owner to distribute and utilize
said information in the execution of this project.

o Unless otherwise noted, all deliverables will be provided in electronic (PDF) format.

o Unless otherwise noted, meetings are assumed to be in a virtual format and will be hosted
using Microsoft Teams or equivalent.

s The following provides a summary of the anticipated improvements that will be addressed in
the design plans and specifications.

o Concrete repoirs and coatings, including repairs at basins, exterior walkways, and pump
support pads.

o Ladder and guardrail replacement, including at basins and exterior walkways.

o Seismic anchorage and bracing of equipment, piping, and other elements, including at fow
and high lift pump stations and pipe galleries.

o Non-structural seismic improvements (spilf protection, shatter-proof lights or light covers,
etc.)

1

10/3/2023 6:45:01 PM JADATA\CRWD\S4O\CONTRACT\PSA_CRWD_SOW_WTP CONCRETE REPAIR AND SEISMIC IMPROVEMENTS.DOCK



Clackamas River Water Exhibit A
WTP Concrete Repair and Seismic Improvements Scope of Work

The design of improvements related to waterproofing and water damage (Phase 2}, including
those classified as Building Enclosure Condition Assessment and mid-term improvements, are
not included in this Scope of Work.

It is assumed that a Clackamas County (County) Building Permit will be required for structural
and occess related repairs. RH2 will assist in preparing and submitting the permit application;
CRW will pay all related fees.

Design plans and specification documents will be prepared using a 60-percent, 30-percent,
and bid-ready process, with submittals for CRW review occurring at the 60- and 90-percent
milestones. Permit applications shall be made utilizing 90-percent plans; with any requested
revisions incorporated into the bid-ready documents that will be utilized for bidding and
construction,

Technical specifications will be prepared utilizing RH2’s master Construction Specifications
Institute technical specifications tailored for this project.

The non-technical specifications will be prepared utilizing CRW'’s standard bid and contract
forms.

Task 1 - Project Management Services

Objective: Manage RH2’s project team and maintain client communications. Maintain project
schedules and prepare monthly invoices and budget status summaries.

Approach:

1.1 Provide Project Management: Provide direction, coordination, and oversight to the RH2 project

1.2

1.3

team. Organize, manage, and coordinate technical disciplines as described herein, and
implement quality assurance and quality control (QA/QC) reviews to execute this Scope of
Work.

Provide Document Management: Document and retain information generated during the

execution of the project.

Prepare Invoices and Budget Summaries: Prepare monthly invoices and budget status

summaries.

RH2 Deliverables:

Monthly invoices and budget status summaries.

Project schedule updates

2

10/3/2023 6:45:01 PM JADATA\CRWD\S40\CONTRACT\PSA_CRWD_SOW_WTP CONCRETE REPAIR AND SEISMIC IMPROVEMENTS.DOCX



Clackamas River Water Exhibit A
WTP Concrete Repair and Seismic Improvements Scope of Work

Task 2 — Design

Objective: Prepare plans, specifications, and opinion of probable construction cost (OPCC) to support
the permitting, bidding and construction of the proposed improvements.

Approach:

2.1 Confirm Design Criteria and Background information: Coordinate with CRW and/or perform one
(1) site visit to confirm conditions and/or obtain additional information relevant to the design
of the improvements.

2.2 Prepare Design Drawings: Prepare design drawings, calculations, and details for the proposed
improvements. Design plans are expected to consist of approximately twelve {12) sheets,
including general sheets {i.e. cover, general information, construction notes) and design plan
and detail sheets addressing concrete repair, seismic retrofits, and ladder and guardrail
improvements. Provide plans to CRW for review and comment at the 60- and 90-percent design
stages.

2.3 Prepare Technical Specifications: Prepare technical specifications based on RH2's master
specifications updated and tailored for this project. Provide specifications to CRW for review
and comment at the 60- and 90-percent design siages.

2.4 Prepare Non-Technical Specifications: Obtain and review CRW’s standard front-end {bidding
and construction contract) documents. Coordinate with CRW regarding advertising dates and
bid opening date and time. Update front-end documents as requested and provide to CRW for
review and comment at the 90-percent design stage.

2.5 Prepare OPCC: ldentify bid items, determine quantities, and prepare OPCC based on
information supplied by materiai vendors and similar projects adjusted for anticipated bidding
conditions. Provide OPCC to CRW for review and comment at the 60- and 90-percent design
stages.

2.6 Attend Design Review Meetings: Attend design review meetings with CRW to discuss design
and review comments at 60- and 90-percent design stages. Prepare and distribute meeting
agenda and summary.

2.7 Perform QA/GQC Review: Perform in-house review of the 90-percent design drawings and
specifications for QA/QC.

2.8 Prepare Bid-Ready Plans and Specifications: Incorporate both CRW's and RH2's QA/QC and
90-percent review comments and finalize the plans and specifications for permitting and
bidding. Update the OPCC to incorporate changes from 90-percent to bid-ready design. Deliver
bid-ready plans, specifications, and final OPCC to CRW.

2.9 Provide Phase 2 Scoping and Funding Assistance: Work with CRW to develop and further refine
the scope for Phase 2 improvements. Assist CRW in preparing application for Oregon
Department of Emergency Management Building Resilient Infrastructure Communities funding.

3

10/3/2023 6:45:01 PM SADATAVCRWD\S4CACONTRACT\PSA_CRWD_SOW_WTP CONCRETE REPAIR AND SEISMICIMPROVEMENTS.DOCK



Clackamas River Water Exhibit A
WTP Concrete Repair and Seismic Improvements Scope of Work

Provided by Client:
s Current front-end documents, in Word format.

s Review of 60- and 90-percent design documents and written summary of CRW's review
comments.

RH2 Deliverables:
+ Plans, specifications, and OPCC at the 60-percent and 90-percent design stages.
Task 3 — Permitting
Objective: Assist CRW in obtaining permits for construction.
Approach:

3.1 Prepare and Submit for County Permit Review: Prepare and submit an application for a County
Building Permit. Permit application and documents will be submitted to the County’s online
portal. No hard copies will be required. It is assumed CRW will pay for all County review and
permitting fees. No date is warranted or implied for County response or approval.

3.2 Respond to Permit Comments and Assist with Closeout: Address and respond to written review
comments from County reviewers. Prepare and submit construction documentation requested
for permit closeout. Special inspections of the post-installed concrete anchors will be required
during construction. It is assumed special inspections will be performed by a testing consulftant
contracted by CRW. Special inspection reports provided by others will be submitted by RH2 to
the County for permit closeout.

Provided hy CRW:

¢ Payment of permit fees
¢ Contracting and payment for special inspection.
RH2 Deliverables:
o County Building Permit application submitted via online portal.
¢ Construction documentation for permit closeout.
Task 4 — Services During Bidding and Construction

Objective: Provide limited services to CRW during bidding and construction phases as requested. /t
is anticipated that CRW will take the lead in bidding and construction administration.

Approach:

4,1 Provide Bidding Support Services: Provide up to ten {10) hours of technical support services,
including but not limited to, preparing and/or posting advertisement, responding to contractor
questions, preparing addenda, and assisting in bidder meetings and in the evaluation of bids.

4.2 Provide Construction Support Services: Provide up to one hundred twenty {120) hours of
part-time technical support services, including but not limited to: construction meetings, on-site

4

10/3/2023 6:45:01 PM JADATA\CRWD\S4O\CONTRACT\PSA_CRWD_SOW _WTP CONCRETE REPAIR AND SE{SMIC IMPROVEMENTS.DOCX



Clackamas River Water Exhibit A
WTP Concrete Repair and Seismic Improvements Scope of Work

construction observation and reporting, submittal reviews, responding to contractor’s technical
questions and requests for information, and reviewing change orders and pay requests.
Coordinate with the contractor and CRW inspectors to provide construction observation at
critical stages of construction and as requested by CRW.

Assumptions:

Bidding and construction support services are intended to be technical in nature and rendered
only with CRW authorization and will be provided up to the value outlined in the Fee Estimate.
If additional support is required, that support will be negotiated by RH2 and CRW.

The contractor will retain and coordinate with testing firm{s) for all special inspections.
RHZ2 is not responsible for site safety or for directing the contractor in their work.

CRW will take the lead in bidding and construction administration, including providing
day-to-day construction observation and administration.

RH2 Deliverables:

Where requested, RH2 will provide the following:

Written responses to bidder questions.
Submittal and shop drawings review and documentation.
Clarification and change order review and documentation.

Construction observation and correspondence with CRW and contractor, as requested,
within the budgeted hours authorized. Construction observation reports from site visits to be
provided to the CRW.

Review and recommendation of contractor requests for payment, as reguested.
Punchlist following final inspection,
Letter recommending substantial completion and project acceptance.

Project drawing files in AutoCAD (DWG) format.

Fee for Services

The fee for services shall be on a time-and-expense basis and shall not exceed $124,634, as shown
on attached Exhibit B, Fee Estimate, in accordance with the Schedule of Rates and Charges shown in
Exhibit C.

5

10/3/2023 6:45:01 PM JADATA\CRWON\SADNCONTRACT\PSA_CRWD_SOW_WTP CONCRETE REPAIR AND SEISMIC IMPROVEMENTS.DOCX



Wd 707 £202/62/6 XSXSIUBISAQICIN] IWSITE PUR J1RdBY 91310U0D dIM 3T AMYD VS J0 AdeI\ops\aMEI\RIRaT

[veovzr  ${o9z9  $|wvegztt $| vss V101 LD3T0dd |
SrsLT S | ST0T $ 107592 S 0z1 $921/U9g poddng UOI1ONIISUS) SPINOIY Ty
IT¥'Z S| 6S $ | ZTSE'T 3 0T 5921435 Jaddng Buipmg apinoud 1%
856°6¢ S | €801 s | 24882 H [i133 uopniisuoy pue 2ulpplg Suling saolAlg v isel
910'¢ $ | 00T $ | 9167 S €] INOISCID YUA ISISSY PUE SIUBLLIWOD Jiwlad 03 puodsay TE
105°s S | BET S | 79gs 3 ST uoijedl|ddy NUIRd JWqng pue aladald T'¢

[ £15'9 $ | sez $ | 829 3 2z FaUR)SISSY SuniiWiagd gysej]
986'S SELD S | ovg's 3 v 90URISISSY Bulpund pue Buldads ¢ 9y BpIn0Ld 6T
£/9°/ S| 9ss S | LIT. S SE suonedyizads pue sue|gd Apeay-pig aledald 8T
019's s |88 § 1 2e8E s T MBINSY D0/VD WIoH3d LT
9£5'z S |29 S|y S 0t SBUIID3N MBIATY PUalY 92

6LL°T S| zzt S | L89T S 42 20d0 d4edald ST |
T16%C S| s S | 9€8C S ¥T suo[iesyinads [B2IUYI -UoN dledald vy
BLY'S S| /81 S | Zpe's S 9z suwiiesynads [ealuyoa ] ssedald £7
SLZ'8Y S | STOY S | 09Trr S (44 sButmelq usisaq saedalyd A4
T6ET S| €8 S | 8EET S 9 UOIIBLIOLM| pUNQJSysey puk LS UBISIQ WIjuo) 7

| orsog s | vsz's $ | 98€’sL S| S9t usdisaqg ZseL

L SYTT S ss S| 06Tt S 6 SaIBWWING 293png puUE 533i0AU] aledaly £

- ¥8LT Sibr S |orL'T S 01 uzWadRURIA IURWINIOY BPIAOL] 1
£61'E S| S8 S | sor'e S 4 juswageue|y 193[01d 3pIACLd T'1
TZS'L S | €31 S | 8e€L ) 33 juawadeuely 1afoud T YseL

$4noH uonduosag
150 jej0f asuadxy [e10L ioqgeq jelo] {230t

gz-dag

sjuawanodw] 21wsiag pue Jeday 331240u0) 1M
JDIBI\ JAAIY SeweNIep

2jewi3sy 934

g 119IHX3




EXHIBIT C

RH2 ENGINEERING, INC.
2023 SCHEDULE OF RATES AND CHARGES

RATE LIST RATE UNIT
Professional | 5167 S/hr
Professional Il 5183 s/hr
Professional Il 5207 S/hr
Professicnal IV 5223 S/hr
Professional V 5240 s/hr
Professional VI $255 S/hr
Professional VIi $274 S/hr
Professional VIlI $284 $/hr
Professional IX 5284 S/hr
Technician | 3131 S/hr
Technician i 5143 S/hr
Technician I 5158 S/hr
Technician IV $174 S/hr
Technician V 5191 S/hr
Technician VI 4208 S/hr
Technician Vi 5226 s/hr
Technician Vil $238 S/hr
Administrative | 586 S/hr
Administrative i 5100 S/hr
Administrative 1l s121 s/hr
Administrative IV 5143 s/hr
Administrative V $162 S/hr
CAD/GIS System $27.50 s/hr
CAD Plots - Half Size 52.50 price per plot
CAD Plots - Full Size $10.00 price per plot
CAD Plots - Large $25.00 price per plot
Copies (bw) 8.5" X 11" $0.09 price per copy
Copies (bw) 8.5" X 14" $0.14 price per copy
Copies {bw) 11" X 17" $0.20 price per copy
Copies {color) 8.5" X 11" $0.90 price per copy
Copies (color) 8.5" X 14" $1.20 price per copy
Copies (color) 11" X 17" $2.00 price per copy
Technology Charge 2.50% % of Direct Labor
price per mile
Mileage $0.6550 {or Current RS Rate)
Subconsultants 15% Cost +
Outside Services at cost

Rates listed are adjusted annually.




CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

Agenda Jtem —4

REGULAR BOARD MEETING

November 9, 2023

SUBJECT Contract Award: Construction Contract for SysOps Shop Facility
Renovation, project 2329
DRAFT MOTION Move to award the SysOps Shop Facility Renovation construction contract to
BnK Construction, Inc. for the bid amount of $239,995.00 and authorize the
General Manager to sign the completed contract.
EFFECTIVE DATE November 9, 2023
PRINCIPAL STAFF Adam Bjornstedt, Chief Engineer
PERSON
BOARD ACTION ‘The Board is requested to authorize a construction contract for $239,995.00 to
REQUESTED construct the SysOps Shop Facility Renovations.
DOCUMENTS Exhibit A: “Invitation to Bid”, published 9/27/23.
ATTACHED Exhibit B: “Notice of Intent to Award” with Bid Tally, 11/1/23
Agenda Summary
BACKGROUND The SysOps Shop Facility project will renovate the east side of the System
Operations shop- the entite shop building was constructed over 40 years ago
and has teceived minimal updates. It is showing signs of degradation from
continuous use, and has becotne inadequate to fully meet staff needs. The
SysOps Disttibution team is limited by small workspaces, narrow hallways, and
an undersized locker room area.
Renovation of this atea (approximately 1,070 square feet) will maximize available
space in the shared office, locker room, and break room. Tt will provide
adequate, secure storage for personal protective equipment, uniforms, and
employee possessions. Plumbing, lighting/electrical, and HVAC systems will be
updated in these areas, which will improve facility safety and energy efficiency.
Removal of some non-bearing walls wilt open up workspaces and improve
circulation.
PUBLIC Public Bidding process
INVOLVEMENT

Novewber 9, 2023

Agenda Item 4 Page 1 of 2




ANALYSIS

STAFF
RECOMMENDATION

Novemmber 9, 2023

Review and Evaluation of Bids:

CRW advertised for bids utilizing the “Oregon Buys” website on September 27,
2023. Fout bids were received on October 25, 2023. A bid tally is attached with
Exhibit B.

The low bid was submitted by Bul Construction, Inc. Their proposal was for
$239,995.00, which is $44,495.00 (~23%) above the Engineer's estimate of
$195,500.00 and over the budgeted amount of $230,000.00. The bid includes an
“optional” item, not otiginally budgeted, to raise the existing t-bar/panel ceiling-
which will futthet improve workspace functionality, lighting, and circulation. Staff
has reviewed current capital outlay budgets and determined there are sufficient
funds to account for the total cost of this project. Additionally, given the current
vatiable construction climate, staff believes the bid to be competitive and presents
a strategic opportunity to complete needed improvements.

BnK Construction, Inc. is based out of Gladstone and has many years’ experience
in new construction and renovation of commercial/institutional buildings, with a
wide atray of successfully completed projects. Staff believes their bid is
responsible, responsive, and meets the requirements identified in the Bid
Documents.

Staff reviewed information available for BnK Construction, Inc. from the Oregon
Construction Contractors Board and found no unsatisfactory reports. Reference

checks on similar projects for this contractor confirm that they are a responsible
and competent firm.

Award the contract to BnK Construction, Inc. in the amount of $239,995.00.

Agenda Itern 4 Page 2 of 2



927123, 5:27 PM

©

Open Market Bid S-R02045-00008255

General Items  Address

Header Information

Bid Number:

Purchaser:
Organization:

Fiscal Year:

Show On Web:

Bid Opening Date:

Bid Type:

Estimated Cost:

Alternate ID:
Blanket/Contract Begin Date:

Info Contact:

NIGP Code Certified Required:

Subcontractor Info:
Date Last Updated:
Ship-to Address:

Solicitation Enabled:
Invoice Method:
Discipline Type:
Procurement Method:
DOJ Review?:

Related OregonBuys
Document:

Attachments

Files:

https:/oregonbuys.gov/bso/bid/bidSummary.sdo?docld=5-R02045-00008255&mode=initial&currentPage=18&date Time=1695860830269

Accounting

Routing  Attachments(3) Notes  Bidders

5-R02045-00008255 Description:

Vance Voyles Minor Status:
Clackamas River Water

25 Department:

Yes
10/18/2023 05:00:00 PM

Allow Electronic Quote:
Available Date:

Open Bid Informal Bid:

$0.00

Purchase Method:
Blanket/Contract End Date:

Bulletin Desc:

Questions

OregonBuys

i JC)

Amendments Q&A

#23-2329 Clackamas River
Water Invitation to Bid -
SYSOPS Shop Remodel

R0204501 -
Procurement/Contracting

Yes
09/27/2023 04:48:58 PM
No

Open Market

Clackamas River Water
(CRW), a Public Water
Provider in Clackamas,
QOregon, invites sealed bids
from qualified contractors
for the remodel of its
System Operations Shop
Building Interior, Crew
Support Paertion, located at
9100 SE Mangan Dr.,
Clackamas, Oregon 97015.
Bidders must submit their
bids in accordance with the
instructions and
specifications contained in
the CRW SYSOPS Shop
Remodel Project Contract /
Bid Package. The project is
subject to the State of
Oregon Prevailing Wage

Current Org: Clackamas River Water &2
No Acknowieage inciusion requirea; nNo

Quote Notification:
User Last Updated:
Bill-to Address:

09/27/2023 05:27.09 PM

Vance Voyles

9100 SE Mangan Dr.
Clackamas, OR 97015

us

Email: woyles@crwater.com
Phone: (503)722-9244

No Rolling Enrollment Enabled:

Three Way Match Open Enrollment Enabled:
Qrdinary Construction
Competitive Sealed Bid

No

23-2329 SysOps_Shop_Remodel.pdf
23.2329 Bid Form~1.pdf
Clackamas River Water Invitation to Bid 9-27-23.pdf

No
Vance Voyles

Vance Voyles

PO Box 2439
Clackamas, OR 97015
us

Email: woyles@crwater.com

Phone: (503)722-9244

Reminders

EXHIBIT A

Summary

Status:

Location:

Required Date:

Catalog Id (for contract):
Type Code:
Pre-Bid Conference:

Hour of Acknowledge inclusion:

Item Single Award Only:
Print Format:

Allow vendors to submit multiple / alternate qut

Close Q&A For Vendor Date:

112



9/27/23, 5:27 PM

©

Required Quote Attachments

Item Information

OregonBuys

® e

Item # 1: Clackamas River Water (CRW), a public water utility in Clackamas, Oregon, invites sealed bids from qualified contractors for the remodel of its System Operati
Interior, Crew Support Portlon, located at 9100 SE Mangan Dr,, Clackamas, Oregon 97015. Bidders must submit their bids in accordance with the instructions a
contained in the CRW SYSOPS Shop Remodel Project Contract / Bid Package. This project Is subject to the State of Oregon Prevailing Wage Requirements

NIGP Code: 910-65
Remodeling and Alteration Services

Disable Pricing On Quote Qty Unit Cost
No 1.0
Manufacturer: Brand:
Make: Packaging:
Product Length: Praduct Width:
UPC/ISBN: SKU:
Tags: URL:
Account Code

Pre-Bid Approval Path:

uom Total Discount Amt.
$0.00 EA-Each

Model:

Product Height:

There is no item accounting available for this item.

There are no approval paths found for this Bid.

Cancel Bid Clone Bid Print

Copyright © 2023 Periscope Holdings, Inc. - All Rights Reserved.

OREGON_OREGON_AWS_PROD_BUYSPEED_i_bso

Current Org: Clackamas River Water &

Tax Rate Tax Am¢
$0.00

Product Weight:

Amount

https://aregonbuys.gov/ibso/bid/bidSummary.sdo?docld=S-R02045-00008255&mode=initial&currentPage=1&date Time=1695860830269 212



EXHIBIT B

Adam Bjornstedt

o =T L]
From: Vance Voyles
Sent: Wednesday, November 1, 2023 1:29 PM
To: Jon Schiele
Cc: Adam Bjornstedt; Clint Taylor; Jon Sleight; Todd Heidgerken
Subject: CRW Notification of Intent to Award - SYSOPS Shop Remodel Project
Attachments: 23-2329 SysOps_ Shop_Remodel.pdf; 23-2329 Bid Form - BnK Construction 10.31.2023.pdf

November 1, 2023

Jon Schiele

BnK Construction, Inc.
45 82nd Dr., Suite 53B
Gladstone, OR 97027
503-557-1085

Re: CRW Notification of Intent to Award - SYSOPS Shop Remodel Project
Mr. Schiele,

Clackamas River Water (CRW) herein notifies BnK Construction, Inc. as the apparent most Competitive,
Responsive, and Responsible Bidder, of Intent to Award Contract, pending approval of the CRW Board of
Commissioners, as specified in the (attached) documents and BnK Quote Response, for the Remodel Project
of its System Operations Shop Building Interior Crew Support Portion, located at 9100 SE Mangan Dr.,
Clackamas, Oregon 97015

CRW requests completion of the CRW SYSOPS Shop Remodel Project Contract prior to March 1, 2024.

CRW requests to be provided prior to beginning of work, a Certificate of Insurance designating Clackamas
River Water.

Project work and delivery of project materials at the CRW SysOps Shop at 9100 SE Mangan Dr. Clackamas,
OR 97015 are to occur on prescheduled dates.

The primary CRW contacts for communications regarding project scheduling, completion and receiving are
Clint Taylor, office: 503-722-2571 cell: 503-793-8145 ctaylor@crwater.com and alternate contact Jon Sleight,
office: 503-722-9238, cell: 503-793-2494 jsleight@crwater.com. Please include Clint Taylor, Jon Sleight,
Vance Voyles and Adam Bjornstedt in all future communications.

Sincerely,
F oy
> " S
: SUNRISE WATER
Clackamas River Water —— o 111011 ——

<" Vance E. Voyles NIGP-CPP, OCAC, ACOP
CRW / SWA - Procurement / Contracting



PaRIWQNS PIg WOlj P319a.l0),

_ 00'0S9°ESE S 00°0T0°8¥E § 00'S66'6€C S 00°0£2'Iv2 S IVLOL
00'000°ST $ 00°000°ST $ | 00'000°ST $ 00°000°ST  $ |00°000°ST $ 00°000°ST $|00°000°ST $ 00°000°ST S 87 T PazLoYINy Se JJOM BJIX] 6
00°000°02 $ 000000 $ |000ZZ'9Z $ 000ZZ'9¢ $|00°000°sT § 00000°'ST S |0O'ST6ZT  § O0O'STEZT § ST T wa3| [euoRdQ 8
00008t S 0000S¥ $|00000°2Z & 00°000°4Z S |008ZL'TT & 008ZLTT $|00Z8T'6 $ 007816 S ST T BuIpI§ pue ‘SMOpPUIM ‘51000 L
00'066'€6 S 0006666 S | 00D0OP'EOT $ DOOOPEOT $ |00'96S'SE  $ 0096S'SE S |000ZI'v6 S 00°0ZTI'VE6 S ‘ST T DVAH PUB ‘Saysiuld ‘SalI0ssa0y 9
00°§97'8¢ S 00'S9Z'8Z $ | 000ST'Er S 000STer S|0068LC7C S 0068472 $|00T99'0Z S 00T99'0Z S 1T guiquinid S
00'00Z'¥Z S 00002'+Z S |000SL'8C § 0005482 S|00PET'9Z S O0VEC'9T S |00GEL'TE S O06ELTE S 187 T |B214303(3 t
00'0/8'€Z S 00'0L8'€EC S |00006'8T § 000068 $|00°SS6%6  § 009S6'6  $|002L4TT  § 002LL2T S| S1 T dudoold €
000EZ'vS § O00'0ET'vS S [0000S'€9 $§ O0000S'ES S |O0ESE'GE S OQ'ESE'SE S |009S6'TZ S 0095672 S ST T Aiusdie) pue ‘lemAig ‘Buiwely [4
00'96568 S 00'S65'68 $ | 00000022 $ 00°0007Z S |00OPEYS S 00OPEYS $|00SZSTZ & 00°STSTT S 57 T owa pue |Jauan daud 33ls ‘UOREZI|IqON T
_F230_>_< 3014d LNNOWNY IDIldd ANNOWNY 3D14d LNNOWY _mu_mu SLINN  ALD NOILdI¥IS3a
'SU0D YHWS YO *SUQ) ([N 40P3I ‘suo) yug 'SU0D M1V INd 00:% “€2/SZ/0T Buluado pig
ATIVL Alg
6CET-ET 0D
|apoway sdOsAs

HILVM YIAIE SYINYIDVIOD




Agenda Item — 5

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER
REGULAR BOARD MEETING
November 9, 2023
SUBJECT Consider Approval of Temporary Construction Easement for Prologis
Robert Ave. Development
DRAFT MOTION Move to approve the granting of a temporary construction easement to
“10500 SE Jennifer Street LIC”, associated with the Prologis Robert Ave.
Development, and authorize the General Manager to sign the completed
easement document,
ErFECTIVE DATE November 9, 2023
PRINCIPAL STAFF Joseph D. Eskew, Engineering Manager
PERSON
BOARD ACTION The Boatd is requested to approve a temporaty consttuction easement
REQUESTED granting the developer access on CRW property, for construction of roadway
improvements on Robert Ave. associated with their adjacent private
development project.
DOCUMENTS Exhibit A — Location Map
ATTACHED Exhibit B — Draft Temporary Construction Easement
Exhibit C (2 pages) — Draft Improvement Plans — Robert Rd.
Agenda Summary
BACKGROUND The development of the former Northwest Sand and Gravel site is improving
the Robert Ave corridor, a City of Happy Valley Street, between Jennifer St. to
a proposed cul-de-sac to the South. The new road improvements will include
build out to a 38-foot-wide road to provide truck and passenger traffic into the
development. Improvement to the CRW access will also be included i road
improvement.
CRW owns property along the west side of Robert Ave. A temporary
easernent along CRW frontage will allow the developer to complete the road
grading, fence replacement and new driveway improvements.
STAFF Approve the temporary construction easement.
RECOMMENDATION

Nowveweher 9, 2023

Agenda Item 5 Page 1 of 1



Robert Rd

T 150

b

JENNIFER ST

EXHIBIT A
AG-5

2,18_D1_1980_

36 CCP2002 7]

(I

2R
“'/ CLACKAN
RIVER WA

!

L

v

e

—36-D1-2000 18-DI-2000:} p—
——ﬁmv_ﬂmﬂa-eepﬂm:h— 8-CCP-1964
8 oo R
10500 !
10300 |
16264 \\
Proposed Temporary A |5 [/ # e S
Construction Easement § ' ( DET/%(I:_HC_!%MENT
4 /
3 :
- a
X g
&
gl 5
i Ly

October 31, 2023

© OpenStreetMap (and) contributors, CC-BY-SA

Web AppBuilder for ArcGIS

Map data © OpenStreetMap contributors, CC-BY-SA |



RECORDING REQUESTED BY AG 5
Commonwealth Land Title .
Exhibit B

AND WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO:
Prologis L.P.

1800 Wazee Street, Suite 500

Denver, Colorado 80202

Attn: Legal Department — Real Estate
Transactional (West Region)

SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE RESERVED FOR RECORDER'S USE

Grantor: Clackamas River Water District
Grantee; 10500 SE Jennifer Street LLC

APN/APN2: 22E15B01002/00485727, 22E15B01100/00485736 & 22E15B01103/01874671

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT AGREEMENT

This Temporary Construction Easement Agreement (“Easement Agrecment”) is dated for
reference purposes only as of , 2023 (the “Effective Date”), by and between
Clackamas River Water District ("Grantor") and 10500 SE Jennifer Street LLC, a Delaware
limited liability company, successor by merger to Exchange 10500 SE Jennifer Street LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company (*Grantee").

RECITALS

A. Grantor is the owner of that certain real property ("Grantor Parcel") located at
16681 SE Robert Ave, in Clackamas, Oregon.

B. The parties intend to enter into this Easement Agreement to provide for the rights
and duties of the parties with respect to the performance of certain grading, curb and gutter
construction, and paving on or near the Easement Area, as defined and further described herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the Recitals, mutual covenants, agreements
herein and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby
acknowledged, the parties declare as follows:

1. Incorporation of Recitals. The foregoing Recitals are incorporated into this
Easement Agreement.

2. Work. Subject to the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth, Grantor hereby
grants a temporary non-exclusive easement to Grantee to enter a pottion of the Grantor Parcel for
purposes of performing the following work (collectively, the "Work"): grading and excavation,
curb and gutter construction, traffic control, driveway construction, fencing, utility placement and
construction and paving on or about the strip of land on the Grantor Parcel that is described and
generally depicted on Exhibit A attached hereto (the “Easement Area”). In connection with

-1-



Grantee’s entry onto the Grantor Parcel and its performance of the Work, Grantee shall: (a) at
Grantee’s sole cost and expense, promptly restore the Grantor Parcel to its original condition (save
any improvements installed or permanent alterations completed as part of the Work) and repair
any damages to the Grantor Parcel caused by Grantee or its agents; and (b) comply with all
applicable laws, including, without limitation, obtaining approvals of the Work, to the extent
applicable, from applicable governmental authorities. All Work shall be completed in a good and
workmanlike manner.

3, Indemnification. Grantee shall protect, indemnify and defend Grantor against, and
shall hold Grantor harmless from, any and all loss, cost, damage, claim, expense or liability,
including reasonable attorneys' fees and costs, to third parties to the extent resulting from Grantee’s
or Grantee’s consultants, contractors or agents (“Grantee’s Agents”) presence on the Easement
Area or the performance of the Work. The foregoing shall survive the termination of this Easement
Agreement.

4. Insurance. Grantee, prior to performing the Work and as a condition thereof, shall,
or shall cause Grantee’s Agents to, maintain worker’s compensation, as required by applicable
statutes and commercial general liability insurance, including broad form property damage
coverage, with limits of not less than $1,000,000.00 per occurrence and $2,000,000.00 in the
aggregate to insure against liability of Grantee and/or Grantee’s Agents, arising out of their
presence on the Easement Area pursuant to the provisions hereof. Grantor may obtain Grantee’s
Memorandum of Insurance (“MOI™) through Prologis’s website at
https://www.prologis.com/insurance (click on the “Marsh Risk & Insurance Services” button
towards the bottom of the page), in lieu of Grantee providing a certificate of insurance. The website
includes information about the MO, including that the additional insured(s) on the policy include
the parties listed in this Easement Agreement.

5 Covenants Run With the Land; Rights of Successors. Subject to Section 7, the
covenants, conditions and restrictions contained herein shall run with the land, and shall be binding
upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto, and their respective heirs, representatives,
occupants, successors and assigns. Nothing contained in this Easement Agreement shall be
deemed a gift or dedication of any portion of the Properties to the general public or for the general
public or for any public purpose whatsoever. This Easement Agreement will not be subject to the
doctrine of merger. It is the intention of the parties hereto that this Easement Agreement shall be
strictly limited to and for the purposes expressed herein and shall terminate upon the Termination
Date (as defined below). Any entity acquiring fee or leasehold title to Grantor Parcel, or any
portion thereof, shall be bound by this Easement Agreement. No breach of this Easement
Agreement shall entitle any party to cancel, rescind or otherwise terminate this Easement
Agreement, or any conditions, covenants, or restrictions hereunder.

6. Term. This Easement Agreement shall automatically terminate upon the earlier of
(being, the “Termination Date”): (i) July 31, 2024, and (ii) the completion of the Work.

s Severability. If any clause, sentence, or other portion of the terms, conditions,
covenants, and restrictions of this Easement Agreement becomes illegal, null, or void for any
reason, or be held by any court of competent jurisdiction to be so, the remaining portions will
remain in full force and effect.

8. Governing Law. This Easement Agreement shall be subject to and construed in
accordance with the laws of the State of Oregon. §

2.



9. Attorneys' Fees. In the event either party hereto brings an action or proceeding
for a declaration of the rights of the parties under this Easement Agreement, for injunctive relief,
ar for an alleged breach or default of, or any other action arising out of, this Easement Agreement
or the transactions contemplated hereby, the prevailing party in any such action shall be entitled
to an award of reasonable attorneys' fees and reasonable costs incurred in such action or
proceeding, in addition to any other damages or relief awarded.

10.  Captions. The captions heading the various sections of this Easement Agreement
are for convenience and identification only, and shall not be deemed to limit or define contents of
the respective sections.

11.  Time is of the Essence. Time is of the essence for performance of each and every
covenant and the satisfaction of each and every condition contained in this Easement Agreement.

12. Representation of Counsel. Each of the parties has had the opportunity to seek
the advice of independent legal counsel and executes this Easement Agreement acting upon their
independent judgment and/or upon the advice of their respective independent legal counsel,
without any representation, express or implied, of any kind or nature, from each to the other except
as only specifically set forth in this Easement Agreement.

13.  Counterparts. This Easement Agreement may be executed in any number of
counterparts all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

14.  Notice. Any notice, request, demand, instruction or other communication required
or permitted by this Easement Agreement to be given to any party, including, but not limited to, a
notice of assessment, shall be in writing and shall be either (i) personally delivered to the party
named below, or the party otherwise entitled thereto, by a commercial messenger service regularly
retaining receipts for such delivery, (ii) sent by registered or certified mail, return receipt
requested, (iii) delivered by nationally recognized air courier services such as FedEx or Express
Mail, or (iv) sent by e-mail, and such notice shall be effective upon delivery thereof to the party
being given notice, and shall be addressed to the parties as listed below:

Grantee: c/o Prologis L.P.
5900 Airport Way South, Ste 300
Seattle, Washington 98108
Atin: Ken Barnhart
Email: kbarnhart@prologis.com

With a copy to: ¢/o Prologis L.P.
1800 Wazee Street, Suite 500
Denver, Colorado 80202
Attn: Legal Department — Real Estate Transactional (West
Region)
Grantor: Clackamas River Water District
16770 SE 82™ Drive
Clackamas, Oregon 97015

With a copy to: Bob Steringer



General Counsel;

Harrang Long P.C.

111 SW Columbia Street, Suite 950
Portland, Oregon 97201

If a party desires to change its address for the purpose of a receipt of notice, such notice of
change of address shall be given in the manner specified herein. However, unless and until such
written notice of change is actually received, the last address and addressee as stated by written
notice, or provided herein if no written notice of change has been received, shall be deemed to
continue in effect for all purposes hereunder.

15.  Liens. Grantee shall not suffer or permit any mechanics' or materialmen's liens or
other liens to be recorded against the Grantor Parcel by reason of any work, labor or material
supplied or claimed to have been supplied to Grantee in connection with the Work, If any such
liens shall at any time be recorded, and Grantee does not remove or bond over the same within
thirty (30) days of receipt of written notice thereof from Grantor, then Grantor shall, at its option,
have the right to discharge the same by paying the amount claimed to be due without inquiry into
the validity of the claim and Grantee shall thereupon immediately reimburse Grantor for any such
amounts, together with interest thereon at the maximum rate permitted by law within thirty (30)
days of receipt of written notice from Grantor.

[Signature Page Follows}



IN WITNESS WHEREQF, Grantor and Grantee have executed this Easement Agreement as of
the date first written above.

Grantor

Clackamas River Water District

By:

Name: Lodd Heidgerken

Its: General Manager

STATE OF OREGON
COUNTY OF CLACKAMAS

The above instrument was subscribed and sworn before me this  day of , 2023

By:

As of Clackamas River Water District.

Notary Public -~ State of Oregon

My Commission Expires:




Grantee

10500 SE JENNIFER STREET LLC
a Delaware limited liability company

—

Name: ghﬁv\ CO\\ 0/‘;‘\'&\‘
it _VP- Warker 088 o

STATE OF OREGON
COUNTY OF MULTNOMAH
™
The above instrument was subscribed and sworn before me this [6day of 0Crvés2 2023

By: SE€AN ColtlSiTA

As Aggwggljjgg PeeSon of 10500 SE Jennifer Street LLC, a Delaware limited
liability company.

e <l

Notary Public — State of Oregon

eSS eSsSsSeesessssse
OFFICIAL STAMP =)
RICKEY GARCIA

NOTARY PUBLIG - OREGON

COMMISSION NO. 1002302

SION EXPIR
LSS0N X nES AUGUST 16 202

My Commission Expires: 0,?/ / e/ 2024

é

=Y

/



EXHIBIT A

DESCRIPTION & DEPICTION OF EASEMENT AREA

[see attached]

EXHIBIT A
-1-



P e an o S pae e R 2021-014-73
S&F Land Services OE7EB/A05S

4858 SW Scholls Ferry Rd. Ste A Portland, OR 97225 brd
(503) 345-0328 o www.sflands.com

LEGAL DESCRIPTION
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

THAT PORTION OF TRACTS J AND O OF CLACKAMAS RIVERSIDE, CLACKAMAS COUNTY PLAT RECORDS,
LOCATED IN THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 15, TOWNSHIP 2 SOUTH, RANGE 2 EAST, OF THE
WILLAMETTE MERIDIAN, CITY OF CLACKAMAS, CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON, AND MORE
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED BELOW:

BEGINNING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID TRACT J, BEING A POINT ON THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT-
OF-WAY LINE OF SE JENNIFER ST (BEING 30.00 FEET FROM, WHEN MEASURED AT RIGHT ANGLES TO, THE
CENTERLINE THEREQF) AND A POINT ON THE WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SE ROBERT AVENUE
(BEING 20.00 FEET FROM, WHEN MEASURED AT RIGHT ANGLES TO, THE CENTERLINE THEREOF);

THENCE NORTH 88°07'47" WEST ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID TRACT J, ALSO BEING THE SOUTHERLY
RIGHT-OF-WAY OF SE JENNIFER ST, A DISTANCE OF 35.00 FEET;

THENCE LEAVING SAID NORTH LINE SOUTH 01°49'49"” WEST, PARALLEL WITH THE WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-
WAY OF SE ROBERTS AVE, A DISTANCE OF 712.61 FEET;

THENCE SOUTH 44°17°39” WEST A DISTANCE OF 110.75 FEET;
THENCE SOUTH 27°29'42" EAST A DISTANCE OF 173,08 FEET;

THENCE SOUTH 88°10'11” EAST A DISTANCE OF 25.00 TO A POINT ON SAID WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY OF
SE ROBERTS AVE;

THENCE ALONG SAID WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY NORTH 01°49'49"” EAST A DISTANCE OF 945.19 FEET TO
THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

CONTAINING 41,023 SQUARE FEET, OR 0.94 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.

BASIS OF BEARINGS: OREGON STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM NORTH ZONE, NAD83(2011),
INTERNATIONAL FEET. DISTANCES SHOWN HEREON ARE GROUND.

(" REGISTERED )
PROFESSIONAL
LAND SURVEYOR

[egormin. Barli,
OREGON
NOVEMBER 29, 2011

BENJAMIN R. DUBIN
84344LS i

RENEWS 12/31/23




8Z£0~-sve (£05) - —310—17 :oN [oid "t * ‘
e £2/18/21 SN S50 e 2o Al e RE b ]

g $ZZL6 ¥O ‘GNVILYOd
LUOD'SPUD|JS MMM IJ‘Q' @3jed
. 5 R e NOLONHISNGD A¥vO0Na1

S3DINISG pue) 443G

NIENA ¥ NIAVCN3E
LI0Z ‘62 ¥3IBWIAON ININ3SY3
NO93¥0 INMYILNGD -

77y é AYM=0=LHOIY e g

HOAIAYNS ANV aN3IoO31

TVNCISS340dd _
\_ Q3¥31S193y y 1334 09 = HONI T

SE JENNIFER ST

ONINNID3d JO INIOd

B 14 0S F¢zo'Ly

NOLLONHLSNOD AEYHO AN

LNTN 2w O ARG
LI M.6%.65.108

88'07'47"E

__00°6Z
3.LL.01.88S

| .

I8900-£6 ON INTW I ISNT

00°0¢ [ IOVIL
_ FAISYTARY SYIHVIOVTD

( -~
ek 999¢0-£6 -ON INTHNNYISNI

0LOVYHL
JATISYIAIY SYAVIOVID

NOILVOIA3d AYM JO-LHODTH ¥O4 HOLIIS
vV 1I9IHX3




2070 L33HS NO T1140Ud INIT MO 2vS 36 1ND 335 S5V "00L2
e R S *SNYd ¥3QINO¥d ALTILN ONY 30d ¥3d NOISHIANOD “INd THL NIHLM 0313 1dWOD vﬂ.._m%xnum‘_m Esorwo! GNY ‘052 '0ET STIV130 GYWONVLS AZTIVA AddYH 40 ALID ¥3d &
.TONO HIOINGO JONUSEE - — = = = == = LSO LTIHE NOT'T Hit FWIE VLI SHVANVLE corn o B e B eo 38 0L NOISYBANOD ANNOYO¥IONN OL SINIT ¥3MOd QVAHNIAC ONLLEIXE [3] /M 3015 LHOLL BYND GNY HILLND T BYNO QYYANYLS HLIM OVG 301N 40 LVLS
UIOINOD GONUGIKT = e e OFE o e e NV QY NOLLOIS ¥35IH LSVD 34d AV ONY INOD TIOHNYW ONILSIXE A0NY 4023 LTIHG NO 062 TI¥130 GUVONVLS . 3AV LY380Y 4O INI0Yd NOISIQ INTYILNID
n 5 A Ag O3NIWYIL30 SIQYHO ‘907D LITHS NO NMOHS NOLLDIS SSOHO TYOIdAL ONY
““HM ! ”Hc&&a L50d TYNINNEL MIN LONYLENGI ONY 3IN3 MIN OLNI LOINNOD AN mzo,uzu_...__m_nww.“.u:mmu._“_“ox.rs);deﬂwuwﬁumqﬂﬁﬂwﬂﬁﬁuom 19020 LTANG NO NMOKS 052 ONY OEZ SIIVA30 GHVANV.S ATTIVA AddvH 40 ALIG H3d
oo gomony GNY AVMIAING 03500 ONIHIE 3LVO ONILSIX3 LONYLSNODIY ‘3dAL ANV TIALS " ey ko NVOHS S0z oo oN [3] »T¥Mi30IS LHOLL 84N ONY ¥3LLNO 7 84ND QYONYLS 40 NOLLINYLSNOD 40 N3 B
“ON L13H3 ONLSIX3 HOLYI OL TONT4 MON GI50dONd 40 15T ONLLSI L9NNIGN0o3Y [g]  NOISNINI U3d XTYM 30IS LHOLL BND KM AVMZANO VISUINACD LONHASNGD
NoIg ) “HILLND ONY BYND ATNO 4O NOLLINHLSNOD IAY LYIBOH JO TNJOHd NOISIA INMYILNID AG
ININIOVD [ YILVIHO G YIATHOIHM NID3E 2029 L3THS NO 314084 INM MO O¥S 30 112 335 OZY 0020 QININYEILIA SIAVHS '00Z3 LIFHS NO NAMOHS NOILIIS SSOHD TWIldAL ONY 0042
| 3408d O o o ‘ONLLSIX3 HOLVIW O J5vE JU¥OIHOOY .0 ¥3A0 OYWH 30N30.{ £ 13AT1.L 3 OL LIIHS NO NMOHS O L ONY ‘052 ‘082 S1IVAI0 OUVONYLE ATTIVA AddVH 50 ALID ¥3d 133HS NO NMOHS 05T ONY 0CT GTIVLI0 QUYONYLS ATTIVA Add¥H 40 ALID ¥3d Tvm
ANV N¥1d SAY LY380y s LNINIAYA "ONLLSIXS OLNI HOLYIN OL AYMIAING JAVATY ONY O ONLLSIXI 1namws (0] H1Tva 3015 LHOLL BHND ONY H3LLNG 7 BND QAVONYLS HLNA 9vS 30 12 40 ana 7] 30I5 LHOLL BN ONY H3LLNS T 94N QHYANYLS 40 NOLLONHLENOD 40 Luvig [1]
anaozn > T L 2
— TSt DL 08704 V1S 5119058 INTIETINGD 1Ho608 SELONNALIMBISNGD
o DosGL o 0041 Dot foscL ey a0s71 oaeil LT
] 1 [ !
b ] T T =
T T
| ! a0 iS00 B = (OO |
Ersaals.oolinn 2l 00°i = (N.0AINT 31 o3 b= (ool i |
mﬂn.ﬂ.ﬂ;ﬂ}m_ | il Ay LhU Evaieil win 20501 ponzeot e |
60216 'HO ONYILHOD o8 f—rLhip =i | 4700 = WZUNI T IR 2] TARE B ||
o028 TY AVOVIYA 03 000 50T 23 ViR 1 e el | [ | N 2
SI90T70Hd £ 5 cidinin G50 | Oy RGeEL I —] T
¥ 4.‘ T T [HweEeE 1
rT————— 1 i I i
15 MINNIF 35 00501 1 —— 430D 500} 02D+ WITY 1
HIAWAN LIIOHA 01 56 t ! 56
! 2V A0S DUIINYE K00 | |
SYWYHIYIO Hivd SIDCT0¥d 1 ! |
') @ AT0ZL ILLLUNYS dH .00 T T
w0 orvian
] THILNG D [] oot Dk
s mervn ion Bl [ v e on 1oarona {vis. | |
& | V0 = (LE VLN 1 o
| AT
- VO CNULGE—c—
LT N T T TR ELAE]| - | |
—_—m—m— ey - b e = —_——
i T - —Y= 1 Ty g = - :
L NOTAAIH, YO N FT5T) —_— T =
o jeav} —_— —_ — L — [ 1 =]
e B
ST ” - L i —
I WL
INPHILNS LY .
- 0VO Q8040 1 P, .
mlm @|m | 1 SOL+Li VS Sii
ﬁw | i [ 1 NOLYAHON JUNLONHLS SHON
C — 2= RN s | 504 1062 LIIHG NO NYd WHOLS 136
= 00'00+F1 = V13 Ind s T
2 B o= e : T !
T ol = e T T , oz
e} 7
m C U_
1009 LIDHO MO 0NV Jnr Moy
—_— — MOY 4TVH 0506 _
— AHGLS 311Nd 126 — oL g 2nd o0 Q1504084 o s Ko BiG
_ - —— = OIOIONd o=
g — A NOLLWOKIDT d
08 030
X O — ;
A M e IR TR
w ~ T ——
JAv L300H 38
s
1YD8-082°LL0
POTL0 UoBas0 ‘puBluag
00L BNNS ‘aNUBAY 4D S 60T
oo oo o I v -
— 2 s NoUVDIaNa— a3
TAMOa . OB D
- I
- |
21¥D 30D N3O AT HUM MO LY
I¥OOWAODY OL TN TN NN
woazandon| 5k
SUTE BT €07 P Avd 3
090 vz €09 W Wy
#1340°50 QN0
a0, i
AV HILWM I8 9L51L
LOILNIUY IZNIHDVH Sk
prs

2

RAIEEITEY

NSNS FI0N e A8 R (I LE0 N340 e 0N 0 NS




“HIJINNIM ONOTY BONDH 40 NI HLYON LV ONLLGIGE OL 3INEd LOINNODEY "FONDH 40 Bdal
14078 Q380d0ud -~ ONY TTALS ONLLSIX HOLYIN 'MOY QIS0d0Nd 40 L53M L LV 20N ONLLSIXT LONILSNODIY B
“SNYd H3QIACH ALNLLA ONY 30d ¥3d NOISYSANGD ‘BN SHL NIHLIM

G020

“ON Lazkul

s s s TILTINGD 30 OL NGISHIANGD GRACHSYIONA OL SANI HIVOJ OYIHUIAC DNLLEDa (4]
o 104D 133HE NO 062 V130
SNOLNOI .} GIBOONE u ‘TUYONYLS AHOD ONY SNOISNIWIQ H3d STHND HUM AYMIAING TVIDNINNOD LONELSNGD E

ANOLNDD 5 A2B0d0Yd 0042 LITHS NO NMOHS 542 TVLIQ CUVANYLS
..fﬂdﬂ!d.suzu;nzﬂlguu_n;gﬂla;?gslnn_alussﬂhge:s E

90T LIIHS NO NWOHS SNOLLITS STOYD TWIIdAL 335 "00LD LITHT NO NVIOHS :

VNG AULHINGD

11 3U408d Nois

091 W30 10D HO L¥OIDY 3d LIvHdSY NOLYWE0MNI JNLINLD __

g 38O ¥04 1663 L33H8 NO NY1d myOLe 138
ANY NY1d SAY 183808 ot “UBAINNIF ONGTY LNIMYE LY SIQVHD HOLYH "LNINIAYH LTVHASY MIN L0nu1snGa [£]
AV LYIGOY 4O TN0Ud
40 LHOW NOISIO BNIYILNDD AS QBNIWYZLIQ SIAVYD ‘D02 LTTHS NO NVIOHS NOLLIZS SS0HD
I¥ldAL GNY ‘0020 LTIHS NO NMOHS 05T ONY OCZ STIY.LIC CHYONY.LS ATTIVA Add¥H 4O
AVMTYOH = ALID H3d ¥TvAA 30IS LHOLL BHNO ONY NZLLNO 7 N3 QNVONYLS 4O NOLLINNLSNGS 40 0Na (2]

3AY LYTE0Y 40 4084

= NDIS3Q ANMYILNGD AT GINIANILIA STAVED “90T3 LITHS NO NVIOKS NOLLITS SI0HD
N IVIAdAL ONY '00LD LITHS NO NMOHS 05T QNY 0CT SUV.LIA QHVANYLS AJTIVA AddvH 40 ALID
aN3oa Md VM 30IT THOLL 0¥AD GN Y3LLNG 2 FUND CUVONV.S 40 NOLDNHLSNOD 40 Luvas 1]
S3LON NOILONYLSNCD
Fuab TIVO6 WOLLKTIA
Se=ll VI8 TANGZRON
00+0Z OL SZ+51 VLS 0¥ INMYILNID L8380y
ss..nm 5wt 00+ Lol o0+a1 %l 00+L1 0%+8L 00401 5L ﬂuon-s
| | | | 1 | 1 | ! | |
| | | | | | | I | |
T | | | |
I I I [ ,
- T [ I P
| | I —_—
| | | [
- I I
201 = @00 E—— i 1 1
T ! - VD APRL} AUILINYE R 00 W
o T ) | o
00T UETIOTYI %0'HD 0PLE DLUINYS o 30 I
| 1 i
| [
IR e D T 1 i
T T . i i T T sa4
T1LLL MOISIADY T - AJN 4
T DLD 4T#°0C CLHAB FLOC DA 31 T
ot m T Bﬁonﬁ!ﬁ) ot
] | INFIIINTD 1¥ \ s e
] T Svard 039008d = LN R S [ 1) AR s P mp g
A v =ty T 1290 I by ——— e —— — — — S — — = — S = :
— n_wom Zoe o } T ek — T %00 -
] | | | T mo T s
N mlo——0 ™ 2 -
= o 28 : _ : | T2 g _
= oim oo 2F | E | 3 g B |
— 0 Lo o  — _ i g 2 p E® ] m _
1 - TE s T _arezsy ZlF = A o ga I
B G m m T 2V n_w m_m _m 1 m 1 o2k
_— ﬂ/ _ = > - = | »
T ] I I =
ot < ¢ ] : : m
2
X 8 5 & -
Ll ~—

1S¥302Er 33

WS HEIVIS

&

R4 CE BRI

WO NS 2500w LS Y CE21 L0500 13550 L0V 0N R




Agenda Item — 6

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER
‘REGULAR BOARD MEETING
November 9, 2023
SUBJECT Quatterly Report — 1st Quarter FY 2024
PRINCIPAL STAEF Chtista Bosserman Wolfe, CPA, Chief Financial Officer
PERSON
DOCUMENTS Exhibit A — General Fund Budget to Actual Status Repott (Revenue)
ATTACHED Exhibit B- General Fund Budget to Actual Status Repott (Expenditutes)
; Exhibit C - Capital Improvements Projects Budget to Actual Status Report
Exhibit D - System Development Chatges Budget to Actual Status Report
Power Point Presentation (to be provided at the meeting)
Agenda Summatry
BACKGROUND Each quarter the Boatd is provided with summaty data of budget to actual

by line item. This repott covets the petiod July 1*-September 30" which is
the 1% quatter of fiscal year 2024 and the beginning of the new biennium.

The presentation to the Board will highlight some specific items regatding
the following funds:

General Fund
e Revenue is 16.8% of the biennial budget.

e Personnel Services are 8.4% of the biennial budget.
e Materials & Setvices are 11.3% of the biennial budget.
e Capital Outlay is 6.3% of the biennial budget.

Capital Improvement Projects Fund
e Expenditures at 3.8% of biennial budget.

System Development Fund
e Revenue is 6.4% of the biennial budget.

November 9, 2023 Agenda ltem 6 Page 7 of 1



1 °bed

%%"9T 66879897 $ 4GS8'62t’'S $ 6S8'67P'S $ 06/C6TTE $§ 00T'9SPOT $ 095°9€8’ST $ TVLOL - S9nuUaAdY
%98 680°9p TIED 11’y 0008 009'52 008'p2 904 Aem Jo By
%00 000°0¢ - - 000°0€ 000°ST 000°sT Bunelsdo-uoN - sjuesn
%00 (ppe'L) e 2 WA - - - aleys 150D - oI
%00 000°07 - . - 000°02 000°01 00001 sajes Avsdold snjding
%10 S/6'6Y 4 ST 000°08 000°S2 000°se Bunelado UON - snosue|jeIsIW
%E°ST £00°ZTT [66'LE L66°L€ 000°0ST 000'S/ 000's/ SIUBLIISIAUT WO sbukLey
%TZT $S/'62¢C 965°1¢ 965°1E 0s€'192 009°Z€T 052821 JLIoOU] Uy
%S ¥T LLY'08T €218 €LT'18 0SZ'1T9S 00T/€8¢ 0§S'8£2 snuaAay buneradg-uoN
Y%6°ET AN 223 8pS's 8pS’S 0000t 000°07 000°07 Bunessdo - snosug|[Ros!A
%6°£LC 8/+'98 zes'ss zes’se 000°021T 00009 000709 sefieuD aoIAlRS
%L P 9zS'0LT bv'6T b/y'6T 000002 000°00T 000001 $834 UOIPBUUCD) IVIAIRS
%897 796°060°92 8£0°08Z'S 850082’ 000°TLE'1E 000'€66'ST 000'R££'ST SI[RS 13BM
%691 81ve8coe z8s’sre’s 785'8te’s 000'TEL'TE 000'ELTOT 000'8S8S'ST anuaaay BuneiadQ
SINUIAIY
pealeoay mhﬂwwhwm YZ-€£20T Ad EM%WM: . §202-€20Z Na CieaAebpng T 4e04 196png GNNd TVEINID
JuS2Iad [enipy enjoy uonetidoiddy
yobpng

STOZ-£¢0¢ wnjuusig
Moday snjeis sjenyy 0l 3ebpng

1912 M JRAY sewepe)
Y HqIYg



T abeg

%6'T 96895 $01'1 0TS 0008 00567 005'8Z . Buissanosd usiwise)s Jawoisnd
%00 00F'TT - - 00b'TT 00£°S 00/'s S2URMO|Y HPSID JOW0IST)
%8 0T 97’61 age’? 9g£'C 00912 002’11 00%'0T sasUadxg UORDI||0D
%7 0T 606'T0¥ 168°SH 1685 008t 000°£22 008°0¢TC s29; Buissenold pIe) 1P
%00 005'SE - - 005°SE 000’61 pos‘at 192Q peg
%t'8 69.'0vS 1e¥'6t TEV'6Y 00Z'06S 009°T0E 009/88¢ S8DIAIRS J2W0ISND)
} S3DIAIAS 1@ S[ELIDe
%t 8 S0S/ELTT $ S6VTLTT $ S6YTLTT $ 000°0T6°ET $ 000°TOTZ $ 000’6089 $ SADIAISS [SULOSIB [2j01
%92 8/£'99 er’s s 008°TL 00z'9¢ 009'sg xe] J|-ul
%TTT 000°0Z 00007 000’0z 000°06 000°st 000°SH YEIA VIH
%00 a0s'se - - 00£°SE 006°/T 008'/T BAEDT WIS pled uoBaup
VLT 50168 G6E'T S65'T 005'09 005'0¢ 000°0€ aDURINSUT 3417
%6/ S80'CET STH'TT STH'IT 005 ¥bT 005°GL 000’69 soURINSUT [Bua(]
%6'9 159607 65/'GST 654'G5T 00E'ZSTT 008'F0ZT 00S°/$0°'T 20UBINSUT LR[eaH
%78 Z64°864'T 807651 80/'65T 005'856°T 008°/10°T 00076 uoisuad
%2 62 szz'L9 S£4'4T QL1012 000°S6 009’8t o0y'op uonesusdwo)) SJaIoM
%8 £29°0€9 £L0788 ££0°8S 00£'889 000°2¥€ 00 T¥E A3unDas [0S - YOI
%T'8 0SP £S6'Y 05565V 0SS'6EY 000'26£’S 000°€Z8°T 000vLST Soxe) pue sjausg
%00 - - - - - - spiemy
%Z'T SPLPTT 89T 759'C oot LT 005'0€ 0069671 Slysuag LUI0
%8'E ELVFET Vrdsy s 0001 000’s 000’2 Aed AepljoM
%Z'S PE6'STZ 995°¢T 995°¢T 005652 goszer 00991t BUMIBAD
%T'6 884559 715'99 21699 000°TTL 000°2LE 000'0S€ stjeads sanensiwpy
%0 1T 6T '66% T 16/'58T 152'98T 000°589°1 000848 000°2¢8 uoRNgUISI JNION 81
%S'ZT 7P0H60°T 856°95T 856'95T 000°152'T 000°129 000'08s 151[e103dS JUDWIEI] JSIBM
%68 906°925’T 61601 61611 00T'9/9'T 009°008 005°6/8 [EJHIDR ] B [RUOISSD)0.d
%E'6 88+'/£9 71059 ZT0'59 00520/ 008°s0p 002962 N - [E2IULRS] g [BUOISSI0Id
%9 ¥ £55'p88°T F'16 pL'T6 00£°9/6'T 009’086 002068 siabeuely
%E"S S/T8T 5201 5707 00Z’st 0096 009’6 pusdng JUOISSILULLIOD)
%9°8 SS0'08L°L Sb6'TEL ab6‘TeL 000°E1S’'8 000’82y 000°SET'Y sabem pue sauejes
STDIAIBS [BUU0SIad
pasn 196png ¥2-€20TAd  £20Z3des-AINE  §TOZ-EZ0Z Ng ciedpiROpRg T .IEaA 30bpng dNNd TVY¥3NES
Juantad puluiewsy [enpy lenpy uonerdoiddy

1obpng

SZO0¢-£20¢ wnjuuag
Moday snieys jenjpy o3 326png

191 M JSAIY sewexpe])

ggupg



Z abed

Y%b 0 8887 ZT I 0062 0St'T 0SH'T |EDOT - [9ARIL
%L1 911’641 $86'7 $86°T 007841 05/'68 05£'88 Bujurer]
9%/ 7T 600°8% 166’9 1669 000°sS 001°0¢ 0064T yyesH ® Apies
%Z°S £27'9¢ €L €/1'C 00t'8E 007’61 00Z'6T Buipo|d sapaoLd
%E"TT ob’8s 096t 096"y 002'sy 0S£°22 05£'T7 s934 Buissenoid [j0iAed
%S0 987/ og 9¢ 009'2 008°¢ 008’ stexy [estpap
%98 sze'sy S/0'p S0 00b 1t 0os'sz 00s'se suoneY saioidg
Yo' T 1£9°ST 672 622 006'ST 0509 058’6 suofesynse)
%l HC #e1's 9101 9T0'T 007y 001°2 001’2 suoReland @ $yoog
%L'S £TL0LE LLV'TT LLV'TT 00T'S6E 005'86T 00L'¥6T 51500 Hoddns BUYI0
%EET 7EGET 890°C 890°¢ 009°ST 0S6%T 059 snosue|EISIp
%L'E 600°9€ T6E'T T6€'T 00%'£E 008'8T 00981 bunuug
%9TT  126°¢6 6LE'TT 6L£°CT 00€'907 006°£8 00+'8% abeysod
%€ £84°12 L1e'1 LT2°T 000°2 00S'TT 00§'1T sai/ddng 200
Y%b'6 YPT's9T 980LT 950°LT 00£°z8T 0ST’E0T 0ST6L 200
Y%t $TH'6ET 9/%'9 9/F'9 006°stT 00£°69 00Z'9L salddng soueusquely
%0 SHG'81E GSE'T (S5 000°0ZE 000°097 000°091 Adojusauy
%L'T 690°85¥ T£8'L TER, 006'59% 00L'62C 002’95 s[el=iep
%070 000’02 - - 000°02 000°0T 000°0T FqUONPag IdURINSUT
%E°0Z 8TH08 £E5'72T ££5Z2T 056’209 0SH'STE 005°/82 soueinsul
%S LT £58'82¢ £6/4'69 £62'69 059'86€ 00£'€02 056'6T sdis1aqLUaiy @ $eng
%L 029°£07 08/'y 08/% 00P'CIT 00¥'LS 000's8 sebiey) yueg
%V LT  Y63'9£6 90T’L6T 90T L6T 000°PE1‘T 055985 oSy LvS UoLEJISIUNLPY |RISUDD
%b8 795'5t¢ 8e22 8EY'TT 000’892 000HET 000HET A3unoag
%E'6 082'6+9 0Z+'99 0ZF'99 00£'STL 005°65€ 00Z'948 SoUBRURIUIRI SPUnOJD) g Bulpiing
Sl P2 £6/'€9 £L06°0Z £06'0T 00/'v8 0062 008'TH SoXe| @ SIURLISSISSY
%E0T  SE£9'8G6 S9/'60T S9L°60T 00+'890°t 00+'9TS 000°255 Ajanoag B sanljoed
%80 008'1TT 001 00T 006°TT 00Z'L 00L'% SBONON 2ldnd
%00 000’ - - 000'% 000Z 0002 SWI9y] |euciowlcid

pasn 106png bZ-€20z A4 £T0Tdes-AInf  Sz0Z-£20T Na CievpIebpng  T.IE9A396pNg NN TVAINGD
juadiad Bulueway lenjay jenjoy uonedoaddy

1ebpng

g Haiyxg

SZ0T-£20T Wwnluudtig
Hoday smejs [enjoy 03 }ebpng

191 19ARY sewepe)



¢ abed

%8'S 796'6/1 850°1T 8C0°1T 000161 - 000167 SPIY=A
%E"TT 516’969 585746 §85°/6 005464 000°872 005995 SJusLIRAOIAWT
Yt 088'ssT 0ZT'T 0T1'T 000542 000'S4T 000’001 Buipping
%8 T 957’'S8 ¥9L'%T P91 000001 000’00t - pue
%E'9 0S8'SET'T 0S9'EtT 0S9chT 005°'6£2°C 00S‘THO’T 000’8ET’T Aeping jeyde)
%ETT 89EF0T0T $ TE9PSTT $ TE9PSTT $ 000°68£'TI $ 00988/’ $  00t'009's $ TVLOL - SADIAIDS B S[eldle
%gs  (£05'€99) (z6¥'0v) (z6v'0r) (000%0£) (000"9T¥) (000'882) dinb3 g JoqeT ‘pesyien0
°60°'TT TL8°79/°0T [TAR-TA 8TT'SCE'T 000°'E60°CT 009'v02’9 00t'888’s {EJOIGNS - SDOIAIDS 7 S|elISIe)
%871 P19 £91°06 £5T°06 008'+04 006°€SE 006°05E siSAleUY B JUSUABSLL 1538
9%0'C 555'877 SH'T S’z 000°'TCT 00509 00509 Juswabeury paystatem
%g'ST 66£°859°T 100°TTIE T00°TTE 00+'696°T goz’zro’t 00Z’/56 S3SRUDIN J81BA
%8'T SE9'6T S9¢E 59€ 000°0T 000°0T Goo‘oT AnSWwa]
%19 9% "9 881’¢ 88T'E 059'6% 00F'FZ 052'ST SHULIS
%TPT  869°LSY'T eST/L0V ZST 07 0S8v98°C 000'T9¢’'T 0S8'C0¥'T jusweRl] 2 seseydind J9iem
%98 188°c96'T 618481 618031 002'8b1°C 006°101"T 008'950°T CElialg]
%E"9T 66 HTT 184°22 15b°C2 00t/ €1 004789 00289 SUONEIUNIILODS(D |
%T"6 6Z8'840°C TL2°£0T TLTL0T 001'98¢°¢ 005°0/1°T 00S‘STT'T saIHIIN
%S S/6'PET Szl STy 002°6€1 aoI'1L 009°89 BOUBUSTUIRL BPIUSA
%6 TT 086'56 0Z6’erT 02671 006'807 0ST4S 08445 wewdinby g sjoa] jjews
%661 6LT'6TE T8R0T T/£%01 059'ces 052'592 00H'8S¢ SjUsLISRIBY SouRURIUIEIY
99'8 610785 185'G 18+'S 0059 000°ZE 008°TE [EUSY Juswdinba
%58 185191 6T0'ST 6T0°ST 009'9/1 08588 0s0'8s adURLRILIRY JusuIdinbg
%S ¥ L1579 £76C £76'C 00£’59 0082 0069¢ 2/1emM1jos g s|ereyduad ‘siendwo)
9%S'ET  TTe'ZEe 6SH ST |EV'SHT 099°//0°'T 0St'6£S 0oz'ges juswdinbg
%0 051781 085" 0S5/ 000061 a00’s6 000°56 1ebe
%TT 808'¥1¥ Z61's T6T's 000°02¥ 000'sze 000°56 20IuRS J2BuIbu]
%Z'TT 8E0'64T'T 798'8pT 798'srT 006°£ZE'T 056°0£9 056969 SO TRNUCT
%0°0 005'Z6 - - 00526 004'9t 008'st npny
%08 L64°898'T £09°T9T £09'T9T 00¥'0£0°C 0592601 052756 SIVIAIDG PIIORIFUO0D B [RUOISSDI0Id

pesn 196png YT-€70Z Ad €207 1dos-AINL  ST0Z-£20T N TJeap3ebpng T edA336png aNN4d TVHINID
JuddIRd Buiuiewssy jenpy [enpy uonjeudosddy

126png

§Z0Z-£20T WNjuuaIg
Hoday smejs [enpy 03 196png

ADJEM I9AY sewexoe|d

g HqRxg



+ obeg

%892 (S£0°0/6°7) $ 686'80/TT $ 986'80LCT $ 08685l $ @ouejeq pung buipug
%L TET (L06°6££°T) £06°6/8'6 L06'6/8'6 000°005°£ souejeq pung buluwbag
%8TLT- (82T°065°S) 8/0'628°C 6£0°6T8'C (0s0°19£°T) (006°TTZ) (osT'640°7) sosn (s921nos)
Bupueuly i3YylQ @ saunypuadxy
‘sanuaaay u sbuey)d
9400 00£'S/t'9 - - oog’s/v’o 000°/52'E 00£’8eT'E spund I9U30 03 SIDJSUBLL
%T°6 scL'rie’se $ LLI'009T $ 9/.'009°C $ 0058/5°87 S 00T'TE6'ET $ 00¥' LP9'FT § saanjipuadx3 |ejoL
%00 000°000°T - - 000°000°T - 000°000°T Aousbunuo) 6unesado
%E"9 0S8'SET’T $ 099°trT $ 0S9EPT $ 0096702 $ 00STPO°T € 000'8EC°T 3 IVLOL - Aepng jende)
%00 000°0zE - - 000°0Z¢ 000°6L 000'ske RY10
%00 000’68E - - 000°68E 008'8/¢ 005’09 uswdinby ssndwo)
%ob L 8G8°0¥Z HT6T w161 000097 000°S8T 000'ss sjoo] B juswdinby jeLsuan
pasn 3o6png YT-€T0Z A4 £20T3des-AInT  §202-£Z0Z Ng € deoA 39bpng T 4294 396png dNNd TVAINGD
Juadiad Buiuiewuay jenjoy lenjy uoneudolddy
196png

€ 1qixg

STOT-EC0C winluusig
Hoday sme)s jenpy 0} 326png

J19JBM 1A sewepep



Exhibit C

04
Clackamas River Water
Budget to Actuals Status Report
Biennium 2023-2025
Budget
Appropriation Actual Actual Remaining Percent

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT ) July-Sept
PROJECTS FUND BN 2023-2025 2023 FY 2023-24 Budget Used
Revenues

Earnings from Investments - 994 994 - 0.0%

Grant - Hazard Mitigation - 6,887 6,887 - 0.0%
Total Revenues $ - $ 7,881 $ 7,881 $ - 0.0%
Capital

Manager 73,000 911 911 72,089 1.2%

Engineering Manager 108,000 18,196 18,196 89,804 16.8%

Professional & Technical 215,000 21,821 21,821 193,179 10.1%

Water Worker Distribution 87,000 1,705 1,705 85,295 2.0%

Contract Work - 278,391 278,391 (278,391) 0.0%

Engineer Services - 13,955 13,955 (13,955) 0.0%

Legal - 274 274 (274) 0.0%

Overhead, Labor & Equip Caf 704,000 40,497 40,497 663,503 5.8%

Capital Outlay 8,753,000 - - 8,753,000 0.0%
Total Expenditures $ 9940000 $ 375750 $ 375,750 $ 9,564,250 3.8%
Transfers from Other
Funds (9,939,000) - - (9,939,000) 100.0%

Change in Revenues,

Expenditures & Other

Financing Sources &

Uses (1,000) (367,868) (367,868) 366,868 36787%
Beginning Fund Balance 1,000 644,941 644,941 (643,941) 64494.1%

Ending Fund Balance $ - § 277,073 $ 277,073 $ (277,073) 0%




Clackamas River Water

Budget to Actuals Status Report
Biennium 2023-2025

Exhibit D

Budget
Appropriation Actual Actual Remaining Percent

SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT July-Sept
CHARGES RESERVE FUND BN 2023-2025 2023 FY2023-24  Budget Used
SDC Revenue 330,000 10,598 10,598 319,402 3.2%

SDC Reimbursement 150,000 4,296 4,296 145,704 2.9%

SDC Improvements 180,000 6,302 6,302 173,698 3.5%
Non-Operating Revenue 100,000 17,002 17,002 82,998 17.0%

Earnings from Investments 100,000 17,002 17,002 82,998 17.0%
Total Revenues 430,000 $ 27,600 27,600 $ 402,400 6.4%
Transfers to Other Funds 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 0.0%

Change in Revenues,

Expenditures & Other

Financing Uses (570,000) 27,600 27,600 (597,600) -4.8%
Beginning Fund Balance 2,950,000 2,867,206 2,867,206 (2,784,413) 97.2%
Ending Fund Balance 2,380,000 $ 2,894,806 $ 2,894,806 $(3,382,012) 242.1%

Page 1




Clackamas River Water

Clackamas River Water

1st Quarter Update — Fiscal Year 2024

Board Meeting — November 9, 2023
Christa Bosserman Wolfe, CPA, CFO




Biennium (BN) 2023-2025

ojuly 1, 2023-June 30, 2025

i Beginning of Year 1 of the Biennium

1t Quarter of the Biennium — 12.5%
September 30, 2023



General Fund ’
Budget to Actual Status 0

Service Charges
Interest Earnings (LGIP rate 4.63%)

Transferred available funds from US Bank to LGIP to
increase interest earnings

Revenues tracking slightly higher than
anticipated (16.8% vs 12.5%) to date.
Drivers:

Expenses tracking slightly lower than anticipated (11.3% vs 12.5%)

Personnel savings due to vacant positions in Water Resources, FACS, and
Administration

Capital outlay spending varies due to timing and supply chain issues




General Fund

Budget to Actual Status Cont’d

Clackamas River Water

Budget to Actual Status Report
Biennium 2023-2025

Budget
Appropriation Actual Actual Remaining Percent

GENERAL FUND BN 2023-2025 July-Sept 2023 FY 2023-24 Budget Used
Total Expenditures $ 28,578,500 $ 2,600,776 $ 2,600,777 $ 25,977,723 0.1%0
Transfers to Other Funds 6,475,300 - - 6,475,300 0.0%

Change in Revenues, Expenditures

& Other Finanding (Sources) Uses (2,761,050) 2,829,079 2,829,078 (5,590,128) -172.8%
Beginning Fund Balance 7,500,000 9,879,907 9,879,907 (2,379,907) 131.7%
Ending Fund Balance % 4,738,950 % 12,708,986 % 12,708,985 % (7,970,035) 268.2%

New section to the Quarterly Reports!

Note: Ending Fund Balance is high because this is the beginning of the
biennium. This will trend downward over time as we incur more
expenses.



Capital
Improvement
Projects Fund

Budget to
Actual Status

3.8% spent through
15t quarter.

Continue to
experience longer
than normal lead
times and supply
chain issues that
have delayed
projects.

Impacts other
agencies that we
are coordinating
with on projects
(i.e. County)

Progress reports
are provided to the
Board as part of
the Monthly
Report




System
Development
Charge Reserve
Fund

Budget to Acutals

e 3.2% SDC revenue from new
construction received to date

* Interest earnings trending
higher than budgeted due to
current rates.




Questions?



Agenda Item — 7
CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

REGULAR BOARD MEETING

November 9, 2023

SUBJECT Management Report

PRINCIPAL STAFF Todd Heidgetken
PERSON

DOCUMENTS
ATTACHED
Table of Contents
The Management Report will have two sections: (A) an overview of GM

and Staff activity dusing the month; (B) informational articles {(when
available)

A. Management Report

B. Informational articles or Materials- None at this time

November 9, 2023 Agenda Item 7 Page I of 3




CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

Agenda Item — 7

REGULAR BOARD MEETING

November 9, 2023

SUBJECT Management Repozt
PRINCIPAL STAFF Todd Heidgerken
PERSON

BOARD ACTION

REQUESTED

A. Management Report

November 9, 2023

Communications:
Monthly Report — The monthly report will be provided to the
Board separately and posted on the CRW Website.

Clackamas River Water Providers (CRWP): As a way to
improve communications between CRWP staff and provide a
greater awateness of what happens at the different water treatment
plants on the Clackamas, the CRWP otganized 2 water treatment
operator meeting on October 24th. CRW was pleased to host this
meeting that included a tour of the CRW water treatient plant
(W1P) and a presentation on CRW’s approach to our WTP
Facilities Plan. The meeting also allowed staff from various
agencies to interact and “put a name to a face.” Many thanks to
the CRWP for organizing, Adam Bjornstedt for presenting on the
CRW Facilities Plan and Alan Schacht fot conducting the tout.

FEMA Grant Update: CRW has received notice of award for the
second part of the FEMA grant relating to construction of the
Redland road Watetline project between Bradley and Potter Road.
Due to the size of the overall grant budget, federal requitements
split the award amounts into three patts. This second amount will
be made available primarily for construction costs, which will be
the bulk of the overall grant expenditure (when completed).

Lead and Copper Rule/Setvice Line Inventory (SLI) Update:
As the next step in our service line inventory to fulfill the federal
lead and copper rule requirements, we will be conducting
inspections of randomly sclected service lines over the next several
months. The State will allow this “statistical method” where only a
random list of remaining “unknown” services ate inspected {for
service line material type), and findings can be attribated to the

Agenda ltem 7 Page 2 of 3




rest of the service lines in the system. We are issuing a notice to
customers who have been selected.

5. Regional Water Providers Consottium (RWPC) Technical
Committee: The RWPC Technical Committee met on
November 1 to receive reports and updates from RWPC staff on
progtam activities. The Technical Committee members spent most
of the meeting time focusing on the RWPC staffing roles,
expectations, capacities, and priotities. Currently, the RWPC has
four staff who work on RWPC activities {some have split
responsibilities and work a portion of their time for the Portland
Water Bureau). The RWPC has also relied on the help and
participation of staff from its member agencies. Given that
member agencies have had their own staffing availability
challenges, the RWPC staff has attempted to pick up more of the
activities previously addressed by member agency staff.
Approaches and results from this discussion will be part of future
updates.

6. Emergency Management Update: Continued work on CRWP
grant project. Workshop 2 is scheduled for Nov 30. The focus will
be on tactical planning for emergency drinking water assets and
how to access them. This work will be in partnership with
Clackamas County to gain understanding of emergency
transportation routes, debtis management, and alignment with
mass feeding and shelter planning.

7. Secutity Update: The access contirol project continues to be
refined as we await ordered patts. Projected access control
installations anticipated to be done by end of 2023.

8. Looking Ahead:
e CRW Offices will be closed November 10 to observe the
Veteran’s Day Holiday
»  CRW offices will be closed November 23 & 24 for the
Thanksgiving Holiday
* No Work Sessions will be held in November or December

* The agenda setting meeting for the November Board meeting
will be held on Thutsday, November 30 at 8:00 am

¢  The CRYY Regulatr December Board Meeting will be held on
Thursday, December 14 at 6pm

November 9, 2023 Agenda ltem 7 Page 3 of 3



Agenda Item — 9

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER
REGULAR BOARD MEETING
November 9, 2023
SUBJECT Commissioner Reports and Reimbutsement Requests
DRAFT MOTION NO MOTION REQUIRED
EFrFecTIVE DATE
PRINCIPAL STAFE Board of Commissioners
PERSON
BOARD ACTION Commissioner Communications
REQUESTED
DOCUMENTS ¢ (Commissioner Reimbursement Requests
ATTACHED
Agenda Summary
BACKGROUND

WNovember 9, 2023 Agendea Itenr 9 Page 1 of 1



CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

Commissioner Requast for Reimbursemant

NMonth September 2023 Commissloner's Name Naoml Angier
Flease Print
Date Meetings Amount
CRW Reqular Board Meeting -- $ 50.00
CRW Work Sesslon $
Misceltaneous Meeting _ Executive Regional Water mmeefpa $50.00
SDAQO Metro breakfast $50.00
$
$
Total #450.00
Date Meals
$
$
$
$
Total $
Date Mileage *
$
$
$
$
$
$
Tolal $
Date Motel/Hotel Lodging **
$
$
$
$
Total §
Date Miscellangous ***
$
$
$
Tolal §
¥ Miteage $. per mile
rE Lodging bills must be altached in support of relmbursement requesf Total Expenses $
rhh Miscelianeous expenses lo be supported with bifls where possible Adjustments

$
Amount Due Commissioners $150.00

| hereby certify under penallies of perjury and olher faws regarding faisification of records and/or official misconduct, the ahove
request for reimbursement te be accurate and complete and fuither cerify that | am authorized o receive reimbursement as part of
my authotized duties as a CRW commissioner.

Respectfutly submitted

Commissioner's Signature

For Accounting; s .
Payrall; Taxable $ {50 Non-Taxable § enterod P/R UE 10['?,99 23
Accounis Payable: VENDOR # ACCT# 01.601.5730 AMOUNT 3 Entered A/P
Board: Reintbursement as of

S
= N CFO Date

YAAD-Administratiof\AD-03 Board of Commissioners\AD-03-08 Generat Infermation-BOARD\Reimbursements\Commission Reimbursement form-single
page.dac



CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

Commissloner Reguest for Reimbursement

) )( i?) lil() O .’%D,’?{S Commissioner's Name g\/&ﬂ}u_{ ﬁﬁ,ﬁﬁ"‘/‘c;{/\_

Please Print
: Meetings Amgunt
W Regular Board Meeting— ( y.t | 2 $_. 5
CRWWaricSesston  ( x+ 5 e mdg $_ 5
%Isce laneous Meeting (JCH {7 7 vide. Loodaie. $_ 50
-Qt.'l { —)(‘_P)‘t:‘% biene e o ! $ S0
et 35 e hd ot [ IYLPRD $ =
ot L, C\'(l\ e 7 3 .90
.‘3 - S~
Total § QUQ
Date Meals
$ —
.
S
$_
Total §
Date Mileage *
%
$
s
&
$
S
Totat §
Date MotellHote! Lodging **
$
$
$
&
Total §
Data Miscellanecus *** -
5
$
B
Total $
' Mileags §. per mile
b Lodging bills must be attached in support of relmbursemsnt reqiest Total Expenses $
Mt Miscellangous expenses to be supported with bifls whore possible Adjustments §

Amount Due Commissloners $_% ()

t hereby certify under penalties of perjury and other faws regarding falsification of records andlor official misconduct, the above
request for reimbursement lo be accurate and complete and further certify that | am authorized tofscelve relnbursement as part of
my authorized dulies as a CRW commissioner, Sl (“

<
Respectfully submitted ‘\,\BWMA-{"*‘ Adnt o \
1 Commissioner's Signature

fror Accounling:
Payroll: Taxabte $_300.00 Non-Taxable $ entered P/R _S. Dunn

Accounts Payable: VENDOR # . ACCTH# D1.601 .g?ﬁﬁ/ AMOUNT § ’; 0 Entered A/P
Board: Relmbursement as of % A t\

Ry




CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

Gommissioner Request for Relmbursement

Month SEP 2023 Commissloner's Name Lester B Garrison
Please Print
Date Meetings J Amotnt
C_&W_BQQUL&LM_M@!DQ_@ e ‘/% $ 50.00
CRW Work Sesslon L o B $
Miscellanecus Mesling IA}/@GV//) a_ S_/,gﬂ oK g,; 50.00
B
i
Total $ 100.00
Date Meals
$
$
$
$
Totel$___ |
Date Mileage *
$
$
$
L
$
$
Tolal $__ o
Date MoteliHote! Lodging ** .
$
$
$
$
Tolal$__
Date Miscellaneous **
§
$
$
Total $
* Mieage$.__ permille
4+ Ledglng blls musi be atlached In suppor of relmbursemant raglies! Total Expenses  $_100.00
" Miscellaneous expenses fo ba supported with bills whare possible Adjustments $ —

Amount Due Commissioners 5

Fhereby certify under penalties of parjury and other laws regarding falsification of records andfor officlal misconduct, the above

request for reimbursement o be accurate and camplele and fuither cartify thal | am authotized 1o recelve rei ursement as parf of
my authotized dulles as a CRW commissioner, . S
Respectfully submlited tester Garmson " =l

Comimissloner's Signature

For Accouniing:
Payroll Taxable§_ \00 MNon-Taxable$ _ entered PIR _Qﬁ 10[5/2&10 12

Accounts Payable: VENDOR # ACCT# 01.601,5730 AMOUNT §__ EnteredA/P _
Board: Reimbursemen! as of

CFO Date

YAD-Administratio\AD-03 Board of Commisstoners\AD-03-06 General Correspondence - 05 yes\ReimbursementsiConnmlssion Reimbursement forins.doe




CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

Commissfoner Request for Relmbursement

Month (/¢ +0L7(""v’. 2023 Commissloner's Name )D\D\O‘é"v”‘ ‘Ru LJI lb( ]/H«U\j
4 Please Print
Date Meetings Amount
CRW Regular Board Meeting — [O / Iz /2(9 23 $_ L0, 00
CRW Work Sesslon % )
Miscellaneous Meeting |24 10nal Water Provicl@ri 50,00
CeMNBdovtivw hoavd  -eat; Nr"q! Y DYFYER
$
. C
o
Totalg_{ OO,
Date Meals
&
&
$
$
Total $
Date Mileage *
$
§
$
$
$
$
Total $
Date Motel/Hotel Lodging **
5
$
3
$
Total $
Date Miscellaneous **+
50/7/15 Arvnual CRwW( V\fa'*é‘v "51\9({ o $~_N/g
s ——
Totalg €7, OO
N Mileage §. per mile
x Lodglng bilfs must be attached in support of reimbursement request Total Expenses $
i Miscellanaous expenses io be supporied with hills where possible Adjustments $

Amount Due Gommissioners $__] 90 . 9

I hereby cerilfy under penallies of perjury and ofher laws regarding falsification of records and/or official misconduet, the above
fequest for raimbursement to be accurate and complete and further certify that | am awhorized To receive '_riiitgsem nt as part of
Y

my autharized dutles as a CRW commissioner. m—— ’r</ /%L./
Respectfuliy submilte%/ﬁ' fdz/ﬁ/;' D A H e

Cdr’n}qissiener‘s Signature
for Accounting: P -
Payroll: Taxable $_\{D(0 ., O¢o Non-Taxable $ entered PIR A0 | O/! 5) 223
Accounts Payable: VENDOR # ACCT#01.601,5730 AMOUNT § Entered A/P

Board: Reimbursement as of

A Y
\m\mﬁy 2. 2025

D \ CFO Date

YAAD -Administration\A D-03 Board of Commissioners\AD-03-08 General Information-BOA RD\teimbursements\Commission Reimbursement form-single
page.doc



	CRW 11.09.23 Board Meeting Agenda
	CA 1 HGross Payroll and Accounts Paid
	CA 1 Earnings statement
	CA 1 Check history
	CA 2 Cash position and transfers
	CA 3 Project acceptance of assets constructed for the Copper Heights subdivision project 21-5288
	CA 3 Exhibit A
	CA 3 Exhibit B
	CA 3 Exhibit C
	AG 1 Consider approval of amended and restated IGA of the Regional Water Providers Consortium
	AG 1 Exhibit A
	AG 2 Consider First Reading of Resolution 01-2024, by title only amending Local Contract Review Board Rules
	AG 2 Res 01-2024
	AG 2 Redline of LCRB's
	AG 3 Consider approval of professional services contract with RH2 Engineering for the Water Treatment Plant Improvemets Project 23-5309
	AG 3 exhibit A
	AG 4Contract award- Construction contract for SysOps Shop facility renovation, project 2329
	AG 4 exhibit A
	AG 4 Exhibit B
	AG 5 Consider approval of temporary construction easement for porlogis Robert Ave. Development
	AG 5 Exhibit A
	AG 5 Exhibit B
	AG 5 exhibit C
	AG 6 Quarterly Report
	AG 7 Mangement Report
	AG 9 Commissioner Reports and reimbursement requests
	AG 9 reimbursement requests
	AG 4  Qtly Update 9-30-23.pdf
	Slide 1: Clackamas River Water
	Slide 2: Biennium (BN) 2023-2025
	Slide 3: General Fund  Budget to Actual Status 
	Slide 4: General Fund  Budget to Actual Status Cont’d
	Slide 5: Capital Improvement Projects Fund Budget to Actual Status
	Slide 6: System Development Charge Reserve Fund Budget to Acutals
	Slide 7: Questions?




